
 

 

 
Wednesday, 16 March 2022 
 
To:   Members of the MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Appropriate 

Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority to be held at 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ, on: Thursday, 24 March 
2022 at 11.00 am for the purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Chief Executive/ Head of Paid Service 
 
 
 
 
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

This meeting will be streamed live or subsequent broadcast via the Mayoral Combined 
Authority’s website. 
 
You should be aware that the Mayoral Combined Authority is a Data Controller under the 
Data Protection Act 2018.  Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Mayoral Combined Authority’s published policy. 
 
By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to be filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

 

You can view the agenda and papers  
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
or use a smart phone camera  
and scan the QR code: 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Allan Jones Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Ben Curran Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Emily Barley Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Joanna Baker-Rogers Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Joe Otten Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Ken Richardson Barnsley MBC 
Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards Sheffield City Council 
 



 

 

 
MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

 
 

Thursday, 24 March 2022 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue:  11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 

 

1.   Welcome and Apologies for morning session    

2.   Urgent Items/Announcements    

3.   Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public 
and Press  

  

4.   Declarations of Interest by any Members    

5.   Reports from and Questions by Members    

6.   Questions from Members of the Public    

7.   Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held 
on 27 January 2022  

 5 - 18 

8.   Update from ASRC - Advisory Panel Meeting - 
verbal  

Angela 
Marshall 

 

9.   Strategic Risk Monitoring  Liz Morris, 
Andy 
Mumford 

19 - 42 

10.   Internal Audit Reports 
 

a) Internal Audit Progress Report 
b) Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker 

Report 
 

Lisa 
Mackenzie 

43 - 56 

11.   Integration Update  Claire 
James 

57 - 60 

12.   Welcome and apologies for afternoon session    

13.   2022/23 Internal Audit Plan  Lisa 
Mackenzie 

61 - 84 

14.   Committee Effectiveness  Claire 
James 

85 - 92 

15.   Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review  Claire 
James 

93 - 96 

16.   Annual Review of Code of Corporate Governance  Claire 
James 

97 - 106 



 

 

17.   Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement 
Plan Action  

Claire 
James 

107 - 118 

18.   Assurance Framework  Felix 
Kumi-
Ampofo, 
Lyndsey 
Whitaker 

119 - 194 

19.   Committee Work Plan  Christine 
Marriott 

195 - 196 

Date of next meeting:   Thursday, 9 June 2022 at 11.00 am 

At:  11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



MCA - AUDIT, STANDARDS AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 27 JANUARY 2022 AT 11.00 AM 
 
11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ 
 

 

 
Present: 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Allan Jones Doncaster MBC 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Joe Otten Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Ken Richardson Barnsley MBC 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 Officer South Yorkshire MCA 
Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive South Yorkshire MCA 
Mike Thomas Senior Finance Manager/ Deputy S73 

Officer 
South Yorkshire MCA 

Claire James Interim Integration Programme 
Manager 

South Yorkshire MCA 

Christine Marriott Interim Democratic Services and 
Scrutiny Manager 

South Yorkshire MCA 

Liz Morris Risk Manager South Yorkshire MCA 
Lynne Sutton Health and Safety Advisor South Yorkshire MCA 
Tim Taylor Director of Public Transport Operations South Yorkshire Passenger 

Transport Executive 
Lisa Mackenzie Internal Auditor Grant Thornton 
Melanie Bray Minute Taker Joint Authority Governance 

Unit 
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Joanna Baker-Rogers Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Emily Barley Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Ben Curran Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Dan Spiller External Audit 
Hassan Rohimun External Audit 
Reyna Ramdhani External Auditors 
Emily Mayne Internal Auditor 
Dr Dave Smith South Yorkshire MCA 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

 
1 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

  
Apologies for absence were noted as above. 
 

2 Urgent Items/Announcements 
 

 None. 
 

3 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press 
 

 None. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest by any Members 
 

 None. 
 

5 Reports from and Questions by Members 
 

 In response to a question raised by Councillor Jones, G Sutton confirmed that 
the Pensions audit had been completed with the accounts, which had been 
agreed in November 2021. 
 

6 Questions from Members of the Public 
 

 None. 
 

7 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 21 October 2021 
 

 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Committee held on 21 October 2021 
were agreed as a true record. 
 

8 Verbal Update from Audit, Standards and Risk - Advisory Panel Meeting 
on 13 January 2022 
 

 A Marshall provided the Committee with a verbal update from the Audit, 
Standards and Risk Advisory Panel Meeting held on 13 January 2022.  
Members noted the following key points arising from the meeting:- 
  

        The Health and Safety Report was a good addition to the Panel’s reporting 
mechanism.  Data was awaited from the operators. 

        There had been a significant increase in the number of crime and disorder 
incidents at a number of the South Yorkshire interchanges. 

        The SYPTE performance dashboard had been reviewed, with focus given 
to transport, punctuality, statistics, reliability of the new tram vehicles, 
capital programme slippages and its impact on the funding available in the 
event that the deadlines could not be met. 

        Internal Audit was progressing well against the Audit Plan. 

        The Panel had agreed that community transport would become a new 
addition to the Audit Plan. 

Page 6



 

        Consideration had been given to the 9 overdue recommendations.  One of 
which was of medium risk and the other 8 were of low risk in relation to the 
SYMCA; the Panel had received assurance that they would be dealt with 
accordingly. 

        The External Audit final report had been discussed and minor textual 
amendments had been made.  The fees for the additional work on 
Pensions and Value for Money had been agreed, but not the additional fee 
for Value Added which had been referred onto the Public Sector Auditor 
Appointments for adjudication. 

        Consideration had been given to the new risk framework, regarding how 
the SYPTE risks were integrated into the overall framework for the 
Authority.  The main concern of the Panel related to how the SYPTE 
operational risks would be summarised into the new overall strategic 
categories how they should be brought to the attention of the Management 
Board. 

        A deep dive had commenced into operational risks, which had commenced 
with the tram.  The Panel had taken assurance, whilst recognising the 
challenging issues to be managed with the tram asset. 

 
In relation to the operational risks and the associated health and safety, R 
Jarvis was encouraged by the way in which the presentation had been provided 
to the Panel.  He was confident that the skills were available in-house to deal 
with the arising issues; regular reviews were undertaken with the operators.  
There were a number of operational challenges and risks in relation to the 
assets, overhead lines and the track which were being addressed.  He referred 
to the report which had been published following the Croydon tram incident that 
had occurred a few years ago, which had identified four points to be 
implemented; which would be partly completed now and in 2024. 
 
The Panel would next meet in February 2022 to complete the work regarding 
the bus issues and other transport operational issues at the risk profile and how 
they were managed, which would be reported back to a future Committee 
meeting. 
 
In relation to integration, the Panel had received the latest report in relation to 
progress and had considered the key areas on the project to meet the critical 
milestones, any significant changes to the plan, slippage against the plan, 
project budget, staff engagement and the risks to the organisation regarding 
the integration project and business as usual.  Work continued at pace.  A 
Marshall expressed her disappointment that the Order for Dissolution would not 
be laid by 1 April 2022.  The capacity of the organisation remained a key 
concern together with continuing the pace of the work and to deliver the 
benefits of change.  Staff recruitment continued to be an issue, and resourcing 
was a critical risk on the risk register. 
 
RESOLVED – That the update from the Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory 
Panel Meeting held on 13 January 2022 be noted. 
 

9 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 

 L Sutton presented a quarterly report of the health and safety issues within the 
South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority organisation and estate. 

Page 7



 

  
The key points arising from Members’ discussion were summarised below:- 
  

        Dr Smith had recently visited the interchange and met with employees. A 
review of the number of anti-social behaviour incidents at Barnsley 
Interchange, has taken place and steps to discuss collaborative working 
arrangements with street wardens and South Yorkshire Police (SYP) to 
address the issue.  There was no correlation between the anti-social 
behaviour incidents.  The increase in the number of incidents had resulted 
from better reporting. 

        Signage had been ordered to prevent individuals from walking across the 
runway at Barnsley Interchange.  Work would be undertaken to prevent 
Google Maps from directing people to walk across the runway. 

        Members were referred to the significant anti-social behaviour issue that 
had been attributed to by a few individuals at Barnsley Interchange in 
2017.  The matter had been resolved through liaison with the local youth 
services and probation.  T Taylor suggested that the same process could 
be undertaken if required. 

        In relation to the increase of incidents at Meadowhall Interchange, L Sutton 
hoped to meet with the Travel Safe Officer, the Travel Safe Officer for SYP, 
the SYP team which were located within Meadowhall and the British 
Transport Police to ascertain whether any targeted work could be 
undertaken. 

  
In relation to the transport operators’ accident details, Councillor Jones 
highlighted that Stagecoach had not submitted any details in relation to 
accidents.  He queried whether any of the accidents had led to legal 
representation by the complainants, and SYMCA’s responsibility for those 
accidents which were attributable to Stagecoach whilst on SYMCA’s premises. 
  
T Taylor replied that periodic reporting was received from Stagecoach.  He was 
unaware of any accidents that had led to legal representation by the 
complainants; he would ascertain the position.  He would remind Stagecoach of 
the request to provide accident and health and safety statistics to be fed into 
the report.  There was not a definitive view in relation to SYMCA’s responsibility 
for those accidents that had occurred on its premises, which would be 
dependent upon the nature of the accidents; legal council could be sought if 
required. 
ACTION:-  T Taylor to ascertain whether there was any SYMCA litigation 
that had resulted from accidents with the operators. 
  
In response to a request made by Councillor Lofts for further analysis of the 
incidents that occurred at Barnsley Interchange, T Taylor commented that the 
issues initially tended to start from outside of the footprint of the estate and 
moved into the premise.  The incidents predominately involved young people of 
school age.  Body cameras were worn by all of the operatives within the site, 
and the camera footage could be used if required.  
  
L Sutton had recently observed a headmaster from a local school that now 
stood outside of the Barnsley Interchange on a morning, who would move on 
the children from his school if they were stood outside of the premise. 
  

Page 8



 

Following the lifting of the COVID-19 Plan B restrictions, A Marshall queried 
SYMCA’s plans to encourage staff to return back into the workplace. 
  
Dr Adams commented that the detail was currently being worked through.  
SYMCA was an organisation that was predominately office based, but 
consideration would be given to enabling additional flexibilities to enhance 
remote working; instructions were being provided within the All Staff Briefings.  
Social distancing was currently being maintained through the building, and staff 
could book a workstation in advance.  The Management Board was considering 
the longer-term policy to enable the best blend of hybrid working. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Committee noted and discussed the contents of the 
report. 
 

10 Strategic Risk Monitoring 
 

 L Morris presented a report which provided an update on the Strategic Risks of 
the Mayoral Combined Authority (SYMCA) which had been updated following 
the Autumn series of Management Board risk review activity, to reflect the 
current status and next steps in terms of the actions. 
  
In relation to the ongoing consultation on the Bus Improvement Plan and 
reference to the franchising from Mayor Jarvis MBE and other local politicians, 
Councillor Otten queried whether there had been any movement in the risks 
that applied to the enhanced partnership that had been agreed.   
 
Dr Adams commented that this did not indicate any movement in the risks that 
applied to the enhanced partnership.  At the recent SYMCA Meeting, the 
Leaders had requested time to discuss the matter with their respective local 
authorities.  A further paper would be presented to the SYMCA Meeting in 
March 2022.  The Chief Executive, Directors of Transport and the Leaders 
were aware of building the best possible relationships with the operators.  This 
would not be mitigated within the risk register, but it was a recognised issue in 
terms of planning the integrated organisation and emphasis of relationship 
building with the operators. 
 
Councillor Otten queried how the bus companies would be dealt with in terms 
of risk, rather than problematic risk but gain theoretic risk, would that be treated 
in a different way and whether the register is fully up to that in terms of risks 
that will react to what we do rather than risks that will just happen.  Is it part 
gain theory rather than problematic theory and is that understood and taken 
into account on the risk register. 
  
In relation to the key issues and the Strategic Risk Summary update table 
within the report, Councillor Jones requested an understanding of the green 
and amber boxes.  He expressed concern that the table did not include any of 
the red high rated risks. 
  
Members noted that the green and amber boxes related to the way in which the 
risks schedules were currently structured, which averaged some of the detail 
that worked on the basis of the individual risks. 
  

Page 9



 

R Jarvis commented that the dashboard would be implemented which would 
highlight the key risks, trends and mitigation etc. 
  
L Morris would take forward some of the points raised by Councillor Jones into 
the new arrangements. 
  
Members were referred to the brown field programme which had no mitigation 
against it.  G Sutton commented that it was a fiscal stimulus scheme that the 
Government had committed to in response to the pandemic, with allocated 
funding towards housing schemes on brown field sites across the region.  The 
Government had given the SYMCA a spend target of £20m by the end of the 
current financial year.  The SYMCA was concerned that the current forecast 
had indicated only £2m spend by the end of the current financial year.  
Engagement was currently being made with the Government with a view to 
seeking flexibility on the use of the funding. 
  
RESOLVED – That Members noted the updated position on strategic risks and 
the associated controls and actions planned and raised any questions 
considered necessary. 
 

11 Risk Dashboard 
 

 A report was submitted which provided an update on the development of a new 
Risk Management Framework and Corporate Risk Register, which took 
account of the integration of the SYMCA and the Passenger Transport 
Executive into a single organisation. 
 
A Marshall queried the process for escalating the PTE or operational risks into 
Management Board. 
 
Members were referred to Appendix 2 of the report, which set out the new 
framework and Appendix A within the framework which provided a summary of 
risk management process for the organisation.  Any risks with a score of 16 
and above would automatically be escalated into the Management Board and 
presented to the Committee.  Any risks with a score of 11 and above would 
also be escalated into the Management Board; the Management Board had 
agreed to the process. 
 
A Marshall referred to the discussions that had ensued at the Audit, Standards 
and Risk Advisory Panel regarding the transport safety work which included 
some elements of health and safety.  She expressed concern that some of the 
issues could become diluted within the proposed framework as they would be 
spread across a number of categories.  She suggested that the Audit, 
Standards and Risk Advisory Panel may need to raise the issue again with the 
Committee in the upcoming months, if it was considered that those areas were 
not receiving enough attention. 
 
L Morris would meet with L Mackenzie today in order to scope the internal audit 
of risk management and discuss the development processes and 
arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee:- 

Page 10



 

 
i) Considered the development of the new framework, and provided their 

view re-endorsing this for adoption to the SYMCA Board. 
 

Agreed standing down the current business as usual SYMCA risk register 
included in Item 10, with immediate effect and endorsed its replacement with 
the new corporate risk register proposed to be adopted by the new integrated 
SYMCA Executive. 
 

12 Draft 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy Report 
 

 A report was presented which provided an update on the development of the 
2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy for the SYMCA group.  The draft 
Strategy would shape the SYMCA’s approach to managing its cash and debt 
portfolios over the course of the following financial year. 
  
G Sutton referred to the hierarchy of considerations that focused upon the 
following points:- 
  
i)        Security of assets.  It was most important that the investments were with 

secure counter parties. 
ii)      Liquidity.  Most of the investments were relatively short term, which 

enabled the ability to react to the interest rate changes. 
iii)     Yield of the investment which resulted in income generation. 
  
Councillor Jones highlighted a typographical error within Section B of Appendix 
1 to the report, which should indicate that the other long-term liabilities set out 
in the table above represented the PFI liability in respect of Doncaster 
Interchange. 
ACTION:-  M Thomas to amend the document prior to being presented to 
the SYMCA Board for approval. 
  
Members noted that there was no change to the strategy in comparison to last 
year.  In 2021, the principle of change had been the increased operational limit, 
operational boundary and debt. 
  
Councillor Otten referred to the idea of borrowing against future capital receipts 
to fund capital spending, and he queried what advice the Committee could 
provide on the downside risk of doing so. 
  
In response, G Sutton referred to the assurance framework that had been 
adopted to test value for money for any of the investment decisions.  Future 
resources were committed to an investment decision in the immediate term, to 
be repaid in later years.  A judgement would be made on a transaction by 
transaction basis. 
  
The Committee would have sight of the results of the comparative reviews 
which would be included within the mid-year report that was prepared for the 
SYMCA.  ACTION:-  G Sutton 
  
Councillor Jones suggested that it would be worthwhile for the Committee to 
have a separate update on treasury management issues. 

Page 11



 

ACTION:-  G Sutton to schedule a tutorial to be held at the next pre-
meeting of the Committee. 
  
Councillor Auckland expressed his thanks to G Sutton for the exemplary 
manner in which he had explained the issues raised by Members. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Committee:- 
  
i)        Endorsed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for onward approval by 

the SYMCA Board, alongside the proposed 2022/23 Revenue Budget and 
Capital Programme, in March 2022. 

ii)      Endorsed the borrowing strategy set out in Section A of Appendix 1. 
iii)     Endorsed the capital expenditure estimates and associated prudential 

indicators set out in Section B of Appendix 1. 
iv)     Endorsed the minimum revenue provision policy set out in Section C of 

Appendix 1. 
v)      Endorsed the annual investment strategy set out in Section D of Appendix 

1. 
vi)     Endorsed the granting of delegated authority to the Group Finance Director 

in consultation with the Chief Executive to provide a financial guarantee in 
favour of the SCR Financial Interventions Holding company. 

vii)   Noted the intention to negotiate with HM Treasury and DLUHC to agree a 
borrowing cap for 2022/23 for all functions (transport and non-transport). 

 
Endorsed the draft treasury management practices at Appendix 2. 
 

13 Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Action Plan 
 

 A report was submitted which provided an update on the progress against the 
2021/22 Governance Improvement Plan, which had been agreed by the 
SYMCA at the beginning of 2022.  Following a request made at the last 
Committee meeting, the state of play had been included within the report. 
  
Within Appendix A to the report, Members were referred to Item 17 ‘Introduce a 
new corporate assurance management board to review all aspects of corporate 
assurance oversight’.  This had been delayed due to a review that was 
underway on all of the internal meetings, to ensure that they were as efficient 
and effective as possible. 
  
Councillor Lofts queried whether the implications for climate change would be 
incorporated into the reports, as had been recently recommended by the 
Government. 
  
Dr Adams referred to the internal review that was underway to ascertain what 
was required for inclusion into the Governance Improvement Plan for 2022/23. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Committee considered progress against the plan to 
consider whether the monitoring updates provided the assurance required of 
progress against the 2021/2022 plan. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

14 2021/22 Annual Governance Review Process 
 

 A report was presented which set out the proposed process for the Annual 
Governance Review of the financial year ending 31 March 2022.  The findings 
of which would inform the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and the 
Governance Improvement Plan for 2022/23. 
  
It was envisaged that the initial findings of the review would be presented to the 
Committee Meeting scheduled to be held in March 2022, together with a draft 
AGS, a revised Code of Corporate Governance for the single organisation 
moving forward as an integrated organisation and details of the 
recommendations regarding the approach to corporate governance for the new 
single organisation for consideration. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Committee considered the proposed process for 
conducting the Annual Governance Review for the financial year ending 31 
March 2022. 
 

15 Internal Audit Reports 
 

 A report was submitted which provided an update on the progress of the 
2021/22 Group Internal Audit Plan. 
 
Members noted the progress that had been made to date, with approximately 
70% of the Internal Audit Plan now completed.  Since the last Committee 
Meeting, a total of four reviews had been completed and matters were on track 
to deliver a timely Head of Internal Audit Opinion as planned. 
 
L Mackenzie informed Members of a potential change to the Internal Audit 
Plan.  As a result of other sources of assurances, it had been agreed that it 
would not be the best use of resources at this time to complete a review of 
integration.  Initial discussions had been held in relation to completing a Value 
for Money Review of community transport.  Grant Thornton’s Advisory Team 
was currently scoping the potential review, to be completed as bespoke 
advisory work outside of the Internal Audit Plan.  Scoping work was underway 
for the other pieces of work within the Internal Audit Plan Quarter 4 reviews and 
were on track for completion before the end of March 2022. 
 
In relation to the additional audit, A Marshall commented that the Audit, 
Standards and Risk Advisory Panel would commend to the Committee to 
include the new community transport audit within the Internal Audit Plan. 
 
Members were provided with an overview in relation to the following final 
reports:- 
 
i) Critical IT Controls. 
ii) Asset Management. 
iii) Supplier Resilience. 
iv) Core Financial Controls. 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

In response to a number of queries raised by Members regarding the difficulties 
encountered in reading the reports on their devices, L Mackenzie would 
ascertain whether the documents could be produced in a more easier to read 
format. 
ACTION:-  L Mackenzie 
 
In relation to the Asset Management report, L Mackenzie highlighted that the 
review had been recommended by Management, due to it being a known area 
with possible improvements to be made.  Grant Thornton’s Internal Audit 
Opinion took onboard the specific areas that they had been directed to provide 
an independent overview and provide a number of recommendations to assist 
the SYMCA in moving forwards in managing its assets. 
 
Members noted that the Core Financial Controls report would form part of the 
integration to streamline the processes.  M Thomas commented that the 
supplier checks were being streamlined with one key person across the 
Finance Team.  He was pleased with the report presented, and he expressed 
his thanks to L Mackenzie and her team for conducting the work swiftly. 
 
A Marshall queried whether some of the work was dependent upon the 
recruitment of a Financial Controller. 
 
M Thomas referred to the difficulties that had been encountered in the labour 
market to recruit a Financial Controller, however the work would be picked up 
by himself and his team. 
 
The Internal Audit Tracker Report brought together all of the existing actions for 
the SYMCA and PTE.  There were currently four actions which had reached the 
implementation dates and were now reported as overdue.  One medium risk 
was brought to the attention of the Committee in relation to the implementation 
of the new CRM system for concessionary travel passes.  Management had 
requested to extend the implementation date to the end of March 2022, and 
assurance had been given that this date was achievable.  Approval was sought 
from the Committee to extend the date.  The three low risk items which were 
overdue related to the updates of the contract procedural rules which would be 
encompassed as part of the integration.  The high risk item was also linked to 
the implementation date for the CRM system. 
 
In relation to the superseded recommendations, A Marshall queried whether 
the recommendations were negotiated by the Management and then 
superseded. 
 
Members noted that in relation to the two low risk items, one related to the 
duplication of actions regarding the procurement review and the contract 
procedure rules, with one recommendation to the SYMCA and the other to the 
PTE which had been brought together as one action.  The other superseded 
action related to the core financial controls audit that had been undertaken last 
year; the action had not been reported again this year as an issue. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee noted the progress of 2021/22 audit activity 
undertaken by Grant Thornton for:- 
 

Page 14



 

i) Joint MCA and SYPTE audits. 
 

ii) MCA audits. 
 
SYPTE audits. 
 

16 Integration Update 
 

 A report was presented which reported on the assurance activity for the 
Integration Programme. 
  
Members noted the two key milestones which were set out within the 
Programme Plan for Integration:- 
  
i)        Integration of two organisations into a single MCA Executive (operational 

by 1 April 2022).  Matters were on track to achieve the timescale. 
  

ii)      Legal dissolution of the PTE via a statutory order (by 31 March 2022).  This 
would not be achieved by the timescale of 31 March 2022, as the 
Government was unable to progress to dissolve the PTE prior to the May 
2022 elections. 

  
RESOLVED – That the Committee considered the report and verbal update 
provided by the Chair of the Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory Panel in 
seeking assurance on the progress towards integration. 
 

17 Breach of Controls Report 
 

 A report was submitted which provided the details on occasions where the CPR 
rules had been breached.  Providing transparency on breaches afforded the 
Committee oversight on potential control weaknesses and supported learning. 
  
The report noted that since the last reporting date there had been no new 
identified breaches. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Committee noted the report. 
 

18 Committee Work Plan 2021/22 
 

 The Committee considered the updated Work Plan for 2021/22 with a view to 
seeking any additional items for inclusion. 
 
Dr Adams noted the request to look at HR indicators and any associated risks 
with the performance dashboard. 
ACTION:-  Dr Adams 
 
T Taylor commented that it would be helpful to know the format that the 
Committee wished to be reported back on regarding the advisory piece on 
community transport. 
 
Councillor Lofts suggested that the matter should be taken to the Audit, 
Standards and Risk Advisory Panel in the first instance. 

Page 15



 

 
RESOLVED – That Members reviewed the Work Plan for 2021/22 and agreed 
any changes or additional items to be scheduled. 
 
Any Other Business 
 
M Thomas referred to EY’s final report on their external audit of the statutory 
accounts for 2020/21.  The Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory Panel had 
noted the additional fees that were sought by EY.  M Thomas and G Sutton had 
agreed that two of the three components being Value for Money and Pensions 
were fair to be paid, but not the Pricing for Quality which had been referred 
onto the Public Sector Auditor Appointments Body.  He sought the Chair’s 
approval to circulate the final audit report onto Members following the meeting.  
He recommended that the Committee supported the suggestion to pay for the 
Value for Money and Pensions components, but not the Pricing for Quality. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee:- 
 
i) Agreed that the Value for Money and Pensions components be paid. 

 
Agreed that the Pricing for Quality component should not be paid, and should 
be referred onto the Public Sector Auditor Appointments Body. 
 

 
 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 16



 

N:\Policy_Development\Governance\Meetings\Audit Standards and Risk Committee\2022\2022 03 24\07  
Matters Arising_Action Log v2.docx 

 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Actions and Matters Arising from the  
SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee  

held on 27 January 2022 
 

Minute 
No 

Action  Action 
Owner 

Status/Update  

From 
October 
2021 

Work Plan 
Whilst mindful of the extremely busy 
forthcoming agendas, the Chair 
referred to the need for environmental 
matters to be considered as part of the 
work programme. 
 
R Adams to liaise with the Chair as to 
how best to incorporate environmental 
updates into the Work Plan. 
 
January 2021 Update: 
Richard Sulley (Net Zero Project 
Director) convened an officer Task and 
Finish Group to review the report. 
Agreed a significant piece of work that 
impacts on processes, paper in 
development to come to Management 
Board for consideration.  
After this meeting will be arranged with 
the Chair.   
 

Ruth Adams/ 
Councillor 
Lofts 

Update:   
Climate Change Risk Paper 
placed on Work Plan for 
June 2022 
 

9 Health and Safety Report Update 
 
Minute:  T Taylor to ascertain whether 
there was any SYMCA litigation that 
had resulted from accidents with the 
operators. 

Tim Taylor Information supplied by 
Tim Taylor: 
 
29 October 2020 – Male 
lost his balance and fell on 
the steps at Barnsley 
Interchange. Liability has 
been denied.   
 

Page 17



 

N:\Policy_Development\Governance\Meetings\Audit Standards and Risk Committee\2022\2022 03 24\07  
Matters Arising_Action Log v2.docx 

Minute 
No 

Action  Action 
Owner 

Status/Update  

9 July 2021 – Young male 
lost his footing at Barnsley 
Interchange.  Investigation 
is ongoing with our 
insurers.  We anticipate our 
insurers will deny liability in 
this matter. 
 

15 Internal Audit Reports 
 
Minute:  In response to a number of 
queries raised by Members regarding 
the difficulties encountered in reading 
the reports on their devices, L 
Mackenzie would ascertain whether 
the documents could be produced in a 
more easier to read format. ACTION:- 
L Mackenzie 
 

Lisa 
Mackenzie 

Grant Thornton use 
standard format for reports, 
as supplied to SYMCA for 
publication.   
 
Democratic Services team 
to provide printed versions 
of reports on the day of the 
meeting. 

18 Committee Work Plan 2021/22 
 
Dr Adams noted the request to look at 
HR indicators and any associated risks 
with the performance dashboard. 
 

Ruth Adams Is being scheduled for Q3 
on the Forward Plan to 
enable a new baseline / 
reporting approach to be 
established for the 
integrated organisation in 
Q1-Q2 

 

Page 18



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Risk Management  
 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public?    No 
  
Purpose of this report: 
 

                   Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Funding Stream:                          Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                                       No        
 
Has it been included on the Forward Plan?                     Not a Key Decision 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Liz Morris, Interim Risk Manager 
Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

Executive Summary: 
This paper provides an update on the corporate risks of the Mayoral Combined Authority 
(MCA), which have been devised and reviewed over the preceding months.  Management 
Board re-considered the Corporate Risk Register again during a meeting dedicated to the 
topic of Governance in February 2022.  The latest version of the Corporate Risk Register 
is attached as Appendix A. 
 
This paper provides the Audit, Standards & Risk Committee (ASRC) with a narrative 
summary setting out key activity the MCA is taking against the high and medium/high 
corporate risks facing the MCA.   
 
Additionally, we attach, as Appendix B, the proposed final version of the Risk 
Management Framework document including a Risk Appetite Statement, which has been 
prepared following a specific request from members of the ASRC.  A heatmap and bar 
chart have also been created to respond to a request from ASRC members and are 
included in the body of this paper.   
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire? 
Effective risk management is a key principle of good governance and decision making, 
which enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire. 
 
 Page 19

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


Recommendations:   
In line with the ASRC Work Plan, this paper provides the Risk Management Update 
Report for consideration at the March 2022 meeting.  ASRC members are asked to note 
the updated position, agree the use of the Risk Management Framework incorporating the 
Risk Appetite Statement and raise any questions considered necessary.   
 
It is worthy of note that a number of the Actions within the Corporate Risk Register fall due 
at the end of the 2021-22 financial year or very early in 2022-23 and it is anticipated that 
the next ASRC report will include additional narrative relating to actions planned to 
conclude in March and April 2022.   
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
  
1. Background  
1.1 Following a full internal Management Board review and an Internal Audit Report in 

2020, the Risk Management Framework of the MCA was revised and refreshed.  
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee endorsed the revised policy and process 
in October 2020 and, following their recommendation, it was approved and adopted 
by the MCA at their meeting in November 2020. 
 
Risk Management documentation and processes have been refreshed again as 
part of the Integration to bring together the MCA and the PTE.  A refreshed Risk 
Management Framework document has been devised taking account of the good 
practice of both the PTE and MCA, comparable organisations and risk 
management standards and guidelines.  The Framework document was approved 
at the last ASRC in January 2022 prior to inclusion of a Risk Appetite Statement. 
 
Also, in January 2022, the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee (ASRC) agreed to 
stand down the previous MCA risk registers and replace with the Corporate Risk 
Register, attached as Appendix A to this paper.   
 
As part of the dialogue with members of the ASRC a suggestion was made to 
prepare and utilise a Risk Appetite Statement, that has now been prepared.  
Management Board have agreed its use, at a meeting in February 2022.  The Risk 
Appetite Statement is now included as an Appendix to the Risk Management 
Framework document (Appendix B to this paper).  
 
We have also taken account of additional feedback from ASRC members to reach 
the proposed final version of the Framework document and processes.   

  
2. Visual Summary  
2.1 The graph and heatmap below provide a visual summary of the corporate risks and 

take forward a request from the ASRC to include dashboard information.   
 
As we progress the refresh and build a technical risk management solution the 
intention is to develop electronic dashboard functionality to facilitate and present 
information in different visual formats.   
 
Bar Chart 
The following bar chart demonstrates the volume of risks and respective ratings by 
strategic group.  The group with the greatest volume of risk is Policy.  The group 
with the greatest volume of high-level risks is Transport.  Commissioned Operations 

Page 20



and Delivery contains two medium/high risks.  Further information relating to the 
high-level risks is recorded in section 3 of this paper. 

  

 
  

 
 

Heat Map 
The following heat map provides a visual representation of the position of the risks 
within the probability impact scoring grid.  There are two high level risks and four 
medium/high.  Further information relating to the six risks is recorded within section 
3 below.   
 

5. Critical 
1 3 2 2  

4. Serious  2 2   

3. Moderate  2 1   

2. Minor 
1 3    

1. Immaterial  1  1  

  1. Highly 
Unlikely 

2. 
Unlikely 

3. Possible 4. Probable 
5. Highly 
Probable 

 

  
3 Corporate Risk Reporting 
  
3.1 High and Medium/High Risks 
 The majority of the most significant corporate risks that are categorised as high and 

medium/high relate to public transport.  The key aspects are consistent with the 
January ASRC paper and the end of the financial year provides a key milestone 
date for three of the transport risks including those focused on recovery funding and 
the enhanced partnership.  At the time of writing this paper the key aspects are: 

  
 Risk #008 Recovery Funding 

Bus and light rail recovery funding is in place and has very recently been confirmed 
to October 2022.  At this stage there is no certainty on the quantum that will be 
received by the region, nor any conditions of funding.  Engagement with officials, to 
influence their considerations and the decision-making process, are continuing.   

Page 21



 
Given the continued uncertainty with medium to long term funding and the 
considerable challenges associated with the previous advice to work from home, 
coupled with cost inflation, operators are likely to plan for the worse-case scenario.  
This is leading to additional operator decisions to withdraw services across the four 
constituent areas. 
 
Risks #009 and #010 Enhanced Partnership 
Future funding for bus has been linked to the development and implementation of 
the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP).  The Transport and the Environment 
Board approved the submission of the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) to the 
DfT on 29 October 2021.  This sets out the region’s long-term ambitions for the bus 
network and was informed by the recommendations from the Bus Review.  A 
funding decision is expected from government, in the first half of 2022. 
 
The initial BSIP is intended to become a finalised Enhanced Partnership Plan, 
subject to due process and consultation.  Following approval by the MCA in 
November 2021, we issued a formal notice to the bus operators informing them of 
our intention to enter a Statutory Enhanced Partnership, and to consult them on our 
Enhanced Partnership Plan (EPP) and Scheme (EPS).  This statutory 28-day 
consultation process closed on 16 December 2021.   
 

A public consultation of our EPP and EPS started in early January 2022 and ran to 
the end of February 2022.  Approximately 1200 responses have been received and 
at the time of writing, analysis is being undertaken.  A final decision to make an 
Enhanced Partnership Scheme, from April 2022, will be put to the MCA in March 
2022. 
 
Risk #011 Tram Services 
Work is ongoing to develop options for the end of the existing tram concession as 
part of the Light Rail Development Programme, which has been established.  A 
Programme Director has been appointed on an interim basis to develop and deliver 
the programme.  Governance arrangements have been developed and the initial 
key milestones have been identified.  The MCA Chief Executive and a small group 
of senior leaders and key employees are meeting weekly to discuss and drive 
progress forward on this major MCA programme and key risk area. 
 
Tram Sustainability Plans, aligned to medium and long-term needs, continue to be 
developed and will be subject to the MCA assurance and decision-making process 
with an aim of a paper to the MCA Board in June 2022.  Planning the activity is 
happening now and resources will need to be mobilised, subject to budget 
availability.  The implementation of the contents of the plans will take several years 
to conclude in line with the five-year programme. 
 
Financial reporting to the Board has flagged growing concern around the MCA’s 
exposure to the tram’s operating performance from 2024 onwards. 
 
Risk #021 Adult Education Budget  
An additional medium high-level risk has been recorded and is being reported into 
the ASRC, this relates to the Adult Education Budget (AEB).  Analysis of provider 
performance data, at the mid-year point, has identified underperformance against 
each of the four procured AEB lots.  This has led to the addition of a risk focused on 
provider delivery at the end of the academic year failing to achieve the intended 
benefits for South Yorkshire and its people.   

Page 22



 
Performance monitoring visits are currently being undertaken to gain a clear 
understanding of the AEB position, at a provider level, in order to define appropriate 
mitigation action to address the risk prior to the academic year end.  Additionally, an 
evaluation exercise is to be commissioned, which is intended to lead to 
enhancements to existing processes to be applied to planning provision 
requirements and commissioning for 2022/23 academic year.   
 
Risk #015 Cyber Security  
Work is ongoing to achieve Cyber Essentials Accreditation and develop internal 
reporting.  The actions recorded to manage the risk are due in April 2022, we will 
provide further update in June 2022.   

  
3.2 Financial risks #018 Financial Health and #020 Supply Chain 

 The financial sensitivities within the environment in which the MCA operates, 
including the global and national supply chain pressures, impact on MCA delivery 
mechanisms and result in cost inflation and time delays.  Whilst this is primarily 
driven by the pandemic and a pressure, which is being experienced more widely 
and is therefore not isolated to the MCA a financial update has been provided for 
ASRC. 
 
The impact of the inflationary environment has become clearer and begun to 
emerge as a risk.  In particular, the cost of buying back the existing portfolio of bus 
tendered services is now expected to be considerably more than current values. 
This cost escalation will impact upon policy choices and dimmish the MCA’s wider 
financial resilience to macro sustainability risks and the expected growth. 
 
Inflationary pressures will exacerbate the prevailing concerns around the 
sustainability of the existing tram network. The MCA has agreed a second transport 
levy freeze for the forthcoming year, following a decade of reductions. This, along 
with forecast concessionary fare savings and the release of previously earmarked 
reserves will provide the basis of a financial mitigation package. That package will 
support a transition to a more commercial sustainable model but is in itself 
unsustainable in the longer-term. 
 
The MCA has finalised its Business Planning processes and Budget exercise for 
2022-23.  This has provided an opportunity to align resource to the key challenges 
and priorities for the new year.  There remain a number of key risks around at-risk 
funding streams, clarity over which has not yet been received.  The Business Plan 
and budgets may need to be adjusted should risks around these crystalise in the 
new year.  Performance monitoring will also be a standing item for management to 
consider.  
 

 Legislation that will confer the power for the MCA to borrow for its non-transport 
activity is currently progressing through Parliament following the consents received 
by the South Yorkshire local authorities. Application of these powers will be subject 
to a consultation launched by Government on the Capital Framework, and in 
particular the approach to providing for debt repayments. This consultation is of 
importance to the MCA’s emerging Investment Strategy, and the MCA and partners 
have made representation to Government on proposals. 

  
4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 Not applicable 

Page 23



5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:   
  
5.1 Not applicable 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no specific financial risk implications however, failure to effectively 

manage risk could have significant financial and reputational implications and for 
the MCA. 

  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no human resources implications as a result of this report. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of this report. 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no ICT implications as a result of this report. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice 

 
12.1 There are no communications or marketing implications as result of this report. 
  
List of Appendices Included 
A Corporate Risk Register  
B Risk Management Framework including the Risk Appetite Statement  
   

Background Papers: 
n/a 
 

Page 24



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

Mar-22

Risk 

Ref.

Date 

Raised

Category Owner Probability

1 - 5

Low - High 

Impact

1 - 5

Low to High

Risk Score Existing Controls  Probability 

1 - 5

Low to High

Impact

1 - 5

Low to High

Risk Score Action Due date 

00/00/00

001 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 3 5 15 a. Engaging with Government officials to shape proposed policy priorities and shifts.

b. Ongoing horizon scanning- to monitor the situation and respond quickly.

c.  Leadership of the M10 network and knowledge sharing with other CAs.

2 5 10 a. The Devolution White Paper has been published, in January 2022, and we are 

working through the impact with an intial paper to the MCA in March. 

a. 31.03.2022 

002 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 3 5 15 a. Development and agreement of the Investment Strategy with the four LAs.

b. In the process of securing the borrowing powers to maximise funding.

c. The corporate policy is embedded to include its guardianship of the SEP.

d. Closer monitoring of the SEP outcomes, the Corporate Plan outcomes and development and 

delivery of the Business Planning framework.  

2 5 10 a. The Business Planning process is in progress and the initial 2022-23 Business 

Plans are drafted and to be finalised.  

a. 31.03.2022 

003 11.01.22 Policy Dave Smith 3 5 15 a. An Elections Manager has been recruited to deliver the election process.

b. Lessons learned sessions carried out with election managers in the four LA and additional control 

added to the process.

c. Covid secure election process being developed.

d. QC call off support on standby should it be needed.

e. Election level risk register in place. 

2 5 10 a. Covid secure election process continually under review due to the national rule 

changes.

b. A contractor has been appointed to print and issue the election booklet, 

containing the mayoral addresses, a requirement of the legilation.                  

c.Prepayments have been made to all returning officers.

a. Ongoing

b. 13 April 2022

004 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 4 2 8 a. Government has clarified the role of LEPs in MCAs and this aligns well with the integrated model 

of the SY MCA and LEP

b. We have built into our thematic boards members from the private sector to ensure that we 

maintain their insight to influence our role and activity to meet the needs of business and the 

communities we serve.  

4 1 4 a. To reconsider when the LEP Review is concluded and the outcome received and 

considered.  

tbc

005 11.01.22 Policy Jim Dillon 3 4 12 a. development of inclusion plan setting out clear actions with owners and resource levels to take 

forward the policy objective as one.

b. Inclusion has been hard wired into project development through business case processes.

c. agreeing a set of eligibility conditions (by end of March 22)and principles for an employers 

charter,  by 31 March 2022, which will become part of the performance monitoring 

d. A new Skills Strategy is being written, by 31 August 2022

2 2 4 Skills Strategy development ongoing, to be drawn up and adopted, by August 2022. 01.09.22

006 11.01.22 Policy Martin Swales 3 5 15 a. The MCA strategy requires that the Net Zero response runs through our core programmes.  

Consequently, we are building de-carbonisation into allocation requirements for the Renewal Fund.

b. Working with partners / stakeholders to develop projects that take account of de-carbonisation.  

For CRSTS schemes our submissions and proposals are being scrutinised by Government to ensure 

sustainability is demonstrated, which is a core aspect of the programme.  

3 4 12 a. We are actively working with Sheffield University to develop regional data to 

understand the impact of our (& partners) programmes and projects to understand 

the current position and baseline. 

b. The most impactful interventions to focus the renewal fund upon are being 

determined through our work with partners e.g. should we carry out additional tree 

planting and promotion and usage of green power.

c. Integrating our response to net zero and climate emergency into investment 

decision making processes.   

01.04.22

007 11.01.22 Commisioned 

Operations and 

Delivery

Martin Swales 4 5 20 a.  Actions to implement the recommendations of the recent independent BPR implemented 

through the refreshed Assurance Framework, including work to establish a feasibility/ 

development fund.  

b. Immediate resource planning for the next stage submission of CRSTS, deadline January 2022.

c. Working with Finance to support LAs in developing and submitting project proposals efficiently 

for CRSTS by April 2022 (to note CRSTS proposals are made up of 80-100 individual projects).

3 5 15 a. Employee to be released from BSIP and EP to focus on mechanisms and 

streamlining process and working with LA partners. 

b. Continue to work with Finance to LA submissions to create a pipeline of activity.

c. Additional team members to support the work will be requested through the 

annual business planning process.

d. Agreeement reached with the MCA for disbursal of the CRSTS revenue grant

01.04.22

008 11.01.22 Transport  Steve Edwards 5 5 25 a. Ongoing dialogue with officials and ministers to shape the existing and future proposals.

b. Recovery funding secured until October 2022 

c. Continue payment of concessions at pre-COVID rates until April 2022

d. Adjustments to pre-COVID rates proportionate to network mileage to allow underspend to be 

retained and potentially used for future network protection.

e. Service change/consultation process in place with operators to ensure early notice of potential 

changes.                                                                                                                                    f. Maintenance 

of Protection of Priority Services Reserve to support short-term mitigations

4 5 20 a. Continue to press government for clarity on future funding arrangements

b. Working with bus operators to identify services at most risk of reduction and 

prepare prioritised list of services for consideration.

c. Engaging with SYSL on future tram service pattern from April 2022.

d. Rolling patronage forecast  to inform likely service levels 

e. Agree future arrangements for a return to concessionary payments (based on 

actuals) and opportunity to recycle any underspend to support services

f. Commencing stakeholder engagement on likely service changes and prioritisation 

of available resource

g. 

01.04.22

009 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 3 5 15 a. Operators and key stakeholders have been engaged through the development of the BSIP 

b. Consultation process in place covering operators, key stakeholders and public

c. Ongoing engagement with DfT officials on EP progress

2 4 8 a. Public consultation commenced Jan-22

b. EP implementation plan being delivered

c. EP Governance arrangements being developed

d. Formal report to make EP scheduled for Mar MCA

01.04.22

010 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 3 5 15 a. EP scheme developed based on available funding

b. Stakeholder comms setting expectations around deliverable improvements shared and approved 

(MCA/TEB/STOB)

c. Ability to add/amend EP Scheme(s) if further funding becomes available.

3 3 9 a. Formal confirmation from DfT of CRSTS schemes that can support bus 

improvement - subject to final approval from DfT/HMT/No10

b. Continue to lobby DfT officials/ministers for BSIP funding support - decision 

expected Feb-22

c. Explore alternative funding sources as they become available (e.g. LUF, ZEBRA)

d. Submission of ZEBRA bid for EV vehicles end Jan-22

Ongoing

011 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 5 5 25 a. Appointment of an Interim Programme Director (IPD)- Light Rail Transport Operation.                          

b. Light Rail Development Programme established and key milestones identified

c. Governance arrangements established to oversee the programme of work (Concession end, 

Financial Sustainability, Asset Renewal and Future Vision)

d. Reporting and engagement plan established encompassing Management Board, SY Chief Execs, 

TEB and MCA                                                                                                                                   e. Tram 

Project Reserve created to support readiness activity.

4 5 20 a. Develop analysis of options for concession end 

b. Briefing to key stakeholders on options and risks/benefits

c. Prepare a briefing paper on options for consideration by MCA - Mar-22

01.04.22

012 11.01.22 Organisational Steve 

Davenport

2 5 10 a. Health and safety policy and procedures in place and audited by independent H&S advisor.

b. Training provided to all staff.

c. Appropriate maintenance contracts in place to undertake fabric and M&E repairs and inspections 

as required.

d. Monitoring of incidents and near misses undertaken, quarterly reports presented to 

Management Board and the ASRC.

e. Health and Safety in Transport Deep Dive with independent members of ASRC. 

1 5 5 a. Job descriptions will be amended to ensure role responsibilities are set out to 

strengthen MCA controls.

TBC

013 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 3 3 9 a. structure developed, agreed and communicated.

b. operating model to shape internal responsibilities and ways of working agreed and 

communicated

c. Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and 

accountabilities

d. Annual business planning cycle will consider any resourcing gaps or risk areas

2 2 4 a. Work on corporate culture and values in process of being designed and delivered

b. Work on a Management Offer outlined to the organisation will be implemented 

and monitored

TBC

Net Zero, Sustainability/ Climate Change

Inability to galvanise the required level of support, 

consensus and leadership across the region, from our 

partners and stakeholders both private and public, leads to a 

fragmented approach, which results in failing to achieve the 

net zero target, by 2040.  

Organisational Design

The organisational transformation linked to the integration 

of the MCA and PTE organisations, leads to confusion in the 

structure and ways of working, resulting in inability to 

deliver the outcomes outlined in the  economic plan and in 

the Corporate Plan

Recovery Funding and Low Patronage

Reduced/terminated recovery funding from central 

government and lower levels of patronage results in an 

unviable transport system.

Enhanced Partnership

Failing to agree an Enhanced Partnership with bus operators 

and stakeholders leading to the withdrawal of DfT funding. 

Enhanced Partnership

Insufficient funding to deliver meaningful service 

improvements through Enhanced Partnership/BSIP 

Tram Services

Failing to reach a timely agreement on the future operating 

model for tram services beyond the current operating 

concession exposes the MCA to  operational transport risks 

resulting in financial and  capability and capacity pressures. 

Health and Safety

A major accident or injury occurs involving SYMCA assets and 

/ or people, leads to regulator intervention, resulting in 

liability and adverse impact on the workforce, budgets and 

reputation of the MCA.

Transport

The award of the CRSTS programme funding will provide 

related regional capital funds for five years from April 2022 

and will be closely monitored by DfT . The Risk is that the 

capacity and capability in the region is insufficient to deliver 

extensive projects in the programme within timescale, with 

the potential damage to the reputation of the MCA and 

Mayor.    

Inclusion 

Dispersed strategic level ownership of the Inclusion policy 

objective, leads to drift in direction, resulting in delayed 

and/or ineffectual delivery mechanisms and inefficient use of 

resources. 

Growth

The LEP Review changes the role of the LEP, in a way that 

hinders the MCA Growth imperative, resulting in the policy 

objective and strategy being undermined.

Strategic Economic Plan 

We lose focus on delivering the SEP, and its direction of 

travel to regenerate the economy, as a consequence of 

resource levels, external and unanticipated pressures.

Appendix A

Mayoral Election

We fail to deliver the election in accordance with the 

legislation, leading to a potential legal challenge of the 

result, concluding in lack of public confidence in it and 

reputational damage.

Risk Description

Policy Change

Changes to the political and policy operating environment, 

lead to a shift in regional priorities, resulting in disruption to 

the prospects of achieving our mission e.g. Devolution White 

Paper or Mayoral Election.   

Pre-response assessment (inherent) Current risk assessment (residual)

P
age 25



014 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 2 3 6 a. Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and 

accountabilities and a corporate business plan / resource plan in development to match resources 

to priorities. 

b. Introduction of a HR Business Partnering approach to work closely with teams to enable early 

identification of emerging risks or issues in capacity. 

c. Workforce data reported to Management Board and employee engagement surveys in place to 

provide feedback from the workforce 

1 2 2 a. Work on alternative approaches to recruitment to secure talent into the 

organisation to be developed and actions agreed

Ongoing

015 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 5 5 2500% a. Anti virus software, updated hourly, installed across all infrastructure. 

b. Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, installed and always evolving to address current threats, 

covers email filtering to identify and block impersonators and filtering attachments for 

abnormalities for the IT team to check prior to release.  

c. Web-filtering to restrict and prohibit unauthorised access and data loss.

d. An IT Policy exists and is updated as necessary, last updated in 2021. 

e. Password policy exists implementing good practice to build strong access controls including 

multi-factor authentication. 

f. Activity monitoring takes place including how people access the system.  

g. Phishing attacks, internal testing takes place.

h. Software patching takes place to ensure software updates are carried out.

i. Annual outsourced penetration testing, which is part of the Cyber Essentials requirements.

j. Physical security enhancements including restricting a non employee plugging a laptop into MCA 

network.   

3 5 15 a. Achieve Cyber Essentials accreditation.  

b. Enhance Management Board reporting of attacks and their management. 

c. Enhance employee awareness and reporting of current threat types, volume and 

attacks prohibited.  

a. 01.04.22

b. 01.04.22

c. 01.04.22

016 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 3 3 9 a. Programme Structures applied including Senior Responsible Officer, Programme Manager and 

establishment of leads for individual strands.

b. Programme, work package monitoring takes place and reporting is in place including change 

management, highlight reports and risks and issues logs presented to a Programme Board.

c. An independently appointed strategic partner supported the development of the programme 

and on-going independent check and challenge is in place at the Programme Board

d. Oversight and scrutiny of the programme is enhanced as programme papers are presented to 

the ASRC. 

e. Review of existing processes that will need to continue as the order to formally dissolve the PTE 

and transfer associated powers and  responsibilities to the MCA is delayed has taken place. 

2 1 2 a. Continue to monitor and refine the work plan to ensure integration meets the 

planned milestones

a. 31.03.22

017 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 3 9 a. An internal cross discipline team is shaping the strategy through work with internal and external 

colleagues 

b. A four point engagement plan is underway with external partners 

c. The MCA has authorised acceptance of a borrowing cap and consents to the tabling of legislation 

which is now progessing through Parliament

d. An interim plan has been designed setting our core principles, indicative investment sequencing, 

with resource made available to deliver investment plans and delivery ready investments

e. The outcomes of the BPR workstream and steering group are beginning to be folded into the 

overall Strategy

2 3 6 a. The interim plan will formally be adopted by Board in March

b. Work will continue to develop Place Based Investment Plans and 

Transformational Plans

c. Work will continue on the operationalisation of the Plans, including borrowing 

principles

d. Negotiation with HM Treasury on the borrowing cap for financial year 2022/23 

wil commence immnently

a. 31.01.22

b. 31.03.22

c. 31.03.22

d. 31.03.22

018 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 5 15 a. The MCA Group undertakes annual integrated business and budget planning to ensure resource 

is effectively aligned to priorities 

b. The MCA Group undertakes cyclical budget monitoring to identify financial performance allowing 

for the reallocation of resource mid-year 

c. The MCA has undertaken a significant reserve refresh re-deploying resource to known risks and 

holding a prudent amount of resource to mitigate financial shock 

d. The MCA reports frequently to the Board and ensures partners remain apprised on financial 

matters through the Directors of Finance Group and Member budget engagement sessions 

2 4 8 a. The MCA continues to lobby government for ongoing financial support to the 

public transport network alongside other peer authorities 

b. The MCA continues to lobby government for the continuation of capacity funding 

for core activity alongside other peer authorities 

c. The MCA's developing Investment Strategy is couched within the context of the 

wider funding environment 

d. The MCA has completed business planning exercise for the new financial year 

and will adjust over quarter 1 to take account of the outturn position      e. Key 

medium-term risk around the future exposure to tram performance is being 

considered through the tram workstream

a-c ongoing

d. 31.03.22

019 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 2 3 6 a. The MCA sets an Annual Treasury Management Strategy that is scrutinised by the Audit 

Committee and approved by Board. This governs its approach to borrowing and debt 

b. The MCA ensures it has access to professional support via a contracted arrangement with SCC 

and Link Treasury Advisors, and internally through officers with appropriate qualifications 

c. The MCA reports on its Treasury performance to Audit Committee and Board through a forward, 

backward and mid-year review 

d. The MCA has developed good working relationships with HM Treasury officers and negotiated 

an initial borrowing cap.

2 2 4 a. The MCA is shaping its approach to its new borrowing vires through the 

Investment Strategy work

b. The MCA has engaged with HM Treasury to begin its second round of borrowing 

cap negotiations 

c. The MCA has re-set the role of SCC in supporting its borrowing activity                      

d. The MCA has engaged government on its latest Capital Financing Framework 

consultation                                                          e. The MCA has designed a new 

Treasury Management Strategy for the year that has been approved by the Audit 

and Standards Committee 

a-c 31.03.22

020 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 3 9 a. MCA seeks to ensure a broad supplier basis through open market competition 

b. The MCA has access to a number of broad framework agreements to call off, in a timely fashion 

c. The MCA conducts pre-contract financial health due-diligence on major contracts including  

seeking details of associated sub contracting and proportion of delivery / contract. 

d. The MCA holds a prudent level of reserves to mitigate financial shock.

e. Standard Supplier Questionnaire completed by potential suppliers as part of the procurement 

process to ensure consistency of procurement and information provided by bidders.  Part of it is 

backward facing seeking assurance over previous experience and therefore quality, competency 

and financial health. 

f. Rules and standards are set through the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regs

g. Evidence sought to confirm responses e.g.  payment terms sought and Insurance levels  

h. When bids received, further analysis is undertaken on the accounts and specifically around 

liquidity and the proportion of turnover which is MCA generated.  

i. The applicant is risk assessed and decisions made on that basis.

j. Appropriate security to cover risk is considered for example a charge may be applied on land or 

property as security for a loan.

2 3 6 a. Internal Audit have tested supplier resilience and offered a number of 

recommendations that will be implemented 

b. New contract function to ensure the financial health of key suppliers is tested in 

contract as well as pre contract to provide early warning.

c. MCA to continue to broaden its supplier base through more effective market 

engagement. 

d. Business Continuity Plans to be re-tested for loss of key suppliers.

e. Work is ongoing with project sponsors to test the forecast cost of schemes 

effected by supply chain pressures.

01.07.22

021 24.02.2022 Commissioned 

Operations and 

Delivery

Jim Dillon 

Gareth Sutton

4 4 16 a. Performance monitoring meetings with all providers are underway to understand planned 

delivery volumes and their delivery intentions.

b. Performance reporting to Management Board has taken place to highlight the current delivery 

challenges. 

c.  Funding & Performance Rules set out the conditions of funding and how underperformance will 

be addressed.                                                                                                d. The MCA has audit step in 

rights should it need to undertake more robust reviews             e. The MCA has some options to 

redeploy funding away from underperforming areas where necessary

3 4 12 a. Further performance analysis is being undertaken at the mid-year point to test 

outputs achieved to-date and forecast to the end of the programme.

b. Performance analysis and monitoring will inform remedial actions.

c. An options paper to be prepared and shared with Manamgement Board and 

presented to the Skills Board and the MCA. 

d. Evaluation of 2021/22 approach to determining the required provision and 

commissioning processes.

tbc

Cyber Security

Increase in the number of cyber-attacks, due to the 

pandemic, may lead to penetration resulting in operational 

disruption, data corruption, systems outage and loss of 

finances.

Integration 

We fail to effect the integration to a single way of working, 

which may lead to further disruption and uncertainty, 

resulting in loss of employees and the benefits being 

unachieved.

Investment Strategy

Failure to agree an Investment Strategy, leads to calls for the 

inefficient use of funding, impacting on our ability to 

restructure the South Yorkshire economy.

Financial Health

The MCA does not have the quantum, breadth, and flexibility 

of funding to deliver on all its activities, leading to 

unsustainable calls on reserves. Structural funding issues are 

exacerbated by the inflationary environment and disruption 

to commercial income streams

Supply Chain

The MCA experiences supply chain failure/disruption either 

from a contracted supplier entering into financial distress 

and/or an insolvency event, the market being unable to 

provide services, or the market being unable to deliver 

services at contracted prices. This disrupts provision of 

service, leads to delays, cost pressures, and reputational 

damage. 

Borrowing

The MCA receives new borrowing vires which exposes it to 

new financial risk around exposure to interest rates and debt 

management and also a new compliance regime that 

requires HM Treasury consents for annual borrowing caps

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

Performance monitoring of AEB provider delivery has 

identified areas of underperformance within the 

programme, this may lead to a failure to deliver all of the 

planned academic year outputs for the region and its people, 

resulting in not capitalising on the benefits of the devolution 

deal and reputational challenges to the MCA and partners.  

Workforce Planning 

Inadequate planning for future resource needs, leads to a 

reactive approach, resulting in an overstretched and under 

resourced workforce. 

P
age 26



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 1 of 15 
 

 

Risk Management Framework      Appendix B 
VERSION 0.1 DATE January 2022 

 

 

Page 27



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 2 of 15 
 

Document Control: 
 

Version Date  Brief Summary of Changes Author 

1 06/01/21 First draft prepared Liz Morris 
2 Click or tap to 

enter a date. 

  

3 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

4 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

5 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

6 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

7 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

8 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

9 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

10 Click or tap to 
enter a date. 

Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here  

 

  

Page 28



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 3 of 15 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 
 

Introduction  
Risk management is a planned and systematic approach to the identification, evaluation, prioritisation 
and control of risks and opportunities facing an organisation.  Effective risk management is an integral 
part of good corporate governance and internal control arrangements and should be a part of everyday 
management processes across any organisation.  
 
South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) is committed to ensuring that robust risk 
management arrangements are in place and operating effectively across the organisation.  This is 
particularly important as transformation takes place and the two organisations integrate to bring together 
different process and ways of working to harmonise to a single operating model.  Management Board will 
champion risk management and ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place, maintained and 
reported upon on a regular on-going basis.   
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which is applicable to the MCA contains provisions on 
financial management, annual accounts, internal control and audit procedures, which require a sound 
system of internal control to be maintained, which includes the effective arrangements for the 
management of risk.  The Regulations require, as part of the financial control systems measures to 
ensure that risk is appropriately managed. 
 
This framework sets out the MCA approach to risk management, the roles and responsibilities and 
provides a proportionate process.  The structured approach considers the maturity of the organisation, in 
terms of risk management knowledge and the operational challenges the organisation faces.  As part of 
the approach to developing and defining this framework, and as part of good project management, a 
post implementation review should be undertaken approximately six months to one year after 
implementation.  This should consider if risk management is operating as intended and, where 
necessary, adjust this framework and operating process to acknowledge the harmonised operational 
status of the organisation. 
 

Risk Management Definitions 
There are many definitions of risk, which fundamentally have at their heart that risk is the effect of 
uncertainty on objectives.  The technical recording of risk is expressed in terms of the cause(s), potential 
event(s) and the consequence(s).   

• Cause, has the potential to lead to risk(s).  This can be structured as ‘due to’. 

• Event, something planned that doesn’t happen or something not expected which happens.  This 
may be structured as ‘there is a risk that’ or ‘leads to’. 

• Consequence, the outcome of an event affecting objectives.  This may be structured as ‘results 
in’. 

 
Risk Management is the co-ordinated activities designed and operated to manage risk and exercise 
internal control within an organisation. 
 
The core of the above has been taken from the Orange Book, as defined in 2020, and it should be noted 
that a risk can be based on a threat or an opportunity. 
 

Effective Risk Management and its Benefits 

The Management Board of the MCA agrees to embed effective risk management throughout the 
organisation by: 

• ensuring this structured and consistent approach to the management of risk is embedded and 
risk management roles and responsibilities are built into the structure and its reporting lines. 
 

• using the approach to facilitate effective prioritisation of resource. 
 

• using data and management information to build up a full picture of risks to facilitate good 
decision making and continuous improvement. 
 

Page 29



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 4 of 15 
 

• ensuring continuous review of risks and mitigations takes place and risk management 
performance is reported on regularly. 
 

• ensuring that all risks are managed at the most effective and practical level and escalation takes 
place in line with the requirements.  
 

• commissioning a post implementation review in approximately six months to one year from the 
date of implementation to review and consider any lessons, whether intended benefits have been 
met and whether adjustment is required. 
 

• regularly review the framework, listen to feedback to ensure arrangements remain fit for purpose 
and risks are managed effectively.  
 

• establishing a network of risk champions and coordinators, based across the MCA, to embed the 
approach and to act as part of the centre of excellence in taking risk management forward. 
 

• embedding risk management into the annual business planning cycle. 
 

• providing user friendly risk management guidance and support based on good practice. 
 
The implementation of the above to help build effective risk management enhances management 
functions and processes within the MCA and it is a key feature of good corporate governance.  As such, 
risk management works alongside financial management, performance management and business 
planning to enhance and demonstrate transparency and accountability.  It also forms a key component 
of the delivery of the MCA’s objectives including the Strategic Economic Plan and associated delivery 
plans. 
 
Through effective risk management, the MCA can prioritise and manage both threats and opportunities 
to the delivery of objectives.  By implementing and embedding a continuous and standardised approach 
to risk management, a process is developed to prioritise resources, implement effective and 
proportionate controls to manage threats and exploit opportunities.  Consequently, the aspiration of this 
framework is that risk management becomes a fundamental and demonstratable factor of all 
management decisions taken by the MCA.   
 

  

Page 30



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 5 of 15 
 

Our approach, the Risk Management Process 
The effective risk management process is recorded below and covers each of the fundamental principles 
of the process. 

Risk Assessment  

 

 

 

 
 
Each step is considered in more detail below. 
 
Scope and Context 
Risk management in the MCA is set against the delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and the 
operations and activities the organisation takes to deliver that.  This means that risks are defined against 
the delivery of objectives that are set out within the MCA plans to lead to the achievement of the 
priorities of the SEP.  Risks may be either internal to the MCA or externally facing as work is undertaken 
with partners and stakeholders to transform the economy of South Yorkshire for its people, business and 
places.  
 
Communication and Consultation 
Communication and consultation are key attributes of this Risk Management Framework and they aim to 
assist stakeholders in understanding risk and its role as a basis on which decisions are made.  
Communication in this context will enhance awareness of risk and its management and consultation will 
take place with stakeholders to seek feedback and agreement to the content of this Framework and the 
recorded risks, which results in a framework and outputs which are co-created.  Coordination across the 
two will ensure that the information contained within the framework document and the output registers is 
relevant, accurate and timely and delivers within the context of the organisation and its operating 
environment.   
 
Risk Assessment Process 
Risk Assessment is the overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and evaluation.  The 
assessment should be systematic, iterative and take place dynamically and collaboratively considering 
the views of related stakeholders.   
 
 
 

The risk management process is broken 
down into a number of areas, in line with the 
diagram, which implies it is sequential. 
However, it is more dynamic and a 
continuous cycle of reviewing and revisiting 
the steps within the process as time and 
events impact on the delivery and 
achievement of objectives.  It is presented in 
more detail in Appendix A, Risk Management 
on a Page and within the following pages. 
 
The process has been influenced by the Risk 
Management Standard ISO 31000, The 
Orange Book, benchmarking of comparable 
organisations and the previous processes 
along with experiential knowledge of good 
practice. 
 
There can be many applications of risk 
management within the organisation 
however, the fundamental principle is to 
support the achievement of objectives.  In the 
case of the MCA this is focused on the 
delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan. 

 

Identify 

 

Risk 
Treatment 

 
OBJECTIVES 

 

Assess 

 
Mitigate  

and Control 

Scope and Context 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

Recording and Reporting 

M
o

n
ito

rin
g

 a
n

d
 R

e
v

ie
w

 

Page 31



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 6 of 15 
 

Objectives 
The business planning round for 2022-23 sets out the process for aligning the Business Plan to the 
Corporate Plan objectives and actions.  Teams are required to set out the key deliverables and 
milestones and the resourcing, budget and technical requirements needed to deliver the objectives 
recorded within the Corporate Plan.  As part of this process, risks should be identified, considered and 
recorded within the corporate risk register template (Appendix B) in line with the process recorded below.  
 
Additionally, risks may be identified outside of the business planning process and as part of everyday 
business and may be added to the register, as necessary.  
 
Risk Identification 
The risk identification step aims to identify and describe risks that may help or prevent the achievement 
of objectives e.g. what might happen that could affect that progress, it could be negative or positive i.e. 
an opportunity.   
 
There are many ways in which risks can be identified and these are often aligned with management 
processes including: 

• horizon scanning. 

• PESTLE analysis. 

• SWOT analysis considering Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats. 

• lessons learnt from experience including review of associated logs, mapped across to existing 
process, systems and delivery. 

• root cause analysis including asking why five times to each concern to reach the cause to be 
addressed. 

• Control & Risk Self-Assessment collaboratively delivered with a range of stakeholders to seek the 
views of all parties creating a rounded approach to identifying risk. 

• As part of business planning and objective setting, which means that risk management is at the 
heart of everything that is undertaken within the organisation. 

 
A useful process to help write a risk for inclusion in a risk register, board papers and more widely is to 
think about the risk in terms of the: 

• reason for occurrence, cause or ‘due to’. 

• risk itself, an event or ‘there is a risk that’.  

• consequence, the result, ‘results in’. 
 

Reason for a risk occurring  
The event or situation trigger 
(the cause / ‘due to’)  

Risk itself  
Area of   uncertainty, (what may 
happen – ‘leads to’ / ‘there is a 
risk that’) 

Consequence of the risk  
The effect should the risk 
materialise. (‘results in’) 

Flooding leads to a delay in the 
progress of a  scheme 

resulting in outcomes not   being 
realised in the timescales. 

Increased cyber attacks  leads to successful infiltration  results in operational disruption, data 
corruption, outage and financial loss. 

 
Grouping the Risks  
The following strategic groups have been established, in which the risks will be brigaded and analysed to 
develop corporate and board level reports.  It is important that each risk is allocated to an appropriate 
category as follows:  

• Policy relates to the setting of interventions to tackle specific matters to develop the strategic 
objectives of the MCA. 

• Financial relates to establishment and maintenance of financial health and wellbeing to achieve 
strategic and financial objectives.  

• Organisational relates to the structure and makeup of the organisation to deliver the objectives 
and the corporate plan. 

• Commissioned Operations and Delivery incorporates the programmes and projects of the 
MCA to deliver the objectives set for the region.  

Page 32



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 7 of 15 
 

• Legal Compliance and Regulation relates to the obligations the MCA is required to adhere to 
including the upholding of laws, statutes and regulations e.g. professional standards, laws 
relating to ethics, bribery, corruption and fraud. 

• Transport relates to operational transport related matters that would have historically formed part 
of the Passenger Transport Executive risk register.   

 
Assess the Risk 
Each risk should be recorded within a risk register and a template has been prepared, Appendix B. 
 
Once a risk has been identified, the risk owner will be defined within the risk register.  The risk owner is 
the person that takes responsibility for the risk and its management. 
 
The assessment of each risk is undertaken using a five by five Probability Impact Grid, as follows:   
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

5 
Critical 

5 10 15 20 25 

4 
Serious 

4 8 12 16 20 

3 
Moderate 

3 6 9 12 15 

2 
Minor 

2 4 6 8 10 

1 
Immaterial  

1 2 3 4 5 

    
1   

Highly 
Unlikely 

2 
Unlikely 

3 
Possible  

4 
Probable 

5 
Highly 

Probable 

  
Probability 

 
Once each risk has been assessed for probability and impact, an overall risk score is created by 
considering the probability of the risk occurring and also the impact if it did occur.  Simply, this requires 
the multiplication of the probability score (1-5) by the impact score (1-5) to reach an overall risk score.   
 
Further guidance on scoring is included within the matrix at Appendix C, which has been established to 
build consistency throughout the process. 
 
Mitigation and Control 
Each risk is assessed inherently, prior to any controls being applied, and again after the application of 
existing controls, captured in the risk register, to reach a current risk score.  Appendix B, the risk register 
template demonstrates the flow of this risk information.  The current risk score provides an opportunity to 
rank risks and a means of prioritising to identify those risks posing the greatest threat or opportunity to 
the organisation.   
 
Within the risk register additional actions are recorded, which are deemed necessary to reduce the risk 
exposure to an acceptable level, or to maximise the opportunity, which in turn may be used to create an 
action plan.  An action owner and delivery deadlines or timescales should also be recorded and 
monitored. 
 
Risk owners are able to monitor and review the risk register and track the actions through to completion.  
It is important that the actions are tracked to ensure that risks are treated appropriately and at the right 
time.  An action plan may also be included in reporting to directorate management teams, Management 
Board, Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and more widely.  
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 8 of 15 
 

Risk Treatment 
Once the risk has been recorded, existing controls have been established and a current risk score 
defined then a decision needs to be made as to what to do next.  The risk treatment options below 
provide the alternatives to consider: 

• Treat, take action to reduce a risk. 

• Tolerate, accept the risk. 

• Transfer, pass responsibility e.g. insurance.  

• Terminate, avoid the activity. 

• Take up, to maximise an opportunity. 

• Share, with partners e.g. public private initiatives/partnerships (PPI/PPP). 
 
Appetite  
The current risk score needs to be related to the appetite the organisation has established, setting out 
how much risk the organisation is willing to accept or tolerate.  The expectation is that a risk owner will 
manage each risk to its lowest practical level and where it is not possible to do so a risk will be escalated 
through the organisational reporting structure and ultimately to Management Board.  This is in line with 
the Recording and Reporting requirements set out below.  The Risk Appetite Statement is included as 
Appendix D and provides a guide to risk owners and employees across the MCA.   
 
A further expectation is that Management Board will guide the executive teams into action or accept / 
tolerate the current level of risk i.e. the status quo.  The reporting requirements are set out in the 
Recording and Reporting section below.  
 
Monitoring and Review 
Monitoring and Review activities are continuous and applied across all levels of the risk management 
process.  It is part of the mechanism that allows for and leads to assurance and improvement of the 
quality and effectiveness of the process, its implementation and the output e.g. risk registers.  Ongoing 
monitoring and regular review are built into the risk management process and the requirement for 
escalation is captured in the Recording and Reporting section below.   
 
The risk management framework and operating practices, once written and implemented, will be subject 
to a post implementation review to consider lessons, lead to adjustments as necessary, and to determine 
if it has achieved the intended benefits.  This will take place approximately 6 months to one year after 
implementation and is in line with good practice for system development activity.   
 
Subsequently, the framework and outputs will be subject to an annual review for similar purposes i.e. 
learning lessons leading to the preparation of a Management Board presentation and a paper to the 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee as part of an annual report. 
 
Recording and Reporting 
Regular reporting is required to track risks and to demonstrate that action is being taken to manage the 
risks and that this is regularly taking place.  It allows the  MCA to respond to situations as they arise and 
make appropriate decisions to avoid issues before they happen.  This forms a key aspect of the 
organisation’s approach to governance.  
 
The requirement is that the risk management process and output will be documented and reported 
through appropriate mechanisms, in line with the table below and the arrangements for governance of 
the process and its output.  Escalation and de-escalation of risks is in line with the table below:   
 

Score 
 

Rating Monitoring and Review and Recording and Reporting *  

16-25  High 1 - 3 month review.   
Monthly directorate management team reporting.   
Reporting to Management Board quarterly and subsequently to ASRC.  

11-15  Med/High 1 - 3 month review.   
Two monthly directorate management team reporting.   
Reporting to Management Board quarterly (maximum). 

5-10  Medium 3 - 6 month review.   
Quarterly directorate management team reporting.   

Page 34



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 9 of 15 
 

Reporting to Management Board every 6 months.  
** Health and Safety risks scored 5 and above are reported as High rated 
risks  

1-4  
 

Low Annual review.   
Six monthly directorate management team reporting. 
Reporting to Management Board annually. 

*The frequency of reporting may be shortened, by exception and where required, but not extended. 
**Risks which have a health and safety focus will have a low appetite and any such risks with a score of 
5 and above will be escalated to Management Board for visibility, guidance and to determine regularity of 
reporting. 
 
The intention is that risks are escalated to directorate management teams and Management Board for 
awareness and understanding along with decision making e.g. to seek guidance where a risk reaches a 
specified score e.g. risks scored 16 and above. 
 
Annual reporting of all risks to Management Board will also take place. 
 
Management Board, directorate management teams and ASRC may request deep dives into the high-
level risks that face the organisation on an ad-hoc basis and this will require risk owners to develop 
presentations, which assure the risks are being managed.  Where it is not possible to effectively control 
a risk e.g. where effective management may be outside of the organisation’s control a risk may be 
tolerated and Management Board will need to sanction the approach taken.  Minutes of meetings will 
need to capture the discussion and decision(s) made. 
 
Governance  
The diagram below provides a visual representation of the flow of risk information within the structure of 
the MCA.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To supplement the above diagram, the table below provides an overview associated with risk reporting to 
the different groups within the organisation. 
 

Group 
 

Risk Reports 

MCA • The MCA will receive an annual report on the risks, the type and 
exposure, which is within the context of the Corporate Plan and Business 
Plan Review. 

• Risk Management is included within the standard MCA report format, 
forming a part of the decision-making process.   

• The MCA will receive an annual report from the Audit, Standards and Risk 
Committee (ASRC) providing their overview commentary.   

Statutory Officers/Management Board 

Project 
Boards 

Collaborative 
Teams 

Functional 
Teams

Procurement, Contracts & Controls 

Thematic Boards 

MCA 

Schemes 

Audit, Standards & Risk Committee 

Page 35



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 10 of 15 
 

Audit, Standards and 
Risk Committee 

• The ASRC will receive the corporate risk register and commentary at each 
quarterly meeting along with any risks, which require escalation to ASRC.. 

• The ASRC will also receive an annual report and commentary.  

Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP)* 

• The LEP will receive an annual report on the risks, type and exposure, in 
line with the MCA report. 

• Risk Management is included within the standard board report format, 
forming a part of the decision-making process. 

Thematic Boards • Programme dashboard relevant to the thematic area at each meeting. 

• Risk Management is included within the standard report format, forming a 
part of the decision-making process 

Statutory Officers and 
Management Board 

• High level risk reports will be presented to Management Board quarterly, 
in line with the Recording and Reporting requirements, timescales and 
parameters. 

• Additional extraordinary risk reporting will take place by exception for risks 
and topical themes e.g. deep dive reporting for high / critical level risks. 

• Risk Management is included within the standard board report format, 
forming a part of the decision-making process 

Project Boards / 
Collaboration Teams 
 

• Project and programme risk registers presented at each meeting in line 
with good practice Programme and Project Management. 
 

* to be reconsidered after publication of the LEP Review 

 
[To add internal structures, roles and responsibilities for embedding risk management] 
 

Page 36



Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 11 of 15 
 

Risk Management on a Page Appendix A 
Context and Scope 

The MCA and LEP have agreed a 20-year Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) to transform the South Yorkshire economy and society for People, Business and Places.  The SEP paves the way to a 
Stronger, Greener and Fairer economy as potential is unlocked to create prosperity and opportunity for all.  A Renewal Action Plan has been agreed setting out the actions needed to accelerate 

delivery of the SEP and a Corporate Plan and Business Plans exist to operationalise delivery and risks are in this context.  The scope of risk may be internal to the MCA or externally facing. 
 

Objectives Identify the Risks Assess the Risks  Mitigate and Control Risk Treatment 

Objectives which are clear and 
understood 

Threats and opportunities identified Score the risks and consider the 
appetite 

Controls identified to manage the 
risk (impact & probability) 

Select and implement options to 
address the risks. 

What will be achieved?  What 
does good look like?  How will we 
know we have achieved it? 

What could happen to hamper or 
enhance achievement of objectives.  
What concerns or opportunities exist? 

What is the likelihood of the risk 
occurring?  How serious is the impact?  

What is being done to control a risk? 
What more can be done? 
Who will do this and by when?  

What can be done, what are the 
options?  Can the options be 
implemented? Is treatment working? 

Objectives are set out in the plans.  
There are several ways and levels 
at which objective can be set e.g. 
strategic, funding, programme, 
project level and operational. 
 
Objectives may be tiered and 
must align, e.g. by flowing from/to 
the SEP, RAP, Corporate and 
Business Plans and can be 
incorporated into team and 
employee performance objectives. 

There are a number of ways to identify 
risks to achievement:  

• horizon scanning. 

• SWOT analysis, Strengths to Threats. 

• Lessons learnt exercises. 

• Root cause, asking why five times. 

• Control & Risk Self-Assessment with 
a range of stakeholders. 

 
It is helpful to structure risk as the: 
reason for occurrence (due to) 
risk itself (there is a risk that) 
consequence (results in).  

Firstly, a Risk Owner is defined.  Risks 
are scored inherently, before any 
controls are added, using a 5 x 5 
scoring matrix (Guide at Appendix C). 
 

Im
p

ac
t 

5 5 10 15 20 25 

4 4 8 12 16 20 

3 3 6 9 12 15 

2 2 4 6 8 10 

1 1 2 3 4 5 

    1 2 3 4 5 

  Probability 
An Inherent score is recorded. 

Controls currently in place to 
mitigate a risk are identified and 
recorded. 
 
Each risk is scored again, using the 
5 x 5 matrix, to create a Current 
Risk Score, which is compared to 
the appetite / reporting to decide 
next steps and treatment.   
 
Additional actions should be added 
to manage the risk to within 
appetite.  An Owner is established 
for each action.  

Treatment options should be decided 
based on the Current Risk Score 
compared to risk appetite. 
 
Options are: 

• Treat, take action to reduce. 

• Tolerate, accept the risk. 

• Transfer, pass responsibility e.g. 
through insurance. 

• Terminate, avoid the activity 

• Take up, pursue an opportunity 

• Share, with partners e.g. public 
private initiatives 

Monitoring and Review 
Risks, controls & process are monitored and reviewed leading to learning and improvement.  Has the action been taken?  If not, what next?  Has anything changed? 

This step is required to improve the effectiveness of the process, implementation, output and outcomes and should be planned and regularised.  The results of this should be incorporated within the 
risk management processes, performance measurement and reporting activities.  This section includes the ongoing monitoring and review of risks by risk owners. 

Recording and Reporting  
This step is required to provide information for decision making, learning lessons and improving risk management activities, process, output and outcomes.   

Processes, activities and output should be documented and reported through appropriate management structures. 
Current Score Rating Review and Reporting - The specified frequency of reporting can be shortened, where required, but not extended.  

16-25 High 1 - 3 month review. Monthly directorate management team reporting. Reporting to Management Board quarterly and subsequently to ASRC.  
11-15 Med/High 1 - 3 month review.  Two monthly directorate management team reporting.  Reporting to Management Board quarterly.  
5-10 Medium 3 - 6 month review.  Quarterly directorate management team reporting.  Reporting to Management Board every 6 months.  
1-4 Low Annual review.  Six monthly directorate management team reporting.  Reporting to Management Board annually. 

 All risks are reported to Management Board annually in an annual report. 
 Risks which are health and safety focused will have a low appetite.  Therefore risks with a score of 5 and above will be escalated to Management Board for visibility, guidance and direction. 
Therefore, risks are escalated to Management Board and directorate management teams for awareness, decision making and possible direction. 
 
This risk management process once implemented will be subject to a post implementation review to consider lessons, adjust as necessary and to determine if it has achieved the intended benefits. 

Communication and Consultation 
Communication promotes awareness and understanding of risk management.  Consultation involves obtaining feedback and information to inform decision making.  Communication and Coordination 
with relevant stakeholders should take place during all steps of the Risk Management process and coordination between the two facilitates factual, timely, relevant, accurate and understandable 
exchanges of information, which should take account of data protection requirements.   

P
age 37



 

Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 12 of 15 
 

Risk Register Template Appendix B 

     
Pre-response assessment (inherent) 

 Current risk assessment (residual)  

  

Category Risk Description Owner Probability 
1 - 5 
L - H  

Impact 
1 - 5 

L to H 

Inherent 
Risk 

Score  

Existing Controls Probability  
1 - 5 

L to H 

Impact 
1 - 5 
L- H 

Current 
Risk Score 

Action Action 
Owner 

Due date 
00/00/00 

  Due to Risk Result                       

Organisation Cyber Security 
There is an increase in 
cyber-attacks which may 
lead to infiltration of our 
systems resulting in 
operational disruption, 
data corruption, outage 
and loss of finances. 

Ruth 
Adams 

5 5 2500% a. Anti virus software, updated hourly, 
installed across all infrastructure.  
b. Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, 
installed, evolves to address current threats, 
covers email filtering to identify and block 
impersonators and filtering attachments for 
abnormalities for the IT team to check prior to 
release. 

3 5 
 

a. Cyber 
Essentials 
accreditation. 

XXX a.01.04.22 
b.  

             

             

 

P
age 38



 

Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 13 of 15 
 

Risk Assessment  Appendix C 
The assessment of risk takes account of the probability or likelihood of a risk occurring at a point in the 
future and also the impact if it was to materialise.  Each risk is scored using a five by five scoring matrix, a 
guide to the scoring is included below: 
 
Probability, the following approach is used: 
 

Probability Descriptor 
 

Remote Unlikely Possible Probable Highly Probable 

Score  
 

1 2 3 4 5 

Description  Highly unlikely 
to occur 

Unlikely to 
occur 

Could occur at 
some point 

More likely to 
occur than not 

Very likely to 
occur 

 

 
Impact, the table below has been prepared to guide colleagues and to describe the different types of impact a 
risk may have and at different levels.  The table content is not meant to be absolute and is offered as a guide 
for risk owners, managers and employees.  Additionally, where a risk has a different level of impact in several 
areas (or no impact at all), then the risk owner should use their professional judgement to define the impact 
score.   
 
Impact 
Description 

Immaterial Minor Moderate Serious Critical 

Score 
 

1 2 3 4 5 

Reputational 
relates to the 
perception of 
the MCA by 
employees, 
partners and 
stakeholders. 

Isolated, internal 
issue contained 
within the MCA 
no adverse 
publicity. 

Minor internal 
issue, minimal 
external 
publicity, a 
single adverse 
article 

Short term 
adverse local / 
regional publicity.  
Reduction in 
stakeholder 
confidence.  

Adverse regional / 
national publicity. 
Serious reduction 
in stakeholder 
confidence. 

Sustained 
adverse regional / 
national publicity. 
Stakeholder 
confidence lost.  

Environmental 
relates to 
worldwide 
+1.5°C 
temperature 
increase and the 
target to be net 
zero by 2040. 

No adverse 
impact on the 
environment.  
 
 

Minor levels of 
carbon output or 
impact on the 
environment. 

Modest levels of 
carbon output or 
adverse impact 
on the 
environment 
locally. 

Serious levels of 
carbon output or 
impact on the 
environment 
regionally.   

Critical levels of 
carbon output and 
extensive 
damage to the 
environment 
nationally. 

Financial  
relates to the 
financial viability 
/ health of the 
MCA and 
strength over 
time to achieve 
strategic and 
financial 
objectives 

Immaterial 
financial loss or 
cost, contained 
within budget. 

Minor loss or 
costs that can 
be contained 
within budget. 

Modest loss or 
costs that cannot 
be contained in 
budget requiring 
a new budget to 
be approved 

Loss or costs 
detrimental to the 
financial health of 
the MCA. 
Single year risk. 
 

Loss or costs that 

destabilise the 

financial health of 

the MCA.   

Multiple year risk. 

Legal and 
Regulatory 
Compliance 
adherence to 
laws and 
regulations incl. 
professional 
standards, 
ethics and fraud. 

No impact or 
statutory 
compliance 
breach. 

Minor breach in 
regulatory 
compliance. 

Single breach in 
statutory 
responsibility. 
External 
recommendations 
and Improvement 
notice applied. 

Multiple breaches 
in statutory 
responsibility. 
Improvement 
notices and 
enforcement 
action. 

Extensive 
breaches in 
statutory 
responsibility and 
sanctions.   
Prosecution. 

Page 39



 

Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 14 of 15 
 

Health & Safety 
relates to the 
health & safety 
of MCA 
employees, 
service users, 
partners and 
stakeholders 

No injury. Minor injury 
suffered, no 
professional 
medical 
treatment 
required. 
Small number of 
sick days. 

Injury to 
individual(s) 
requiring 
professional 
medical 
treatment. 

Multiple serious 
injuries requiring 
professional 
medical treatment 
or hospitalisation.  
Enforcement 
agency involved. 

Injury so severe 
that it results in 
fatality of 
individual(s).  
Prosecution from 
enforcement 
agency. 

Employees 
relates to 
workforce 
planning, 
capacity, 
capability and 
morale of the 
workforce 

No impact on 
employees, 
capacity or 
capability. 

Minor or short-
term reduced 
capacity, 
capability or 
morale. 

Low employee 
levels 
Insufficient 
experience.  
Modest employee 
engagement.   

Employee 
capacity or 
capability causes 
delivery failure.  
Low level of 
engagement  

Strategic 
objectives 
severely impacted 
due to capacity or 
capability. 
Critically low level 
of engagement. 

Digital Security  
relates to digital 
and cyber 
impacts 

No digital 
security breach. 
Digital assets 
maintained. 

A minor digital 
security breach 
of low level or 
non- sensitive 
data or system. 
Recovery quick. 

A single breach of 
operational data 
or systems.   
Recovered and 
contained. 

Multiple breaches 
of operational 
data or systems. 
Limited ability to 
recover or 
contain.  
Single breach of 
sensitive data or 
critical system. 

Multiple breaches 
of data or 
systems including 
sensitive systems 
and personal data 
or loss of data 
itself. 
Enforcement 
agency action 
and fine. 

Programmes 
and Projects 
relates to 
programmes 
and projects the 
MCA 
undertakes to 
deliver its 
objectives 
internal and 
external. 

Little or no 
slippage to 
delivery 
No threat to the 
intended 
benefits, output 
or outcome. 

Minor delay, 
which can be 
managed in the 
respective 
stage. 
No threat to 
intended 
benefits, output 
or outcome. 

Slippage delays 
delivery of 
milestone. 
No threat to 
intended benefits, 
output or 
outcome. 

Slippage causes 
significant delay 
to milestone 
delivery. 
Serious threat to 
intended benefits, 
output or 
outcome. 

Delivery of the 
entire programme 
or project 
threatened and or 
being cancelled. 

 

  

Page 40



 

Risk Management Framework                                                                                                                Page 15 of 15 
 

Risk Appetite Statement Appendix D 
Risk appetite is the level of risk that the MCA is prepared to tolerate or accept in the pursuit of its objectives.  
A risk owner is required to consider the appetite level set against each Strategic Category and take 
reasonable steps to manage each risk.  Where the ability to control a risk lies outside the MCA’s control the 
risk may be tolerated however, reporting will need to take place in line with Recording and Reporting section 
of the Framework document.   
 

Risk Appetite Description 
 

Averse (A) To be averse to risk and avoid any uncertainty.  

Cautious (C) To prefer the safe option that has a small amount of residual risk or limited potential for 
reward. 

Open (O) Willing to consider all options for an acceptable level of reward and value for money.   

 
The following table provides the MCA guide. 

Strategic 
Category 

Relates to 
 

Risk Appetite What does this mean 

Policy The setting of interventions to 
tackle specific matters to 
develop the strategic objectives 
of the MCA. 
 

Open 

The MCA is willing to consider 
all options for an acceptable 
level of reward and value for 
money whilst maintaining 
oversight through 
management reporting. 

Organisational The structure and makeup of the 
organisation to deliver the 
objectives and the corporate 
plan. 
 

Open 

Financial Establishment and maintenance 
of financial health and wellbeing 
to achieve strategic and 
financial objectives. 
 

Cautious 

There is a preference for a 
safe option where the MCA is 
exposed to a reduced level of 
risk. 
 
Effective controls are required 
to address any remaining risk. 
 

Commissioned 
Operational 
Delivery 

The programmes and projects of 
the MCA to deliver the 
objectives set for the region. 
 

Cautious 

Transport Operational transport related 
matters that would have 
historically formed part of the 
Passenger Transport Executive. 
 

Cautious 

Legal 
Compliance & 
Regulation 

The obligations the MCA is 
required to adhere to including 
the upholding of laws, statutes 
and regulations. 
 

Averse 

The MCA has a very low 
appetite for risk and expects 
minimal exposure.  Therefore, 
effective control arrangements 
are required to manage risk. 
 
 

Outside of the Strategic Groups 
 

Health & 
Safety 

Matters with a focus on health 
and safety. 
 

Averse 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
24 March 2022 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the 2021/22 Group Internal Audit Plan 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to note the progress of 2021/22 audit 
activity and approve any changes to the Internal Audit Plan.  
  

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Progress Report March 2022 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 45

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

Annual reviews for HOIA opinion

Governance

Critical IT Controls

Group audits

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

MCA

AEB

PTE

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 50



 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
24 March 2022 

 
Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 
Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as appropriate, from the Internal 
Auditor. This report presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations made 
by Internal Audit. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to review the progress of the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations. 
  

List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Tracker Report March 2022 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 53



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

2

6

15

1

12

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Implemented Overdue Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 54



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations based on risks: 

Appendix 1: 

Our recommendation ratings

3

Rating Description Possible features

Findings that are fundamental to the management 

of risk in the business area, representing a 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Key activity or control not designed or operating effectively

• Potential for fraud identified

• Non-compliance with key procedures/standards

• Non-compliance with regulation

Findings that are important to the management of 

risk in the business area, representing a moderate 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Important activity or control not designed or operating effectively 

• Impact is contained within the department and compensating controls would detect errors

• Possibility for fraud exists

• Control failures identified but not in key controls

• Non-compliance with procedures/standards (but not resulting in key control failure)

Findings that identify non-compliance with 

established procedures, or which identify changes 

that could improve the efficiency and/or 

effectiveness of the activity or control but which are 

not vital to the management of risk in the business 

area. 

• Minor control design or operational weakness 

• Minor non-compliance with procedures/standards

•

•

P
age 55



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Recommendation Tracker October 2020

Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 56



 

 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Integration Assurance Update 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    No 
Forward Plan? 
 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James 
Claire.james@Southyorks-ca.gov.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
This paper reports on the assurance activity for the Integration Programme. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
The decision to formally integrate the PTE and MCA was made in order to ensure greater 
political oversight and decision making of passenger transport services in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations   
The Committee are asked to consider the report, and verbal update provided by the Chair of 
the Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory Panel, in seeking assurance on the progress towards 
integration. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
None 

 
 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Claire.james@Southyorks-ca.gov.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 The Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory Panel terms of reference include 

undertaking assurance of the Integration Programme. This report updates the 
Committee on the assurance received by the Panel at its last meeting held on 10th 
March. The report also provides an update on the progress of the Integration 
Programme. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Programme Progress 

 
Work to mobilise the first phase of integrating to form a single organisation, the 
implementation of the organisational design and operating model, is on track to 
complete before the end of the financial year. All one to ones, requested have 
taken place, and the ring-fenced recruitment has commenced for the roles where 
there have been some adjustments. The new staffing baseline has been finalised 
with Finance.   
 
The Minister for Roads, Buses and Places has written to the Mayor to confirm that 
there is insufficient time to pass a standalone order before the pre-election period 
however, the Minister is keen to resolve the matter. To take this forward, a meeting 
has taken place w/c 14th March with officials who have made a committed to 
confirming the key milestones to ensure it is progressed during 2022/23. 
 
In addition, but largely separate to the integration programme plan, work has 
continued to scope the next phases of work for the new organisation: 
 
The ‘Transformation’ phase - planning the activity that will begin to transform the 
organisation - in essence this is the integrated 2022/23 business planning activity 
that is nearing conclusion.  
The ‘Realisation’ phase - dealing with driving the longer-term benefits we aim to 
achieve from the Programme.   
 

  
2.2 Programme Governance and Assurance Activity  

 
The Advisory Panel held on 10th March, considered a summary of the assurance 
activity undertaken by the Programme Management Office since the Panel last 
met in January. This included an overview of the Programme Governance 
meetings held in the period and the key issues considered. 

  

2.3 The report to the Panel also set out the Programme Closure Plan which aims to 
ensure the Programme is closed in a controlled way and the maximum benefit is 
extracted. Members of the ASRC Advisory Panel were asked to consider the plan 
and how the Panel may want to contribute to the programme closure process.  

  

2.4 Next Steps 

The Programme Closure Report will be considered by the Programme Board on 
29th March and will be circulated to the Panel for information.  

  
 
 

Page 58



3. Risks and Mitigations 
  
3.1 Panel members noted that work would be undertaken, as part of the Programme 

Closure Plan, to review workstream and programme levels risks and map them to 
corporate risks and to inform risk consideration at a business plan level. Risks 
would also be mapped to the business improvement projects that are being 
established to drive the longer-term benefits of the programme.  

  
4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 This report is provided for update and assurance. 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 This report is provided for update and assurance. 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no direct financial implications of this update. The Budget and 

Programme Board reports, report on spend on integration.  
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 No direct implications as a result of this update. 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 No direct implications as a result of this update. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 No direct implications as a result of this update. 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 No direct implications as a result of this update. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 No direct implications as a result of this update. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   
  
12.1 An internal communication plan and stakeholder plan has been agreed by the 

Programme Board. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
None 
 

 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
24 March 2022 

 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.   
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to approve the 2022/23 Internal Audit 
Plan. 
  

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Progress Report March 2022 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

March 2022

P
age 63

mailto:peter.c.clark@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Our internal audit plan for 2022/23 

has been prepared on the basis 

set out in our contract dated March 

2019. This plan, and our 

subsequent deliverables do not 

constitute an assurance 

engagement as set out under ISAE 

3000. This report has not been 

designed to be of benefit to 

anyone except the Authority. In 

preparing this report we have not 

taken into account the interests, 

needs or circumstances of anyone 

apart from the Authority. Any party 

other than the Authority that 

obtains access to this report (or a 

copy) under Freedom of 

Information Act 2002, thought the 

Authority’s publication scheme or 

otherwise, and chooses to rely on 

this report (or any part of it) does 

so at their own risk. To the fullest 

extent permitted by law, Grant 

Thornton UK LLP does not assume 

any responsibility and will not 

accept any liability in respect of 

this report to any party other than 

the Authority.

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 66



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

5

P
age 67



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Commercial in confidence

6

Factors influencing the strategic plan 

Our internal audit work takes into account your cultural values and commitments as well as processes. We look holistically across the Authority, recognising good and effective 

governance requires a well balanced combination of process/people/behaviours. We consider these three aspects within each internal audit review. The diagram below considers 

internal audit coverage over the 3 year period against the changing risk environment to ensure our coverage covers all 3 areas. 

People

• Data Quality

• Health & Safety

• Policy & Procedure 
Compliance

• Financial Controls

• Project & Programme 

Management

• Effective Decision Making

• Risk Management

• Procurement

• Governance

• Complaints

• Estates
• IT

Processes

Behaviours

Good effective governance

• Strategic 

Development

• Organisational 

Development

• Training
• Innovation

• Succession 

Planning

• Workforce Planning
• Resource Panning

• Research & 

Development

• Partners

• Opportunity

• Responsibility

• Partnership

• Openness

• Transparency

• Collaboration

• Compliance

• Flexibility

• Oversight

• Risk Aware

P
age 68



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
7

P
age 69



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
8

•

•

•

P
age 70



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
9

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

P
age 72



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
11

P
age 73



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
12

P
age 74



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Internal Audit Plan | Year ended 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence
13

P
age 75



P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

P
age 82



P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Committee Effectiveness 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James 
Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 

Ruth Adams 
Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
This paper outlines the purpose of the annual effectiveness survey and provides, for 
information, the questions posed to members via an online survey active between 8th and 21st 
March. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Continually improving governance enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and 
objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for people 
and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations   
The Committee is asked to note the annual effectiveness survey questions and discuss the 
findings which will be presented at the Committee meeting 24th March. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
None  

Page 85

Agenda Item 14

mailto:Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 The Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC) and the National Audit Office (NAO) state, and 
recommend, that audit committees should annually review their own effectiveness. 
 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee previously agreed that a structured 
questionnaire seeking feedback on the effectiveness of the Committee should be 
prepared and the findings used to highlight any areas where development or 
improvement is required. The findings of the survey will be reflected in the Chair's 
Annual Report to the MCA Board in June. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 The survey was launched on Tuesday 8th March with a deadline of 21st March to 

allow members time for completion. The survey (included at appendix A) aims to 
evaluate, and understand any development requirements, relating to:  
 

• the skills and knowledge of the Committee 

• relationships between members, members and MCA officer and members 
and the MCA Board and Mayor 

• administration and operational requirements of the Committee 
  

2.2 A presentation of the findings will be prepared for the meeting scheduled for 24th 
March. 

  

3. Consultation on Proposal  
  
3.1 The Chair, Vice-chair and Chair of the Audit, Standards and Risk Advisory Panel 

were consulted on the scope and content of the survey.   
  
4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
4.1 Any recommendations and actions resulting from the survey will be implemented in 

a timescale agreed with the Committee. 
  
5. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 
  
6. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no legal implications relating to this report. 
  
7. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no human resources implications related to this report. 
  
8. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no equality and diversity implications related to this report. 
  

Page 86



9. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no climate change implications related to this report. 
  
10. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no information and communication technology implications related to this 

report. 
  
11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   

 
11.1 There are no communications or marketing implications related to this report. 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Committee Effectiveness Survey Questions 
   

Background Papers 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee – 15th July 2021 - Item 17 – Committee Engagement and 
Annual Report Proposal  

  
  

 

Page 87

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s6294/Committee%20Engagement%20and%20Annual%20Report%20Proposal.pdf
https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s6294/Committee%20Engagement%20and%20Annual%20Report%20Proposal.pdf
https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s6294/Committee%20Engagement%20and%20Annual%20Report%20Proposal.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

SYMCA Audit, Standards & 

Risk Committee Annual 

Effectiveness Survey 
 

The Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), Financial Reporting Council 

(FRC) and the National Audit Office (NAO) state, and recommend, that audit committees should 

annually review their own effectiveness. 

 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee agreed that a structured questionnaire seeking feedback 

on the effectiveness of the Committee would be prepared and the findings used to highlight any 

areas where development or improvement is required. This information will be shared with 

Committee members in report form at the March meeting and will be reflected in the Chair's Annual 

Report to the MCA Board in June. 

 

Skills and Knowledge 

 

This section aims to gather information to evaluate the skills and knowledge of the Committee and 

to identify any development requirements. 

 
1. How would you rate your own understanding of the role and responsibilities of    the 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee?  
 

 
 

2. On a scale of 1 to 10 (1 being ineffective and 10 being highly effective) how would you rate  
 

• the effectiveness of the Committee in considering and advising on the findings of the 

Annual Governance Review and preparation of the Annual Governance Statement?  

• the effectiveness of the Committee  in overseeing the effectiveness of risk management 

arrangements? 

• the effectiveness of the Committee in overseeing the effectiveness of the control 

environment? 

• the effectiveness of the Committee  in overseeing anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements? 

• the effectiveness of the Committee in overseeing and reviewing the internal audit 

strategy and plan? 

• the effectiveness of the Committee  in scrutinising the Treasury Management Strategy?  

• the effectiveness of the Committee in considering and advising on the Code of Corporate 

Governance? 

• the effectiveness of the Committee in considering and recommending the Statement of 

Accounts to the MCA Board? 

 

3. How satisfied are you that the Committee possess the wider skills necessary to be fully 
effective, for example, in relation to the core business of the organisation, the wider political 
landscape and other strategically relevant issues?  

 
o Satisfied 

o Somewhat satisfied Page 89



Appendix A 

 

o Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 

o Somewhat dissatisfied 

o Very dissatisfied 

 
4. If you have indicated that you are less than satisfied with the wider skills set of the  Committee. 

Could you provide more detail please? 

5. To further enhance your contribution to the work of the Committee, in which areas 
would you be interested in developing your knowledge? (Please choose  more than 
one if appropriate) 

 
o Code of Corporate Governance/Annual Governance Review/Annual Governance Statement 
o Risk Management   
o Control Environment 
o Anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
o Treasury Management and MCA budgets 
o Statement of Accounts  
o MCA Assurance Processes 
o MCA Strategies and Plans 
o Other 

6. How could new members be supported better when joining the Committee? 
 
Relationships 
 

This section aims to evaluate the effectiveness of relationships between members, between 

members and MCA Executive officers, and between members and the MCA Board and Mayor. 

7. How effective would you say your relationship and communication is with other Committee 
members?  

 
o Effective 

o Somewhat effective 

o Neither effective nor ineffective 

o Somewhat ineffective 

o Very ineffective 
 

8. If you have indicated that you feel your relationship and communication with other 
Committee members is less than effective. Could you tell us more about this please? How 
could it be improved? 

 

9. How effective would you say your relationship and communication is with MCA  Executive 
Officers?  

 
o Effective 

o Somewhat effective 

o Neither effective nor ineffective 

o Somewhat ineffective 

o Very ineffective 
 

10. If you have indicated that you feel that your relationship and communication with    MCA 
Executive Officers is less than effective. Could you tell us more about this please? How could 
it be improved? 

Page 90



Appendix A 

 

 

11. How effective would you say the relationship and communication is between the     Committee 
and the MCA Board and Mayor?  

 
o Effective 

o Somewhat effective 

o Neither effective nor ineffective 

o Somewhat ineffective 

o Very ineffective 
 

12. If you have indicated that you feel the relationship and communication between the 
Committee and the MCA Board and Mayor is less than effective. Could you please tell us 
more about this please? How could it be improved? 

 

Administration and Operational Arrangements 
 
This section aims to evaluate the effectiveness of the administration and operational arrangements 

for the Committee. 

 

13. How satisfied are you that Committee papers are concise, relevant, timely and of good quality? 

 

 

14. How could the information provided to the Committee be improved? 
 

15. How satisfied are you with range and number of MCA Executive officers and other participants 
attending committee meetings? 

 
o Satisfied 

o Somewhat satisfied 

o Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 

o Somewhat dissatisfied 

o Very dissatisfied 
 

16. If you have indicated that you are less than satisfied with the range and number of MCA 
Executive officers and other participants at committee meetings. Could you tell us a little 
bit more about this please? 

 
17. How satisfied are you that the committee workplan covers the assurance needs of the 

Committee through a balance of agenda items? 

 
o Satisfied 

o Somewhat satisfied 

o Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 

o Somewhat dissatisfied 

o Very dissatisfied 
 

18. If you have indicated that you are less than satisfied that the committee workplan covers the 
assurance needs of the Committee through a balance of agenda items?  Could you tell us a 
little bit more about this please? How can it be improved? 

 

Page 91



Appendix A 

 

19. To what extent would you agree with the following statement "Committee meetings encourage a 
high quality of debate with robust and probing discussions"? 

 
    
 
 
 
 
o True 

o Somewhat true 

o Slightly true 

o Not true at all 

 

20. If you have indicated that the quality of debate and depth of discussion at committee 
meetings could be better? Could you say more about why this is, and  how it could be 
improved? 

 
21. Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. If you have any further         comments  

            please feel free to enter them here.... 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Annual Governance Review – initial findings 
 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

                Governance 
 

Funding Stream:                      Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                            No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Senior Governance and Compliance Manager 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 

Executive Summary: 
This paper reports the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review which has been carried 
out in line with CIPFA guidance and indicates the high-level areas of governance improvement. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective 
and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations:   
The Committee is asked to note the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review and 
consider the proposed high-level areas of governance improvement.  
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
 
 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 15

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires an 

authority to conduct a review, at least once in a year, of the effectiveness of its 
systems of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review with 
any published Statement of Accounts.  
The scope of the Mayoral Combined Authority’s (MCA’s) governance and internal 
control framework spans the whole of the organisation’s activities and is described 
in the local Code of Corporate Governance. This Code stands as the overall 
statement of the corporate governance principles and commitment. The Code 
demonstrates that governance arrangements comply with the core and sub-
principles contained in CIPFA’s “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework”. 

  
1.2 This paper reports the initial findings of the Annual Governance Review which has 

been carried out in line with the CIPFA guidance and as agreed with the 
Committee in January and proposes the high-level areas of governance 
improvement. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Annual Governance Review Activity 

 
As agreed by the Committee in January, during February and March an 
assessment of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has 
commenced to gain assurance of the effectiveness of current governance 
arrangements and to identify any opportunities for improvement. Through work 
undertaken to date, a good level of compliance has been identified. 
 
Activity has included Group Management Board workshops in February and March 
that gave focus to a number of key areas of governance and compliance including 
risk management, information governance and business continuity. The Board 
also had a broader discussion around compliance with the principles set out in the 
Code during the year and reflected on the challenges faced by the organisation 
and the effectiveness of governance arrangements in dealing with these. 
 
The Board provided a steer on the emerging governance improvement areas for 
2022/23 agreeing that the plan should be aligned with the growing maturity of the 
organisation and should recognise the need for governance arrangements to 
support the ambitions of the organisation and enable the desired change and 
innovation. 

  

2.2 Areas for governance improvement 
 
Key areas for governance improvement are across four broader areas and have a 
clear relationship with the CIPFA principles of good governance. At a high-level 
these are: 
 

• Strategy 
 

During 2022/23 we want to ensure the economic outcomes and metrics set out in 
our Strategic Economic Plan, and the key performance indicators in our Corporate 
Plan, which allow us to measure the impact of our programmes and investments 

Page 94



on the South Yorkshire economy, are understood and embedded into the work of 
all our internal teams.  
 

• Stakeholder Relationships 
 
During 2022/23 we want to give real focus to developing external relationships 
across all agendas with national academics and policy makers to shape options 
and strategies and develop new relationships with the financial sector to lever 
financial investment in the region. 
 

• Customer Focus 
 
During 2022/23 we want to drive improvements in the customer experience 
through being responsive to customer feedback and through better consultation to 
ensure our plans and strategies are focussed on the end user.  
 

• Organisational Development and Capability 
 
During 2022/23 we want to continue to development our workforce management 
processes to support continued organisation development. This will sit alongside a 
plan of office estate improvements to ensure workspaces support our desired 
ways of working for the integrated team. In addition, to realise the benefits of the 
integration, we want to embed the core values of the organisation drive business 
improvement through a number of clearly defined business improvement projects. 
 
Management Board are working through the detail in each of these areas to 
develop the improvement plan for 2022/23.  

  
2.3 Next steps 

 

• A draft governance improvement plan will be circulated to members during 
April for comment. 

 

• A draft annual governance statement, including an ‘evidence of compliance’ 
annex, will be presented to the committee meeting in June. This will also 
include the governance improvement plan. 

 

3. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
3.1 The outcome of the annual governance review will be published in the Annual 

Governance Statement as part of the Authority’s statutory accounts. It is important 
that the review assesses the adequacy of the Authority’s internal financial controls 
as per the Financial Regulations. Failure to do so could result in a qualified value 
for money opinion issued by the external auditor, thus undermining confidence in 
the Authority’s stewardship of public funding. 
 
Furthermore, the risk associated with poor governance practice could result in 
poor financial decision making could result in material financial penalties including 
the withholding or reduction in funding received from Government. 

  
 
 

 

Page 95



4. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
4.1 Failure to comply with the principles of good governance ultimately could lead to 

and external audit opinion qualification.  
  
5. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
5.1 There are no human resources implications related to this report. 
  
6. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 There are no equality and diversity implications related to this report. 
  
7. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no climate change implications related to this report. 
  
8. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no information and communication technology implications related to 

this report. 
  
9. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.   

 
9.1 The activity described in this paper is internally focussed however it will culminate 

in the publication of the Annual Governance Statement alongside the Authority’s 
accounts. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
 
None  

 
Background Papers 
 

None 
  
  

 

Page 96



 

 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Code of Corporate Governance 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

 No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

 Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Governance 
 

Funding Stream: Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                    No 
 
Has it been included on the                     Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
 

Claire James, Senior Governance and Compliance Manager 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-CA.gov.uk   
 

Executive Summary 
This paper presents a Code of Corporate Governance for the integrated organisation. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
This paper and the Code of Corporate Governance will provide assurance to the businesses 
and people of South Yorkshire that the MCA and LEP is committed to good governance and 
that the outcomes, or the results of our activity, are defined and achieved and that the MCA 
Executive Team are accountable, open and transparent in the way it operates.   
 

Recommendations 

The Committee is asked to consider the Code of Corporate Governance (appendix A). 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Forthcoming Mayoral Combined Authority Board 06 June 2022 

 
 
 
 Page 97

Agenda Item 16

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-CA.gov.uk


1.          Background  
  
1.1 The Code of Corporate Governance is a public statement setting out how South 

Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority will fulfil the principles of good governance 
in practice. The statement also encompasses the South Yorkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership and, until formal dissolution, the South Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). The Code demonstrates that, 
collectively, our governance arrangements comply with the core and sub-
principles contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government 2016.    

  
1.2 The underpinning principle of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework is that local 

government organisations should develop and shape an approach to governance 
that takes account of the unique environment the organisation is operating in. The 
Framework assists authority’s in developing their approach to ensure that 
resources are used in accordance with agreed priorities, there is sound and 
inclusive decision making and clear accountability for the use of resources to 
achieve the desired outcomes for service users and communities. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 In line with a commitment to review the Code of Corporate Governance annually, 

the existing MCA Code has been reviewed against the CIPFA Framework taking 
into account the priorities and operating environment of the single organisation 
from 1st April. The proposed 2022-23 Code recognises that until the point of formal 
dissolution, SYPTE exists as a legal entity and therefore is still required to have a 
formal statement in place. This is reflected in the introduction. 

  

2.2 Key areas of enhancement  
 
Considering the priorities and operating environment of the single organisation 
key enhancements include: 
 

• emphasis of the service and operational nature of the public transport 
functions of the single organisation including strengthening the importance 
of meaningful consultation with communities and service users around 
schemes, projects and provision of services (ref section 4.2 and 6.2) 

 

• a commitment to develop relationships that will challenge thinking and drive 
high quality strategies and plans (ref section 4.2 and 6.2) 

 

• reference to the key indicators and metrics used to monitor and evaluate 
performance and understand the impact made (ref section 5.2 and 6.2 

 

• reference to assets, recognising the physical assets of the single 
organisation (ref section 6.2) 

 
2.3 The Code of Corporate Governance will be presented to the Mayoral Combined 

Authority Board for approval.   
  
3. Consultation on Proposal  
  
3.1 The Annual Governance Review process, which has involved MCA officers, 

members of the senior management team and Statutory Officers has informed the 
proposed changes to the Code of Corporate Governance. Page 98



  
4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision  
  
4.1 The Code of Corporate Governance will be considered at the Mayoral Combined 

Authority AGM meeting 6th June. If endorsed, it will be adopted with immediate 
effect. Should the formal dissolution of SYPTE take place before the next annual 
review, the Code will be updated to reflect this. 

  
5. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 There are no financial or procurement implications relating to this report. 
  
6. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no legal implications relating to this report. 
  
7. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no Human Resource implications associated with this paper.   
  
8. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with this paper. 
  
9. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this paper. 
  
10. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no ICT implications associated with this paper. 
  
11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.   
  
11.1 There are no Communications or Marketing implications associated with this 

paper. However, the Code of Corporate Governance will be published on the 
Authority’s website. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
 
A Code of Corporate Governance 2022 
   

Background Papers: N/A 

 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 1 of 6 

 

Code of Corporate Governance 
DRAFT MARCH 2022 
 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 ‘Corporate governance’ describes how an organisation directs and controls what it is 
accountable for. This Code of Corporate Governance is a public statement setting out how 
South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (from here on referred to as ‘the MCA’ or ‘the 
authority’) will fulfil the principles of good governance in practice. The statement also 
encompasses the South Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership and the South Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). During 2021/22, work has been undertaken to 
integrate SYPTE and the MCA.  Organisationally, much of this work is complete, particularly in 
terms of integrating staffing structures, decision making and governance arrangements.  Formal 
legal dissolution via a Parliamentary Order is anticipated in 2022/23. 
 
1.2 By governance, we mean the arrangements that are put in place to ensure that our 
intended outcomes (the results of our activity) are defined and achieved. Our Governance 
Framework comprises the systems and processes, cultures, and values by which we direct and 
control our activities. This framework ensures we operate effectively, efficiently, and ethically. 
 
1.3 To demonstrate good corporate governance, we will carry out our functions in a way that 
shows accountability, transparency, effectiveness, integrity, and inclusivity. Good governance is 
about making sure we do the right things, in the right way for the right people, in a timely, 
inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. Good governance will enable us to pursue our 
vision and deliver our agreed objectives in the most effective and efficient manner, bringing 
about better outcomes for the residents, businesses and visitors to the region. 
 
1.4 Our business will also be conducted in accordance with the ‘Seven Principles of Public 
Life’ identified in The Nolan Committee Report (1995) and in accordance with the Cabinet Office 
Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies. 
 
1.5 This Code will be reviewed annually to ensure it continues to be relevant and fit for 
purpose. The effectiveness of the governance arrangements and internal control systems 
described in this Code will also be reviewed annually and the review outcomes published in an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS). The AGS will describe the governance structures and 
arrangements in place and will report on their effectiveness, including performance against the 
Code. It will also highlight any significant areas for improvement and identify actions to be taken 
to address them in the forthcoming year. 
 
2. Governance Principles 
 
 We have mapped our Governance Framework against the principles of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 2016. 

Page 101



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 2 of 6 

 

These principles are dynamic and involve continuous evaluation, review, and improvement. The 
following sections describe how we fulfil the requirements of the seven principles. 
 
 The Principles of Good Governance 
  
3. A. Good governance means ensuring Officers behave with integrity, 
demonstrate a strong commitment to ethical values and respect for the rule of the law 
 
3.1 We uphold the values and high standards of conduct and behaviour of our constituent 
and non-constituent local authorities. These high standards are supported by Codes of Conduct 
for Members and Officers, which are incorporated into the MCA Constitution, and set out the 
standards required of all members, co-opted members, and officers in carrying out their duties. 
These Codes include, as a general obligation, that members must have regard to the Principles 
of Public Life as identified in the Nolan Committee Report (1995). Protocols in relation to the 
disclosing of interests at meetings and the registering of interests both pecuniary and non-
pecuniary are also included in this section of the Constitution. These declarations are published 
on the website.  
 
3.2 The Constitution also describes the delegations to the Monitoring Officer in relation to 
their contribution to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct and outlines 
the responsibilities of members to notify the Monitoring Officer regarding the receipt of gifts or 
hospitality. In addition, the Constitution outlines our approach to dealing with the threat of fraud 
and corruption as well as setting out a Fraud Response Plan and our commitment to openness, 
probity and accountability through our Whistleblowing Policy.  
 
3.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are 
statutory committees and hold us to account providing a ‘check and balance’ in relation to the 
discharge of our duties. 
 
3.4 As required by the National Assurance Framework, the LEP has in place a Code of 
Conduct and Declarations of Interest Policy which sets out the standards required of LEP 
members in carrying out their duties, and in their relationships with the MCA and its officers. In 
line with the MCA, the Code of Conduct includes a general obligation that members must have 
regard to the Principles of Public Life as identified in the Nolan Committee Report (1995) and, 
also to the Cabinet Office Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies. The 
Declarations of Interests Policy also sets out protocols in relation to the disclosing of interests at 
meetings and the registering of interests both pecuniary and non-pecuniary. The LEP also has 
in place its own Confidential Complaints Process and Whistleblowing Procedure. 
 
3.5 We are committed to ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal 
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful.  Reports of any breaches or potential 
breaches will be fully investigated by our internal audit partners.   
 
3.6 Standard contract clauses stating compliance with applicable laws relating to anti-bribery, 
anti-corruption, human rights, human trafficking and counter terrorism, information laws and 
environmental regulations are included in our contracts with all external service providers. 
 
3.7 We will strive to attain and optimise the use of full powers available for the benefit of 
citizens, communities, and other stakeholders, through the strategically aligned investment of 
gainshare monies and using the additional borrowing powers derived from the devolution deal. 
 

Page 102



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 3 of 6 

 

4. B.  Good governance means ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 
 
4.1 We recognise that we have been established for the public good and should therefore 
ensure openness in our activities. We aim to ensure clear, trusted channels of communication 
are used to engage effectively with our stakeholders. 
 
4.2 We do this by: 
 

• Documenting and demonstrating our commitment to openness through, but not 
limited to, the publishing of agendas and minutes and of Codes of Conduct and 
through publicly held MCA Board and statutory committee meetings. Ensuring public 
records and explanations to stakeholders include clear reasoning and evidence for 
decisions made and provide clear justification regarding any information or decisions 
that require confidentiality 

• Establishing clear channels of engagement and communication, and effective 
feedback mechanisms with all stakeholders, and, through inclusive, meaningful 
consultation, encourage, collect, and evaluate the views and experiences of 
communities, businesses and residents of South Yorkshire ensuring they are 
considered when developing strategies, plans and services, taking into account the 
impact of decisions on future generations of taxpayers and service users 

• Incorporating good governance arrangements into partnerships and other joint 
working to ensure relationships challenge our thinking and support the development 
and design of high-quality strategies and plans. 

 
5. C.  Good governance means outcomes are defined in terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and environmental benefits 
 
5.1 We recognise that the long-term nature and impact of any actions we take means that 
planned, defined and sustainable outcomes are vital, and the decisions we make should further 
our aims and contribute to intended benefits and outcomes. 
 
5.2 To ensure this we: 
 

• Have in place a formal statement, in the form of a Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) 
2021-2041 that describes our vision and sets out our objectives of building a stronger, 
greener fairer South Yorkshire. This statement includes key indicators, targets and 
outputs that will be reviewed regularly and take into account wider economic, social 
and environmental changes to identify and manage risks to the achievement of 
outcomes 

• Appraise schemes seeking investment against a robust set of criteria that consider 
and balance the combined economic, social, and environmental impact of policies 
and plans at the earliest possible opportunity 

• Have in place a comprehensive monitoring and evaluation framework that sets out 
how our projects and programmes will be assessed using performance metrics and 
indicators, during their delivery and post-delivery phases, to understand the impacts 
of the investment made in South Yorkshire. 

 
6. D.  Good governance means determining and planning the interventions necessary 
to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 
 

Page 103



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 4 of 6 

 

6.1 We are committed to ensuring robust decision-making mechanisms and processes are in 
place that enable decision-makers to be fully informed and confident that decisions take into 
account the needs and ambitions of the region, and that defined outcomes can be achieved. 
 
6.2 To achieve this we 
 

• Develop relationships with leading academics and critical friends to challenge our 
thinking and support the development and design of high-quality strategies and plans, 
providing options to decision makers based on objective, robust information including 
an outline of the risks involved 

• Ensure, as appropriate, that the views of stakeholders, citizens and service users are 
considered in the decision-making process to balance competing demands for limited 
resources including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts  

• Ensure decision-making arrangements are robust but flexible enough to adapt to 
changing circumstances and service requirements 

• As part of the planning process, ensure appropriate performance indicators are 
established for commissioned projects and services to provide clarity on how 
performance will be measured  

• Ensure there is sufficient capacity/resource to generate the information required to 
review and monitor the performance of projects and services 

• Use realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure to inform medium and 
long-term resource planning to develop a sustainable funding strategy 

• Ensure the achievement of ‘social value’ through planning and commissioning 
 
7. E. Good governance means developing the entity’s capacity, including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 
 
7.1 We are committed to ensuring an appropriate structure and effective leadership is in 
place and that there is organisational capacity to fulfil our aims. 
 
7.2 To do this we: 
 

• Have in place a clear corporate vision, that is regularly shared and understood, 
setting out the direction of the organisation. 

• Have in place governance arrangements to support a culture of empowerment and 
accountability including appropriate delegations to officers and clarity on the decisions 
reserved for the MCA Board 

• Ensure Statutory Officers have the skills, resources and support to effectively perform 
their roles in a changing environment and in preparation for further phases of 
devolution 

• Have in place an effective workforce plan including recruitment, development and 
appraisal which supports the strategic allocation of resources 

• Provide opportunities for Members to enhance and strengthen their knowledge and 
skills, in relation to their strategic roles, by providing training and development 
opportunities as necessary 

• Ensure a clear protocol exists to support a constructive working relationship between 
Members and Officers and seek to develop partnerships and collaboration where 
most value can be added 

• Take steps to consider leadership effectiveness and ensure leaders are open to 
constructive feedback from peer review and inspections  

Page 104



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 5 of 6 

 

• Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the 
workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental 
wellbeing 

• Ensure organisational development through shared learning, including lessons learnt 
from internal and external governance weaknesses 

 
8 F.  Good governance means risks and performance are managed through robust 
internal control and strong public financial management 
 
8.1 We recognise that effective performance management underpins the effective and 
efficient delivery of intended outcomes, and that risk management is a vital and integral part of 
this. We are committed to ensuring a strong system of financial management is in place to 
enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and 
accountability. Underpinning this is a culture and structure encouraging scrutiny and challenge. 
 
8.2 To achieve this, we: 
 

• Through clearly defined investment plans, that set out desired benefits and outcomes, 
ensure financial management supports both long terms achievement of outcomes 
and short-term financial and operational performance 

• Ensure effective arrangements and delegations are in place for the Chief Financial 
Officer to discharge their functions and leadership responsibilities, utilising a properly 
resourced and skilled Finance team with embedded compliant processes and robust 
internal control to ensure that all expenditure is lawful 

• Review the effectiveness of our decision-making framework, including delegation 
arrangements regularly including ensuring risk management arrangements are 
robust, effective and integrated in all aspects of decision making  

• Ensure commissioned projects and services are monitored effectively at all stages 
and progress is reported regularly 

• Ensure secure, robust, and effective arrangements are in place regarding the 
processing of data (including personal data), this includes (but is not limited to) 
mandatory Data Protection training for all Officers 

 
9. G.  Good governance means good practices in transparency, reporting and audit 
to deliver effective accountability are implemented 
 
9.1 We are committed to ensuring good practice in transparency, reporting and audit 
arrangements to deliver effective accountability. 
 
9.2 To achieve this we: 
 

• Publish all agendas and reports for the MCA Boards Committees in accordance with 
statutory access to information requirements, ensuring they are presented in a fair, 
balanced, and understandable style and hold the MCA Board and statutory committee 
meetings in public, unless there are good reasons to exclude the press and public 

• Regularly review the effectiveness of our decision-making framework, including 
delegation arrangements, to ensure Statutory Officers and Directors are able to 
discharge their functions and leadership accountabilities   

• Have in place an effective and active Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, who are 
accountable to the MCA and, amongst other responsibilities, lead on ensuring we 
have robust, effective risk management arrangements in place, that are understood 
and implemented, and that these are evaluated regularly 

Page 105



 

Draft Code of Corporate Governance 2022/23                                                                                                                 
Page 6 of 6 

 

• Have in place robust arrangements for internal and external audit to provide 
assurances over the effectiveness of systems of internal control and ensure senior 
management take ownership of the results of any evaluation 

• Ensure that our Annual Accounts are reviewed by external auditors and that their 
opinion together with the final accounts are published and are available for inspection 

• Ensure effective and robust internal controls are in place including counter fraud and 
anti-corruption arrangements 

• Keep governance arrangements under review and have in place an action plan for 
improvements, including responding to recommendations made by external audit 

• Welcome peer challenge, reviews, and inspections from regulatory bodies 
 

10.  Monitoring and review of governance 
  
10.1 We recognise the importance of good governance in maintaining and enhancing 
stakeholder confidence. Each year we publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
together with our Annual Accounts. This statement is prepared following an internal review of 
governance arrangements and outlines actions identified to strengthen them. 
 
10.2 The review is informed by the work of: 
 

• The Statutory Officers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the governance environment 

• The Internal Auditor’s annual report and opinion, and by comments made by the external 
auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates 

• The Group Chief Financial Officer who has statutory responsibility for ensuring the proper 
management of the financial affairs 

 
10.3 The framework for evaluating the effectiveness of internal control includes: 
 

• An evaluation of progress against previously identified governance issues 
• Reviews of: 

o External Audit’s Opinion 
o Annual Internal audit report and opinion 
o Strategic Risk Management Action Plans 
o Issues identified through business planning and performance management 
o Complaints 
o Freedom of Information requests 
o Data Protection and Information Governance issues 

 
The AGS is discussed by the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and examined by 
External Auditors and approved by the Mayoral Combined Authority Board. 

 
 

Page 106



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

24 March 2022 
 

Governance Improvement Plan 2021/22 – Progress Update 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James 
Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 

Ruth Adams 
Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
This paper updates the Committee on progress against the 2021/22 Governance Improvement 
Plan. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Continually improving governance enables the Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives 
in the most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for people and 
businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations   
Members are asked to note the final status of the 2021/22 Governance Improvement Plan and 
to endorse its closure. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Audit and Standards Committee 27 January 2022 

Page 107

Agenda Item 17

mailto:Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 CIPFA guidance on the preparation of an Annual Governance Statement 

prescribes that the statement should include an ‘agreed action plan showing 
actions taken, or proposed, to deal with significant governance issues’ 
(Governance Improvement Plan). This paper provides an update on the progress of 
the Governance Improvement Plan for 2021/22 which forms part of the Annual 
Governance Statement for the previous financial year. The Governance 
Improvement Plan can be found at appendix A. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 The Governance Improvement Plan 2021/22 contains 23 actions, some with two 

aspects - a developmental stage and an implementation stage. As the financial 
year draws to a close there are some areas or actions that will transition into the 
new year and continue to embed, this includes the target operating models for 
financial management, procurement and programme management as well as  
collaborative working mechanisms and continual improvements to programme 
development. 
 
There will also be some continuing work on developing reporting arrangements for 
monitoring corporate and business plans and ensuring corporate governance 
oversight.  

  

2.2 Members are asked to note the final status of the plan and to endorse its closure. 
  

3. Consultation on Proposal  
  
3.1 The Committee considered the proposed 2021/22 Governance Improvement Plan 

at their meeting 15th July 2021 and have reviewed progress at each meeting during 
the year. 

  
4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
4.1 The Governance Improvement Plan 2021/22 is relative up to the 31st March 2022. 

A new plan is under development for 2022/23 and is referred to at item 15. 
  
5. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 There are no financial implications relating to the proposal set out regarding the 

development and monitoring of a governance improvement plan however, non-
compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations may result in a qualified audit 
opinion which could lead to a potential withdrawal or withholding of funding. 

  
6. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no legal implications relating to this report. 
  
7. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no human resources implications related to this report. 
  

Page 108



8. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no equality and diversity implications related to this report. 
  
9. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no climate change implications related to this report. 
  
10. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no information and communication technology implications related to this 

report. 
  
11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   

 
11.1 There are no communications or marketing implications related to this report. 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Governance Improvement Plan – Progress Update 
   

Background Papers 

Item 15 – Audit and Standards Committee agenda, 15th July 2021 – Draft AGS 
https://moderngov.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=386&Ver=4  
  
  

 

Page 109

https://moderngov.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=386&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A       March 2022 

Governance Improvement Plan 2021-2022 

No. Focus for 2021/22  Lead Milestones/ 
Deadline 

Status Update RAG Rating 

     OCT JAN MAR 

 Strategic       

1 Continued implementation of 
operational improvements to public 
transport as a consequence of the 
Bus Review and subsequent national 
policy statements 

Head of Paid Service / 
PTE DG 

CONFIRMED 
DATES 
 
Oct 21 
 
Jan 22 
 
 

COMPLETED 
The actions agreed in year have been completed 
although many of the actions to deliver the Enhanced 
Partnership and to commence the work on 
franchising options, as agreed by the MCA in March 
2022 will continue as part of business planning in 
22/23.  

A G/A G
  

2 Implementation of the assured plan 
for full integration of the PTE into 
the MCA 

Head of Paid Service / 
Deputy CEX 

March 22 COMPLETED 

• The organisation structure and operating 
model is on track and will be implemented by 
the end of the financial year. 22/23 will see a 
next phase of organisational development 
work to transition to a single set of systems 
and processes and to fully embed a new 
single corporate culture.   

A G G 

TBC DELAYED 

• The formal dissolution will not take place until 
later in 2022 (no date given by HMG) but 
engagement to progress this is continuing. 
This is requiring a number of process work 
around arrangements are continuing as the 
separate entities remain and will delay the 
full realisation of many of the benefits of 
integration.  

A A A 

3 Implementation of new decision-
making arrangements eg broadening 

Head of Paid Service / 
Monitoring Officer 

Dec 21 COMPLETED 
New ToR have been introduced and implemented. A 

G G G 

P
age 111



Appendix A       March 2022 

the scope of the Transport Thematic 
Board 

supporting Officer Group, chaired by the lead CEX has 
been established to inform and support Decision 
Makers 

4 Development, agreement to and 
Implementation of the Strategic 
Investment Framework 

Head of Paid Service March 22 ON-TRACK 
Development of the framework for the Strategic 
Investment Framework is well underway. To date in 
21/22 

• Leaders have agreed the principles 
underpinning the fund (23.03.21) and a 4 
stage programme of activity has been agreed 
to develop the detail of the fund 

• Stage 1 focused on priorities and has been 
completed 

• Stage 2 focuses on outcomes and these 
conversations are underway with LA 

• Stage three meetings (focusing on 
interventions and subsidiarity) will commence 
in October and run till December.  

• Stage four discussions (focusing on process 
and access to funding will run concurrently 
with stage three as this will have implications 
for the Assurance Framework, which needs to 
be considered by the LEP and MCA Boards in 
January and approved in March 2022. 

• The MCA will consider (potentially make 
decision on) the Borrowing Cap 21/22 to be 
agreed with HMT in November 2021. This cap 
will be agreed annually with HMT and work 
on the 22/23 borrowing cap could follow 
quickly – time to be confirmed but potentially 
for a decision March 22.  

• Proposal to go out to market for support for 
the Financial Investment Framework w/c 

G G G 

P
age 112



Appendix A       March 2022 

11.10.21 

• The SY Renewal Fund phase 1 is subject to 
decision making by the MCA at its March 22 
meeting. 

 Operational       

5 Development of new corporate 
structure and clearly defined 
responsibilities for the single 
integrated organisation 
 
 
 

Head of Paid Service / 
Deputy Chief 
Executive 

September 
21 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPLETED 

• Work on the Management Board structure 
and the consultation and confirmation of 
roles has been completed  

• The detailed structure and operating model 
have been published and presented to all 
employees (December 2021) 

A G G 

Implementation phase December 
21- March 22 

ON-TRACK 

• All ringfenced recruitment is scheduled to be 
completed prior to the end of March 2022, to 
ensure officers of the MCA and PTE start 
22/23 working in the new organisation 
structure. 

A G/A G 

6 Development of a target operating 
model for governance to be 
developed and implemented within 
the year 

Deputy Chief 
Executive / Monitoring 
Officer 

September 
21 

COMPLETED 
As timeline above for the structural considerations.  

• Programme Board have considered a detailed 
paper on ‘ways of working’ for governance.  

• This discussion paper was delivered by June 
21. More detailed actions flowing from this 
will continue to be refined and implemented 
before the end of the financial year.   

G G G 

7 Development of a target operating 
model for risk management to be 
developed and implemented within 
the year 

Deputy Chief 
Executive / Monitoring 
Officer 

January 22 COMPLETED 

• A new Risk Management Framework, Risk 
Register, Risk Appetite Statement and 
reporting and escalation framework has been 
agreed and will go to the MCA Board for 
approval. 

A G/A G 

8 Development of a target operating S73 Officer September COMPLETED A G/A G 

P
age 113



Appendix A       March 2022 

model for financial management to 
be developed and implemented 
within the year 

21 • A target operating model for the integrated 
Group Finance Team has been adopted and is 
in the process of being implemented 

 

9 Development of a target operating 
model for procurement to be 
developed and implemented within 
the year 

S73 Officer / 
Monitoring Officer 

September 
21 

COMPLETED  
Work has progressed to revise the CPRs and to agree 
the workflows from business planning, through to a 
procurement pipeline and then in practical terms the 
interface between finance, procurement and decision 
making.  
 
Full implementation of this is delayed partially due to 
the failure to formally dissolve the PTE and so there is 
a work-around to bridge the gap and transition the 
PTE into the single approach. Work will continue on 
this into 22/23. 

A G/A  

10 Development of a target operating 
model for programme management 
to be developed and implemented 
within the year 

S73 Officer September 
21 
 
 
 
October 21 

COMPLETED 
Work has progressed to: 

• Stand-up a new corporate PMO function, with 
clarity of purpose and function 

• Work will continue in 22/23 to set up the 
team and embed the way of working 

G G/A G/A 

11 Review, agree and implement a new 
officer scheme of delegation 

S73 / Monitoring 
Officer 

December 21 COMPLETED 

• Approved by the MCA in September. 

G G G 

12 Embedding of new CPRs and a Social 
Value Policy and officer briefing and 
training 

S73 Officer December 21 ON-TRACK 

• The CPRs have been refreshed  

• MCA board have decision making papers on 
progressive procurement and social charter 
(March 2022) 

G G/A G 

13 Roll out of new corporate induction Deputy Chief 
Executive 

June - July 21 
 
 
 

COMPLETED 

• Roll-out of all resources on the eLearning 
portal, supplemented by face to face office 

G G G 

P
age 114



Appendix A       March 2022 

 
ADDITIONAL 
WORK DATE 
March 22 

induction, CEX meet and greet and 
organisational induction 

• Resources require updating to reflect the 
move to joint MCA Exec / PTE induction in a 
single programme 

• This work will commence alongside the 
integration planning but will not pause 
induction from progressing 

14 Roll out and evaluation of single 
process for performance 
development reviews across the 
integrated organisation 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

May 21 
 

COMPLETED 

• Roll out of process commenced May 2021. 

• Process is subject to review and re-design to 
fully reflect vision, values and ways of 
working changes that arise from the 
integration into a single organisation 

G G G 

15 Implementation of new job 
evaluation system for the integrated 
organisation, including renewal of all 
MCA Exec job profiles to update 
these to reflect new values etc 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

December 21 COMPLETED 

• Work has concluded on the job evaluation 
and read across between MCA and PTE 

G G G 

16 Implement arrangements for the 
monitoring of the Corporate and 
business plans. Including the 
introduction of new reporting 
arrangements 

Deputy Chief 
Executive / S73 Officer 

November 
22 
REVISED 
DATE 
March 22 

COMPLETED 

• A new corporate Plan, budget and business 
plan have been agreed 

A G/A G/A 

17 Introduce a new corporate 
assurance management board to 
review all aspects of corporate 
assurance oversight 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

REVISED 
DATE 
March 22 

DELAYED 

• This remains part of the planning, but 
implementation has been delayed. This is not 
impacted on any decision making or 
governance improvement actions as all 
matters continue to be considered by the full 
Management Board, through governance 
focused workshops and Boards 

A R/A A 

18 Monitor and manage the impact of Deputy Chief January 22 COMPLETED G G G 

P
age 115



Appendix A       March 2022 

the integration on BAU strategic and 
operational risks 

Executive The review was completed and has influenced the 
new corporate risk framework 

19 Refresh core policy documents inc 
Assurance Framework, Monitoring 
and Evaluation Framework etc 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

March 22 COMPLETED 
Scheduled for MCA approval March 22 

G G G 

20 Review learning from 2018 and 
implement a plan to run the 2022 
Mayoral Election 

Head of Paid Service 
(CARO) / Monitoring 
Officer 

December 21 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPLETED 
Planning has commenced, specific milestones 

• Election manager has commenced in post and 
planning underway.  

• Election Manager Review Meeting took place 
in November 2021, to consider 2018 lessons 
and from running elections in COVID 

• A meeting has been held with the Electoral 

Commission to update them on the activity 

underway to plan for the election 

Work will continue early into 22/23 

G G G 

ON-GOING 
March 2022 

ON-TRACK 

• Work to scope the Mayoral Address booklet 
has commenced, to bring forward 
development and printing to February 22 to 
ensure that a printer is in place within the 
required timescales. 

G G G 

21 Develop an action plan to implement 
improvements to compliance with 
the Financial Management Code 

S73 Officer December 21 ON-TRACK  

• The MCA is compliant with this activity and 
has embedded the core principles. 

A G  

 Delivery       

22 Embed cross organisational 
Collaboration Teams to improve the 
effectiveness of major programme 
delivery 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Mar 22 ON-TRACK 

• The Organisational Operating Model is built 
around cross organisational collaboration / 
matrix teams, which now needs embedding  

• The City Region Sustainable Transport 
Settlement (CRSTS) work has piloted models 

A G/A G/A 

P
age 116



Appendix A       March 2022 

of Collaboration Teams, which will be 
reviewed for lessons learned 

Work will continue into 22/23 to further embed 
collaborative mechanisms 

23 Full review of the lifecycle of 
programme development concluded 
and improvements made to inform 
continual improvements 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

June 21 
(report) 

ON-TRACK 

• The business process Re-engineering work 
concluded the independent review phase and 
reported in July to the regions LA CEX 

• A new phase is being scoped led by the 
Director of Resources for SCC and the Dep 
CEX MCA, including all LA Eds to plan and 
implement actions arising from the review.  

• There is no fixed end date on this work, the 
ambition is to have an initial implementation 
plan developed this calendar year  

G/A G/A G/A 

 P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
24 March 2022 

 
Assurance Framework 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

 No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

 Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Governance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lyndsey Whitaker 
Lyndsey.whitaker@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
Each year the MCA and LEP are required to update and publish the Assurance Framework to 
outline the robust, transparent and effective governance arrangements that are in place.    
Following devolution, the Assurance Framework also needs to be approved by four 
Government departments.  The MCA is also required to produce and publish a Monitoring and 
Evaluation Framework alongside the Assurance Framework to outline how projects and 
programmes funded with devolved and awarded monies will be robustly monitored and 
evaluated.  This also requires Government approval.   
 
This report summarises the amendments that have been incorporated into the Assurance 
Framework following an initial review by the Government. The frameworks will be published on 
the MCA website in draft form on 31 March 2022, pending Government approval. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
The Assurance Framework outlines in detail how the MCA makes decisions and invests public 
money to develop and grow South Yorkshire’s economy and support its people, businesses 
and places. 
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 18



Recommendations   
1. ASRC Members note, at section 2.2, the key amendments that have been made to the 

Assurance Framework following the initial review by Government. 
2. ASRC Members consider and endorse and adopt the updated Assurance Framework 

set out at Appendix 1, pending any amendments the Committee may specify. 
 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Mayoral Combined Authority Board 21 March 2022 
  

 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 Each year the MCA and LEP is required by Government to update and publish its 

Assurance Framework by the 31st March.  The Assurance Framework sets out how 
the MCA and LEP will use public money responsibly, make robust decisions, 
achieve best value for money and act in an open and transparent manner.  It 
explains the governance structures in place for making decisions, outlines the 
policies and procedures that support decision-making and summarises how 
investments and interventions are appraised and managed, and how the MCA and 
LEP will publish information. 

  
1.2 The Government requires MCAs with devolution deals to specify, in their 

Assurance Framework, how all devolved and awarded monies and powers, 
including Gainshare, the Adult Education Budget (AEB), the City Region 
Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) and Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 
will be administered.  Four Government departments - the Department for 
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities (DLUHC), the Department for Transport (DfT) and the 
Department for Education (DfE) - must also approve the Assurance Frameworks of 
all MCAs with devolution deals. 

  
1.3 The Government also requires MCAs with devolution deals to produce and publish 

an accompanying Monitoring and Evaluation Framework to detail how projects and 
programmes funded through devolved and awarded funding will be monitored and 
evaluated.    

  
1.4 The draft 2022 Assurance Framework was written in accordance with the National 

Local Growth Assurance Framework guidance (issued in September 2021), HM 
Treasury Green Book (November 2020) and the 2018 LEP Review (Strengthened 
Local Enterprise Partnerships).  It was presented to the MCA for endorsement on 
24 January so that it could be submitted to Government for an initial review.  The 
Assurance and Monitoring and Evaluation Frameworks have been updated 
following feedback from the departments.  The draft Assurance Framework 2022 is 
attached at Appendix 1. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 The draft Assurance Framework incorporates the re-branding of the MCA, the 

name changes for the MCA and LEP, and the integration of SYPTE with the MCA, 
including transport operations.  

  

Page 120



2.2 The key amendments made to the Framework to date following the Government’s 
initial review are listed below: 
 

• Structure Diagram - section 3 includes an updated structure chart for the 
MCA Executive Team following the integration of the MCA and SYPTE.   

• Updated Assurance Process - section 5 includes two diagrams at Figures 
7 and 8 to illustrate the full assurance process and the different assurance 
routes that funding applications will follow depending on an assessment of 
risk, complexity and value.   

• Inclusion of Key Performance Indicators – the Assurance Framework 
includes an updated and broader suite of core and supplementary Key 
Performance Indicators that the MCA Executive Board will use to regularly 
monitor programme and project performance against as well as assess the 
impact of the MCA’s investments on the South Yorkshire economy.  This will 
result in better reporting to the ASRC, MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards.  

  

2.3 Further minor amendments may be requested by Government prior to their 
approval and sign-off.  Until final approval is granted by the Government, both 
frameworks will be published on the SYMCA website in draft form on 31 March 
2022.  

  
3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 

 
Without an agreed Assurance Framework and Monitoring and Evaluation 
Framework, the MCA will be in breach of its statutory responsibilities and devolved 
funding would be at risk. Therefore, there is only a single option to update and 
submit the frameworks.    

  
4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 A series of workshops on the MCA’s current assurance process were held in 

Autumn 2021 with over 250 attendees from local authorities and MCA staff.  
Commissioning Teams within the MCA.  The feedback obtained was incorporated 
into the draft frameworks.   

  
4.2 The lead LEP Board member for assurance and Chair of the MCA’s Assurance 

Panel, reviewed the draft Assurance Framework 2022 in December 2021, on the 
LEP’s behalf. 

  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 Subject to endorsement by the MCA Board on 21 March, the updated draft 

frameworks will be submitted again to the four Government departments for 
Ministerial approval and sign-off and will be adopted by the MCA from 1 April 2022. 

  
5.2 The Assurance Framework, and updated Monitoring and Evaluation Framework will 

be published on the SYMCA website on 31 March 2022. 
  

 
 
 
 

Page 121



6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 The MCA and LEP are required to demonstrate compliance with national guidance 

in order to receive devolved and awarded funding.  The release of Gainshare 
funding is dependent on the Government’s approval of the Assurance Framework. 

  
6.2 The draft Assurance Framework 2022 includes a number of amendments advised 

by the Finance Team, including reference to new borrowing powers, the creation of 
the Programme Management Board and the delegation granted by the MCA to 
allow the Section 73 Officer to accept grants and award tenders of the MCA’s 
behalf.  

  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 The Assurance Framework outlines the legal duties of the MCA and the policies 

and procedures that ensure the MCA and LEP make decisions through a legally 
compliant, robust and transparent process.  This includes referencing the 
responsibilities of the Section 73 Officer, the purpose of internal and external audit, 
the role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the project appraisal process 
(Appendix 1 – Section 4: Accountability for Decisions and Public Funds). 

  
7.2 The draft Assurance Framework 2022 includes amendments submitted by the 

Monitoring Officer on the integration of SYPTE into the MCA and the subsequent 
legal dissolution of the PTE that will follow in 2022.  The draft Framework also 
references the Grant Letters that will be signed with project applicants on the 
conditions for the early release of project development funds.   

  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 Not Applicable. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 The LEP is required to demonstrate its approach to equality and diversity in terms 

of the composition of the LEP Board and its Equality and Diversity policy.  The 
Assurance Framework outlines the LEP’s commitment to equality and diversity. 
The draft Assurance Framework 2022 also outlines the current gender composition 
of the LEP Board (Appendix 1 – Section 3: Structures and Roles).  The LEP 
Diversity Policy is also referenced. 

  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 Not Applicable. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 Not Applicable. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   
  
12.1 The MCA and LEP is obliged to publish information on the decisions that are being 

made, particularly on investments, in an open and transparent way.  The MCA and 

Page 122



LEP has always taken the approach of publishing as much information as possible 
on the website so that it is accessible.  The MCA is also required to publish its 
updated Assurance Framework and Monitoring and Evaluation Framework by 1 
April 2022. 

  
12.2 Appendix 1 – Section 8: Publishing Information outlines how the general public can 

access information that the MCA and LEP holds, the range of information that can 
be accessed through the website, the Forward Plan of Key Decisions, meeting 
papers and financial and project performance information.  

  
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Appendix 1 - Draft Assurance Framework 2022 
 
Background Papers 

None 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                       Page 1 of 70 
 

DRAFT ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK 
VERSION 5 - FEBRUARY 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                       Page 2 of 70 
 

Contents
 

 

1 Introduction 3 

2 About South Yorkshire 5 

3 Structures and Roles 10 

4 Accountability for Public Funds 27 

5 Robust and Transparent Decision-Making 32 

6 Contract Management 43 

7 Measuring Performance and Success 45 

8 Inclusive and Collaborative Working 48 

9 Publishing Information 51 

10 Glossary of Terms 55 

11 Appendix A: Summary of LEP Policies 56 

12 Appendix B: Joint Statement from LEP and MCA 58 

13 Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators 60 
 
LIST OF TABLES AND FIGURES 

Figure 1 South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Timeline 5 
Figure 2 Map of South Yorkshire 6 
Figure 3 Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041  7 
Figure 4 Renewal Action Plan 7 
Figure 5 The South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Organisational Structure 11 
Figure 6 The Mayoral Combined Authority Executive Team Structure 25 
Figure 7 Business Case Development, Appraisal and Approval Process 35 
Figure 8 Assurance Route 36 
   
Table 1 Membership of the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) 2022/23 13 
Table 2 Membership of the South Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 2022/23 15 
Table 3 Gender Composition of LEP Board (January 2022) 19 
Table 4 Membership of the Thematic Boards 2022/23 21 

 

Version Control 

V1 First draft L Whitaker 
V2 Second draft with amendments on assurance, finance, legal, 

governance, risk, contracts and skills 
L Whitaker, F Kumi-Ampofo, M Thomas, S 
Davenport, C Marriott, L Morris, C Taylor, H George 

V3 Third draft with amendments from Management Board and 
refined section 5 

L Whitaker, F Kumi-Ampofo, D Smith, S Davenport, 
M Swales, S Edwards, S Batey. G Sutton 

V4 Fourth draft with amendments from Chair of Assurance Panel L Whitaker, N MacDonald, R Adams 
V5 Amendments following MCA Board L Whitaker, F Kumi-Ampofo 

 

Page 126



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 3 of 70 
 

1. Introduction 

Purpose of the Assurance Framework 
1.1 The aim of this document is to set out how the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) will 

use public money responsibly, both openly and transparently, and achieve best value for money.  This 
document outlines: 

 
▪ The respective roles and responsibilities of the Mayoral Combined Authority Board, the South 

Yorkshire Mayor, the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Board and other elements of the decision-
making and delivery structure; 

▪ The key processes for ensuring accountability, probity, transparency, legal compliance and value for 
money; 

▪ How potential investments will be prioritised, appraised, approved, and delivered; and 

▪ How the progress and impacts of these investments will be monitored and evaluated. 

 
1.2 The Assurance Framework sits alongside several key governance and policy documents – most notably 

the Devolution Agreement and Settlement Letter, the MCA Constitution, the LEP Terms of Reference, 
the Financial Regulations, the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), Renewal Action Plan (RAP), Investment 
Plan and Monitoring and Evaluation Framework.   

 
1.3 The Assurance Framework has been developed in response to the National Local Growth Assurance 

Framework (September 2021), Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships Report (July 2018), the LEP 
Governance and Transparency Best Practice Guide (January 2018) and the Ney Review (October 2017). 

 
1.4 This Assurance Framework takes effect from 1 April 2022.  It will apply to all new funding bids, funding 

regimes and projects from this date.  For continuity and consistency purposes, some existing projects 
which are already part way through the 2021 Assurance Framework process, will conclude their approval 
through that route.  

 
 

Updating the Assurance Framework 
1.5 The Assurance Framework is reviewed and updated at the end of each year.  The next annual review of 

this document is scheduled to commence in October 2022.  However, this document may be amended 
and re-published prior to the annual review date if improvements or significant changes are made to the 
MCA, LEP or its governance and assurance structures and processes, or if new guidance is received from 
the Government.     

 
1.6 A draft of the Assurance Framework is presented to the MCA and LEP Boards to approve any changes.  

The Assurance Framework is then submitted to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and, 
Communities (DLUHC), the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), the 
Department for Transport (DfT) and the Department for Education (DfE) for approval.  
 
 

Page 127



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 4 of 70 
 

The Structure of this Document 
1.7 The remainder of this document is structured into the following sections: 
 

▪ Section 2 describes South Yorkshire, the funding devolved by Government to the Mayoral 
Combined Authority and the plan for economic growth. 

▪ Section 3 explains the structures, roles and responsibilities of the organisations that make up the 
decision-making bodies. 

▪ Section 4 outlines the processes for ensuring openness and accountability for public funds. 

▪ Section 5 describes how the MCA and LEP collaborate and engage with other MCAs, LEPs, partners 
and the public. 

▪ Section 6 illustrates how decisions are made in a robust, evidenced and transparent manner. 

▪ Section 7 explains how projects are delivered and monitored and evaluated. 

▪ Section 8 states how the Mayor, MCA and LEP work collaboratively and consult with others 

▪ Section 9 outlines how information is published. 

▪ Appendix A provides a summary of the policies that the LEP is governed by. 

▪ Appendix B is a joint statement from the LEP and MCA on their respective roles and responsibilities. 

▪ Appendix C lists the key performance indicators that the MCA assesses funding applications and 
programme, project and economic performance against. 

  

Page 128



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 5 of 70 
 

2. About South Yorkshire 

History 
2.1 The South Yorkshire geographical area (formerly known as the Sheffield City Region) consists of the four 

local authority districts in South Yorkshire: Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield.  
 

2.2 In 2008 the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Forum was created to formalise collaborative working between 
the South Yorkshire authorities that had taken place since 1986.  The SCR Forum evolved into the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) in 2010.  This was followed by the formation of the Mayoral Combined 
Authority (MCA) on the 1st April 2014 and the election of the first Mayor on the 4th May 2018 as shown 
in Figure 1 below.  

 
Figure 1: South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Timeline 

 
2.3 The South Yorkshire Devolution Deal1 was signed into law on 27th July 2020.   

 
 

Geography 

2.4 The MCA and LEP’s boundaries are coterminous.  However, the wider functional economic area for 
South Yorkshire also covers five neighbouring districts in the D2N2 LEP area: Bassetlaw, Bolsover, 
Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales and North East Derbyshire (Figure 2).  Prior to 1st April 2020, these 
districts were full members of the LEP, when revisions to the LEP’s geography were made to comply 
with the LEP Review recommendation on removing overlaps with other LEPs. 

 

 
1 The Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield Combined Authority (Functions and Amendment) Order 2020  

Page 129

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/806/contents/made


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 6 of 70 
 

2.5 Whilst the five districts in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are no longer members of the LEP, they 
continue to be non-constituent members of the MCA in accordance with the 2014 Order2 that created 
the MCA, and collaboration is continuing with the non-constituent local authorities on cross-border 
economic issues.     

 
Figure 2: Map of South Yorkshire  

 

 

Plan for Economic Growth 
2.6 In 2020, the MCA and LEP completed work on developing a Renewal Action Plan (RAP) in response to 

the COVID Pandemic and its attendant socio-economic challenges, to outline the objectives and 
priorities for economic recovery and growth for South Yorkshire.  The RAP accompanies the Strategic 
Economic Plan (SEP) which was approved by the MCA and LEP Boards in January 2021.  
 

2.7 The SEP is a twenty-year economic strategy which sets out the vision and policy objectives for growing 
the economy at pace; ensuring that all people and places have a fair opportunity to contribute to and 
benefit from prosperity and protecting and enhancing our environment. 

 
2.8 The SEP is built on a broad range of socio-economic data and is the result of extensive consultation with 

business representatives, local industry leaders, local authorities, residents and stakeholder 
organisations.  The vision and policy objectives for economic growth across South Yorkshire, are set out 
in Figure 3 below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 The Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield Combined Authority Order 2014 

Page 130

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/863/made


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 7 of 70 
 

Figure 3: Strategic Economic Plan 2021-2041  

 

 
 

 
 
2.9 The SEP will be reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure a sound strategic basis for investment. 

 
2.10 The RAP is a jobs-led plan that outlines £1.7bn of priority interventions for supporting our Employers, 

People and Places focusing particularly on the immediate term.  The priorities were shaped through 
consultation with the LEP Board and stakeholder partners on actions for economic recovery and are set 
out in Figure 4 below:  

 

Figure 4: Renewal Action Plan  

 
 

 

Page 131



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 8 of 70 
 

2.11 Together, with the Transport Strategy, the Net Zero Work Programme, and the MCA’s priorities for 
Gainshare, the SEP and the RAP set the blueprint for how devolved and awarded funding from 
Government will be invested.  The SEP and RAP also set the criteria that all programmes, schemes and 
projects will be measured and assessed against; from application stage through to contracting and 
delivery.  

 
 

Devolved Powers and Funding 
2.12 The South Yorkshire Devolution Deal provides the ability to establish a single pot of funding to invest in 

economic development.   Known as the South Yorkshire Renewal Fund, this single pot of circa £500m 
includes Gainshare, the Adult Education Budget, a consolidated transport budget and other devolved 
monies as detailed below.  Further information on how decisions are made and assured to invest the 
fund is provided in Section 5 of this document. 

 
 

Gainshare 

2.13 The Gainshare (grant-based investment funding) allocation for South Yorkshire through the Devolution 
Deal is £30m per annum for a period of 30 years.  This consists of 60% capital and 40% revenue 
funding and is to be invested in the delivery of the MCA and LEP’s strategic and economic priorities.   

 
 

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

2.14 From the start of the 2021/22 academic year, the MCA assumed responsibility for the revenue-based 
Adult Education Budget (AEB) in South Yorkshire. Devolution of AEB supports the delivery of high-
quality adult education at NVQ Levels 1,2 and 3 to individuals aged 19 years and above. This equates to 
around £42m per academic year.   

 
 

City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) 

2.15 The MCA is responsible for the consolidated devolved capital transport budget.  This includes the 
Highways Maintenance Block (excluding PFI) and Highways Maintenance incentive funding.  In October 
2021, the MCA was awarded £570m for a period of 5 years. 

 
 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) 

2.16 Following a successful bidding process, in March 2020, the Government awarded £166m from the 
Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) to South Yorkshire for a period of three years to improve public transport 
and support investment in active travel infrastructure.  The third year of TCF funding (approximately 
£72m) is incorporated in the CRSTS allocation.     

 
 

 

 

 

Page 132



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 9 of 70 
 

Getting Building Fund (GBF) 

2.17 In June 2020, the MCA was awarded £33.6m for a prioritised capital programme of Major Infrastructure 
Schemes under the Government’s Getting Building Fund.  The fund has been used to accelerate ‘shovel 
ready’ infrastructure schemes up to March 2022. 
 
 

Brownfield Fund (BF) 

2.18 The MCA was allocated £40m in June 2020 to deliver a capital programme of housing schemes on 
brownfield sites over the next 5 years through the Government’s Brownfield Fund. 

 
 
Community Renewal Fund (CRF) and UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

2.19 In November 2021, following a national bidding process the Government awarded £8.2m of revenue 
funding to the MCA to fund eight projects in South Yorkshire as part of the Community Renewal Fund 
(CRF); a pilot and precursor programme for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF).  The UKSPF will 
commence in 2023 and is the replacement regeneration funding programme for the previous Local 
Growth Fund (LGF) programme and EU Structural Funds. 

 
2.20 More detailed information on the UKSPF pilot will be published in 2022 but, like the CRF programme, it 

is expected to be focussed on supporting infrastructure improvements and regeneration in areas of 
deprivation, tailored employment and skills development and supporting businesses with innovation 
and green technology adoption. 

 
 

Powers 

2.21 Under the South Yorkshire Devolution Deal, the MCA and Mayor were granted the following devolved 
powers from Government: 
 
▪ The full devolution of the 19+ Adult Education Budget for college and training providers; 
▪ The ability to borrow against funds;  
▪ To improve the supply and quality of housing and secure the development of land or infrastructure; 
▪ To create a non-statutory Spatial Framework for South Yorkshire; 
▪ The option to establish Mayoral Development Corporations; 
▪ To provide grants and make agreements with other bodies on the management of the strategic 

highway network; and 
▪ The option to introduce a Mayoral precept. 

  

Page 133



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 10 of 70 
 

3. Structures and Roles 

Overview  
3.1 The MCA and LEP governance model combines the best of private sector expertise and public sector 

capacity, transparency and accountability. 
 
3.2 The MCA and LEP form the core decision-making Boards. The private sector led LEP, supports and works 

alongside democratically elected Leaders on the MCA Board.  The Mayor, the Leaders of the four local 
authorities in South Yorkshire and LEP Chair sit on both Boards.  This has resulted in strong partnership 
between the MCA and LEP.  It also ensures that a single oversight is in place to deliver efficient, effective, 
accountable and informed decision-making.  

 
3.3 The Mayor, MCA Board and LEP Board are supported by four Thematic Boards and the MCA Executive 

Team.  The Thematic Boards are responsible for driving forward the agenda of their thematic area.  The 
MCA Executive Team advises the Mayor, MCA and LEP on policy, seeks agreement between those 
bodies and subsequently commissions, manages and monitors the delivery of projects.   

 
3.4 The MCA Executive Team and local authority Chief Executives also support the decision-making process, 

with the Chief Executives each leading an operational group which informs and advises the Thematic 
Boards.  Two independent committees, the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, ensure that the MCA, LEP and Mayor are fulfilling their legal obligations, and 
developing and delivering strategies and public transport services that are in the best interests of local 
people. 

 
3.5 In 2021/22, work was undertaken to integrate the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive 

(SYPTE) into the MCA.  Organisationally, much of this work was completed, particularly in terms of 
integrating staffing structures and decision making.  Formal legal dissolution via a Parliamentary Order 
is anticipated in 2022/23. 

 
3.6 Figure 5 sets out the overall structure and how the Boards and Committees relate to one another. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 11 of 70 
 

Figure 5: The South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Organisational Structure 

 
3.7 The following sections provide a description of the different elements of the structure and their 

respective roles and responsibilities. 
 
 

The Mayor 
3.8 The Mayor is directly elected by the electorate in South Yorkshire (Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and 

Sheffield) and serves a four-year term of office.  The Mayor was elected in May 2018 and the next 
Mayoral Election will take place in May 2022.     

 
 
Role of the Mayor 

3.9 The Mayor exercises powers and functions that are devolved to the MCA by central Government.  
 
3.10 The Mayor is the Chair of the MCA and leads the MCA in terms of proposing and agreeing the revenue 

and capital budgets of the MCA, including allocation of the consolidated transport budget, appropriate 
use of the Adult Education Budget and how Gainshare is utilised to support the MCA’s policies.  

 
3.11 The Mayor is a member of the LEP Board and also promotes South Yorkshire as a place to live, work, 

visit and invest in.  

 
 
Responsibilities of the Mayor 

3.12 The decision-making powers and functions of the Mayor are: 
 

▪ Development of a strategy and spending plan for the delivery of mayoral functions; 
▪ Responsibility for a consolidated, devolved transport budget, with a multi-year settlement; 

Page 135



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 12 of 70 
 

▪ Responsibility and the power to approve franchised bus services, to support the MCA’s delivery of 
smart and integrated ticketing across South Yorkshire; 

▪ Responsibility for an identified Key Route Network of local authority roads that will be 
collaboratively managed and maintained by the MCA on behalf of the Mayor; 

▪ Powers over strategic planning, including the responsibility to create a spatial framework for South 
Yorkshire; and 

▪ Ability to create Mayoral Development Areas or Corporations in agreement with the relevant MCA 
member. 

 

The Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) 

3.13 The Sheffield City Region Combined Authority was formally constituted in law in April 2014.  It 
comprises the four constituent local authorities for South Yorkshire of Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham 
and Sheffield, and five non-constituent local authorities from the neighbouring D2N2 LEP area 
(Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales and North East Derbyshire).  With the election of 
the Mayor in May 2018, it became the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA), and in 2022 the MCA 
changed its name to the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 

 
 
Role of the MCA 

3.14 The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for funding devolved and awarded to the MCA and LEP.  
The MCA is also the Local Transport Authority for South Yorkshire.  This role and its accompanying 
responsibilities are defined in the MCA Constitution.   

 
 

Responsibilities of the MCA 

3.15 The MCA’s remit is strategic economic development, housing, skills, transport infrastructure and 
strategic and operational transport functions.   

 
3.16 The MCA is responsible for setting the policy direction in South Yorkshire and maximising financial 

investment to achieve economic growth.  The MCA is also responsible for making large investment 
decisions and ensuring that the policy and strategic objectives of the SEP are delivered.   

 
3.17 On this basis, typically the agenda for the MCA is focused on different elements of the SEP and takes 

decisions and oversees performance on items including: 
 

▪ Programme updates – on initiatives being delivered; 
▪ Investment decisions; 
▪ Monitoring of financial and output performance; 
▪ Public transport operations and services; 
▪ Assurance, strategic risk management and governance; and 
▪ Strategies and plans. 

 
3.18 The constituent members of the MCA are accountable for where and how public money is being spent.   
 
3.19 Additional responsibilities and further powers may be devolved to the Mayor and the MCA, pending 

agreement by Government, the Mayor, MCA and the constituent authorities. 

Page 136

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181&info=1&bcr=1


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 13 of 70 
 

Membership of the MCA 

3.20 Membership of the MCA is set out in Table 1 below.  This specifies the type of membership; constituent, 
non-constituent and observer. 

 
Table 1: Membership of the MCA 2022/23 

Member Post Membership Type 

South Yorkshire Mayor Constituent 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Leader Constituent 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Mayor Constituent 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Leader Constituent 

Sheffield City Council Leader Constituent 

Bassetlaw District Council Leader Non-constituent 

Bolsover District Council Leader Non-constituent 

Chesterfield Borough Council Leader Non-constituent 

Derbyshire Dales District Council Leader Non-constituent 

North East Derbyshire District 
Council 

Leader Non-constituent 

South Yorkshire LEP Chair Non-voting 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Nominated Representative Rotational 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Nominated Representative Rotational 

 
3.21 The MCA Constitution stipulates that substitute members will be nominated and agreed by the full 

members annually.   
 
3.22 Each year the MCA appoints two additional, rotational members from amongst the constituent councils. 

This is a requirement of the Order by which the Combined Authority was established to ensure that the 
majority of Members are from constituent councils.  In 2022/23, the rotational members are from 
Doncaster and Rotherham.  In 2023/24, they will be from Barnsley and Sheffield.  By convention these 
Members do not attend or vote. 

 
3.23 Organisations are invited to attend MCA meetings as an observer.  These can include Government 

agencies (such as Homes England or Network Rail) and other LEPs which have close economic links with 
South Yorkshire (for example but not restricted to, the Leeds City Region, Manchester and Humber 
LEPs). 

 
3.24 All MCA Board members are expected to conduct themselves in accordance with the Nolan Principles 

of Public Life.  These principles are embedded in the MCA Members’ Code of Conduct as detailed in the 
MCA Constitution.   

 
 

Page 137

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5455/A%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 14 of 70 
 

MCA Board Meetings 

3.25 The MCA Board meets on an eight-weekly cycle and the meetings are held in public.  
 
3.26 All constituent members of the MCA Board and the Mayor have one equally weighted vote.  Non-

constituent members have no automatic right to vote.  The MCA Constitution allows for voting rights to 
be extended to non-constituent members at the discretion of the constituent members.   

 
3.27 Decisions are made by a majority of the members present at MCA meetings and voting when using the 

powers held by the Authority when it was established in 2014.  For the new powers devolved to the MCA 
through the devolution deal, the Mayor must be part of the majority of members present and voting on 
the exercise of such functions.  These functions are: 

 
▪ Adult Education Budget; 
▪ Skills powers/duties; and 
▪ Housing functions. 

 
3.28 The Constitution sets the majority as the Mayor plus 75% of the Members from the constituent 

councils present at the meeting.  By convention, if 100% of the Members from the constituent 
councils are in favour of a resolution, then the Mayor will also vote in favour (as that is the will of the 
MCA), unless the Mayor gives minuted reason for not doing so. 

 
3.29 The approval of the non-statutory Spatial Framework will require a unanimous decision from all 

constituent members. The establishment of any Mayoral Development Corporation will require the 
agreement of the Mayor and the MCA member that represents that place.  

 
3.30 The Mayor’s budget proposals will be approved by the MCA in accordance with the Combined 

Authorities (Finance) Order 2017 and the Constitution.  
 
 
Quoracy for MCA Board Meetings 

3.31 At least three voting members of the MCA must be present for a meeting to be valid.  If a decision is 
required to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the MCA is either not possible or scheduled, written 
procedures for decision making apply, in line with the MCA Constitution and the relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny regulations. 

 
 

The Local Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP) 
3.32 The Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) is a voluntary business-led partnership which brings together 

business leaders, local politicians and other partners to promote and drive economic growth across 
South Yorkshire.  The LEP was established in 2010.   

 
 
 
Role of the LEP 

3.33 The LEP leads on strategic economic policy development within the City Region and sets the blueprint 
for how the South Yorkshire economy should evolve and grow.  The LEP is the developer and author of 

Page 138



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 15 of 70 
 

the SEP.  The LEP works to raise the profile, image and reputation of South Yorkshire as a place to visit, 
live, work and invest in.    

 
 
Responsibilities of the LEP 

3.34 The LEP is responsible for setting strategy and acts as the custodian of the SEP.  Prior to the Devolution 
Deal, the LEP bid for funding and programmes from Government and was responsible for delivering 
these programmes.  This included delivering the Growth Deal programme of activity which concluded 
on 31 March 2021. 

 
3.35 The LEP is also responsible for ensuring that policy and decisions both receive the input of key business 

leaders, and by extension, reflect the views of the wider business community.  The LEP fulfils this 
responsibility by leading on engagement with local businesses and policy makers at a City Regional, 
national and international level.  

 
3.36 The focus of the LEP Board is to discuss and make decisions on the following: 
 

▪ South Yorkshire Economy – such as research on how well the economy is performing and the 
issues and needs of different sectors and markets; 

▪ Performance - of LEP funded programmes; 
▪ Providing a Forum for Debate - between the public and private sectors; and 
▪ Economic Strategy and Policy Development – on new initiatives being brought forward. 

 
 
Membership of the LEP 

3.37 The LEP currently comprises 13 private sector representatives, the four Leaders of the Local Authorities, 
the Mayor, and a Trades Union Representative.  The LEP is able to appoint up to five co-opted private 
sector members who can act as specialist advisers on thematic issues.  There are currently no co-opted 
members on the LEP Board.  Membership of the LEP is set out in Table 2 below: 

 
Table 2: Membership of the South Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 2022/23 

Member Post Membership Type 

Lucy Nickson Interim LEP Chair – Permanent 
Member 

Private Sector 

Neil MacDonald LEP Vice Chair – Permanent 
Member  

Private Sector 

Alexa Greaves Permanent Member Private Sector 

Gemma Smith Permanent Member Private Sector 

Professor Chris Husbands Permanent Member Private Sector 

Peter Kennan Permanent Member Private Sector 

Michael Faulks Permanent Member Private Sector 

Richard Stubbs Permanent Member Private Sector 

Joe Chetcuti Permanent Member Private Sector 

Cathy Travers Permanent Member Private Sector 

Angela Foulkes Permanent Member Private Sector 

Page 139



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 16 of 70 
 

Professor Dave Petley HE Representative Private Sector 

Dan Fell 
Chambers of Commerce 
Representative 

Private Sector  

Bill Adams Trades Union Representative Membership Body 

MCA Mayor Public Sector 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Leader Public Sector 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Mayor Public Sector 

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Leader Public Sector 

Sheffield City Council Leader Public Sector 
 
3.38 Private sector LEP Board members are assigned a portfolio of work based on their expertise and 

knowledge.  The portfolios are thematic based, and each LEP Board member leads on the LEP’s activity 
on that theme.   

 
3.39 The current composition of the LEP Board is 69% Private Sector members compared to 26% Public 

Sector members and 5% Membership Body members.  This equates to a ratio that is substantially higher 
than the Government requirement of a two-third, one-third split. 

 
3.40 All LEP Board members are expected to conduct themselves in accordance with the Nolan Principles of 

Public Life.  These principles are embedded in the LEP Code of Conduct.  LEP Board members are 
required to sign a document confirming that they will subscribe to Nolan principles as a condition of 
their appointment.  

 
 
LEP Board Meetings 

3.41 The LEP Board meets on an eight-weekly cycle and the meetings are held in private, with the exception 
of an Annual General Meeting (AGM).   

 
3.42 All Board members (apart from co-opted members) have equal voting rights, and decisions are taken 

on the basis of a simple majority.   
 
 

Quoracy for LEP Board Meetings 

3.43 Meetings of the LEP Board are considered quorate when at least one quarter of the Private Sector 
Members and at least one quarter of the constituent local authority members are present.   

 
3.44 A LEP Board Member may be counted in the quorum if they are able to participate in the meeting by 

remote means such as by internet, audio or video link.  The member must remain available throughout 
the agenda items where discussions and decisions are made. 

 
3.45 Co-opted members, and any LEP Board member who is obliged to withdraw under the LEP Code of 

Conduct, are not counted towards the quorum. 
 

Page 140

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-21-22v1.0.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 17 of 70 
 

3.46 To ensure that LEP Board members are suitably committed to the work of the LEP, consistent non-
attendance at meetings is grounds for termination of membership.  This is outlined in the LEP Terms of 
Reference. 

 
3.47 If a decision is required to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the LEP is either not possible or 

scheduled, the urgency procedure for decision making applies, as outlined in LEP Terms of Reference 
will be implemented. 

 
 
LEP Chair 

3.48 The LEP Chair must have a private sector background. 
 
3.49 The LEP Chair leads on building the reputation and influence of South Yorkshire at a national and 

international level.  The LEP Chair is also a non-voting member of the MCA. 
 
 
LEP Vice Chair 

3.50 The LEP can appoint up to two Vice Chairs. 
 
3.51 The LEP Vice Chairs must have a private sector background.   
 
3.52 The LEP Vice Chairs provide day to day leadership and support to the LEP Board Members, lead on 

business relations within South Yorkshire, engage with the wider business community and deputise for 
the LEP Chair when necessary. 

 
 
Defined Term Limits   

3.53 The LEP Chair and LEP Vice Chairs have defined term limits of three years.  They can re-apply for a 
further term.   

 
3.54 All other private sector LEP Board members are appointed for an initial term of three years.  As set-out 

in the LEP Terms of Reference, the Chair may extend the appointment of an individual for a further term 
of up to three years.  With a clear rationale, and only in exceptional circumstances, a further extension 
not exceeding two years may be granted.    

 
3.55 Co-opted LEP Board members have a defined term limit of one year.  However, following a 

recommendation from the LEP Appointments Panel, the LEP Chair can at their discretion, extend the 
term of co-opted members for a further period.  

 
3.56 The Trades Union Congress (TUC), Chambers of Commerce and FE Colleges (via the Association of 

Colleges) nominate their named representatives on an annual basis.   
 
 
LEP Board Recruitment and Appointment 

3.57 Private sector LEP Board members are appointed through an open and transparent recruitment and 
selection process.  In the interests of continuity and succession planning, the recruitment is staggered 
so that the terms of all private sector members do not expire at the same time.   

 

Page 141

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-21-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-21-22.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 18 of 70 
 

3.58 When private sector members either approach the end of their term, or if a LEP Board member resigns 
mid-term, the vacant positions on the LEP Board are promoted through the MCA website, social media 
channels and are advertised in local and regional media.  Local business representative organisations are 
also consulted about LEP Board vacancies and advertise and promote these vacancies through 
communications with their members.  

 
3.59 When recruiting new LEP Board members, consideration is given to achieving diversity on the LEP Board 

in line with the LEP Diversity Policy.  However, all Board appointments are made on merit, and within 
the context of the skills and experience required by the LEP Board. 

 
3.60 Interested candidates are required to complete and submit an application form.  A LEP Appointments 

Panel, which is made-up of LEP Board Vice Chairs, reviews and assesses the applications against the LEP 
Board Member Job Description and Person Specification, with advice and support from the MCA 
Executive Team.  Candidates are shortlisted for an interview by a panel including LEP Board members 
(usually the Vice Chairs), a member of an independent business representative body, and the MCA Chief 
Executive or Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
3.61 A combination of the completed application form and interview are used to judge each candidate’s 

experience, suitability and fit.  The LEP Appointments Panel makes the appointments which are then 
ratified by the LEP Board.   

 
3.62 Newly appointed LEP Board members are invited to attend an induction session with the MCA Executive 

Team to develop their understanding of South Yorkshire, the organisational and decision-making 
structure, the LEP’s priorities and plans and support available to LEP Board members from the MCA 
Executive Team. 

 
3.63 Vacant positions for the Chair and Vice Chair roles are promoted in the same way.  However, these 

positions are also advertised in national media outlets and on the Government’s Public Appointments 
website.  The Mayor leads the appointment panel for the LEP Chair, which also includes another LEP 
Board Member, an independent business representative organisation, a Local Authority Chief Executive 
and either the MCA Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive.  In the event that the Chair or Vice Chair 
stands down, the LEP Board appoints an interim Chair or interim Vice Chair from the current private 
sector members of the LEP Board to assume the role until recruitment for a permanent Chair or Vice 
Chair can take place.    

 
 
Equality and Diversity 

3.64 The LEP Diversity Policy seeks to ensure that the composition of the LEP Board is diverse and reflective 
of South Yorkshire in the broadest sense.  Consideration is given to gender, race, protected 
characteristics and areas of expertise including industry knowledge, geography, sectors and business 
size.  This is done with a view to obtaining an appropriate balance of membership.  Applications from 
under-represented groups are encouraged.   

 
3.65 The current gender composition of the LEP Board is detailed in Table 3 below.  It illustrates that 45.5% 

of the LEP’s permanent private sector members are women. 
 
 
 

Page 142

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Diversity-Policy-2021-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Diversity-Policy-2021-22.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 19 of 70 
 

Table 3: Gender Composition of LEP Board  

 

 

3.66 The LEP will obtain an equal split of male and female private sector LEP Board members by March 2023.   
 
 

How the MCA and LEP Work Together 
3.67 A key facet of the governance arrangements in South Yorkshire is the strong inter-relationship between 

the LEP and MCA and overlap of membership.  Building on the best of the public and private sectors, 
this brings accountability, transparency and business insight together.  The configuration and 
membership of the LEP and MCA are designed to be mutually supportive. 

 
3.68 The MCA is the legally Accountable Body for all funds awarded to the LEP and approves the LEP annual 

capital and revenue budgets prior to the start of the financial year.  However, the LEP advises on how 
these funds are prioritised.  

 
3.69 The MCA tests the value for money of proposed projects, and makes decisions in a legally compliant, 

responsible and transparent manner. 
 
3.70 To maintain good communication and cooperation, the LEP and MCA are both served by the same team 

of staff (the MCA Executive Team).  Financial information and updates on programme delivery are 
reported to both the LEP and MCA Boards.  This includes details of applications received for LEP funded 
programmes and contracts awarded. 

 
3.71 Given the clarity in remit and strong controls being in place, there are minimal circumstances where the 

MCA would not comply with the LEP’s advice. However potentially this could occur if: 
 

▪ The LEP was seeking to influence a decision of the MCA, which is within the remit of the Accountable 
Body, specifically an operational decision as opposed to a strategic decision regarding the economic 
strategy; 

▪ The LEP was seeking to influence a decision which is non-compliant with public accountability 
requirements and procedures, or does not offer value for money; 

▪ The MCA was seeking to influence a decision which is within the remit of the LEP (for example, 
supporting a project that is not aligned with the objectives of the SEP); or 

▪ The MCA was refusing to operationalise a policy directive of the LEP in accordance with the SEP. 

 

Page 143



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 20 of 70 
 

3.72 A procedure is in place for managing conflicts in decision-making should they occur.  The three Statutory 
Officers (Head of Paid Service, Section 73 Officer and Monitoring Officer) would first attempt to resolve 
the conflict with the Chairs of the LEP and MCA Boards. If the conflict cannot be resolved, and depending 
on the nature of the conflict, this would be formally escalated to either the LEP Board or MCA Board to 
discuss and agree a resolution. 

 
3.73 A Memorandum of Understanding concisely and simply explains the respective roles and 

responsibilities of the LEP and MCA, and how they work together.  This is published and ensures that 
members of the public are clear on who is responsible for decision-making in South Yorkshire.  This 
document is contained in Appendix B. 

 
 
 

Thematic Boards 
3.74 To support decision-making and delivery, the MCA and LEP are supported by four Thematic Boards, 

which are based on the broad strategic priorities of the SEP.  The four Thematic Boards all have delegated 
authority to make financial decisions on behalf of the MCA up to defined limits.   

 
 
Role of the Thematic Boards 

3.75 The purpose of the Thematic Boards is to provide adequate and experienced capacity to review projects 
and make investment decisions.  These Boards bring together the public and private leadership of the 
MCA and LEP to drive the delivery of activity, ensuring that the focus remains on the outcomes being 
delivered. The Thematic Boards therefore enable the MCA and LEP Boards to operate strategically rather 
than merely as investment boards. 

 
3.76 The four Thematic Boards are accountable to the MCA and each one has a defined portfolio with distinct 

responsibilities for Business Recovery & Growth, Housing & Infrastructure, Education, Skills & 
Employability and Transport & the Environment.   

 
3.77 The Transport & the Environment Board has a broader role than the other three Thematic Boards; 

specifically, co-ordinating the transport activities, and overseeing the performance of public transport 
operations and services in South Yorkshire. 

 
 

Responsibilities of the Thematic Boards 

3.78 Each of the four Thematic Boards (Business Recovery & Growth; Housing &, Infrastructure; Education, 
Skills & Employability; and Transport & the Environment) has delegated authority to approve projects 
with a value of less than £2 million.  Decisions made by the Thematic Boards are presented to the MCA 
Board in a written Delegated Decisions Report.  As the delegating body, the MCA has the right to review 
decisions made by the Thematic Boards. 

 
3.79 The responsibilities of the four Thematic Boards are to: 
 

▪ Shape future policy, priorities and programmes for the LEP and MCA Boards to approve; 
▪ Review programme and funding applications of less than £2 million that have been through the 

appraisal process and decide whether to approve, defer or reject the application; 

Page 144

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=181&MId=428&Ver=4&Info=1
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2879/Appendix%205%20-%20Housing%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2881/Appendix%207%20-%20Skills%20and%20Employment%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2881/Appendix%207%20-%20Skills%20and%20Employment%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s2882/Appendix%208%20-%20Transport%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 21 of 70 
 

▪ Review programme and funding applications of £2 million or more that have been through the 
appraisal process and make a recommendation to the MCA Board for approval, deferment or 
rejection of the application; 

▪ Accept grants with a value of less than £2 million; and 
▪ Monitor programme delivery and performance on their thematic area. 

 
3.80 The Transport & the Environment Board has the following additional responsibilities:   
 

▪ Shaping the development of the transport strategy and strategies for its implementation; 
▪ Overseeing the performance of operational transport services and providing political direction; 
▪ Recommending the transport capital programme for approval to the MCA; and 
▪ Recommending the transport revenue budget for approval to the MCA. 

 
 
Membership of the Thematic Boards 

3.81 The members of the four Thematic Boards are set out in Table 4 below:   
 

Table 4: Membership of the Thematic Boards 2022/23   

Business Recovery & 
Growth 

Education, Skills & 
Employability 

Housing & 
Infrastructure 

Transport & the 
Environment 

One Leader from a 
South Yorkshire local 
authority as Chair 
(Mayor Ros Jones, 
DMBC) 

One Leader from a 
South Yorkshire local 
authority as Chair (Cllr 
Sir Steve Houghton 
CBE, BMBC) 

One Leader from a 
South Yorkshire local 
authority as Chair (Cllr 
Terry Fox, SCC) 

One Leader from a 
South Yorkshire local 
authority as Chair (Cllr 
Chris Read, RMBC) 

A lead private sector 
LEP Board member as 
Co-Chair (Neil 
MacDonald) 

A lead private sector 
LEP Board member as 
Co-Chair (Dan Fell) 

A lead private sector 
LEP Board member as 
Co-Chair (Gemma 
Smith) 

A lead private sector 
LEP Board member as 
Co-Chair (Peter 
Kennan) 

A nominated elected 
representative for each 
of the South Yorkshire 
local authorities 

A nominated elected 
representative for each 
of the South Yorkshire 
local authorities 

A nominated elected 
representative for each 
of the South Yorkshire 
local authorities 

A nominated elected 
representative for each 
of the South Yorkshire 
local authorities 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A lead Chief Executive 
from a South Yorkshire 
local authority 

A private sector LEP 
Board member 

A private sector LEP 
Board member 

A private sector LEP 
Board member 

A private sector LEP 
Board member 

Head of Paid Service 
(or their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service 
(or their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service 
(or their nominated 
representative) 

Head of Paid Service 
(or their nominated 
representative) 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from 
the MCA 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from 
the MCA 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from 
the MCA 

A non-voting 
representative for the 
other non-constituent 
local authorities from 
the MCA 

Page 145



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 22 of 70 
 

 A representative from 
the Skills Advisory 
Network 

 Executive Director of 
Infrastructure and 
Place 

 
 
3.82 Board decisions are made on the basis of consensus.  Where consensus cannot be reached the issue is 

escalated to the MCA.   
 
3.83 Operational Groups sit under each of the Thematic Boards to assist in the management and monitoring 

of individual programmes or projects, for example transport and the Business Growth Hub Board.   The 
Operational Groups are each chaired by a Chief Executive Officer from a South Yorkshire local authority 
and they consist of key stakeholders and thematic experts who can advise the Thematic Board.  The 
Operational Groups have no responsibilities for decision-making. 

 
 
Thematic Board Meetings 

3.84 Thematic Boards meet on an eight-weekly cycle and the MCA Executive Team provides the secretariat 
function. 

 
 
Quoracy for Thematic Board Meetings 

3.85 Meetings of the Thematic Boards (with the exception of the Transport & the Environment Board) are 
quorate when five members are present; of which two are from South Yorkshire local authorities and 
one is a LEP private sector member. 

 
3.86 Transport & the Environment Board meetings are quorate when six members are present. of which two 

are from South Yorkshire local authorities and one is a LEP private sector member.  
 
3.87 A member who is obliged to withdraw under the MCA Code of Conduct or LEP Code of Conduct shall 

not be counted towards the quorum. 
 
3.88 If a decision is required to meet agreed timescales and a meeting of the Thematic Board is either not 

possible or scheduled, written procedures for decision making apply, in line with the Thematic Boards 
Protocol for Decisions Between Meetings. 

 
 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee  
3.89 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee ensures that the MCA, LEP and Mayor are operating in a legal, 

open and transparent way. 
 
3.90 In accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance, the 

Committee provides a high-level focus on assurance and governance arrangements.   
 
3.91 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee monitors the operation of the organisation and public 

transport operations.  Their role is to ensure that the MCA is fulfilling its legal obligations, complies with 
statutory requirements, is managing risk effectively and has robust control measures in place for all 

Page 146

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5455/A%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-21-22v1.0.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5446/C%20-%20Audit%20and%20Standards%20Committee.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 23 of 70 
 

devolved powers and funding.  The Committee scrutinises, reviews and endorses the Treasury 
Management Strategy, Financial Regulations and statutory accounts, before they are finalised and 
presented to the MCA Board for approval, as well as identifying any risks.  

 
3.92 Membership of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is politically balanced and consists of 8 elected 

Councillors (or their nominated substitute) from the four South Yorkshire local authorities and two 
independent members.   

 
3.93 A sub-committee of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee was established in 2021 to focus on 

operational public transport and the integration of SYPTE into the MCA to ensure that risk assurance and 
oversight was maintained. The independent members lead a non-executive Audit and Risk Advisory 
Panel which reports into and advises the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee. 

 
3.94 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee meets at least quarterly and reports into the MCA on both 

financial and non-financial performance.  The Chair of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is 
invited to present the work that the committee is undertaking to the MCA Board at least once per year.  
The Chair also meets with the Mayor on a six-monthly basis and also meets the Management Board of 
the MCA Executive Team on a regular basis.  

 

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
3.95 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards to account for 

all decisions taken, including devolved powers and funding.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 
the authority to review and scrutinise any decision made, or action taken by the MCA, LEP, Mayor, 
Thematic Boards or MCA Executive Team.  The Committee can, at their discretion, produce reports and 
make recommendations for change or improvements.   

 
3.96 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for checking that the MCA and LEP are delivering 

their objectives, and that policies, strategies and plans are made in the best interests of residents and 
workers in South Yorkshire.  They provide independent scrutiny of initiatives and LEP activities and 
public consultation on draft strategies. 

 
3.97 Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is politically balanced and consists of 10 elected 

Councillors from the four South Yorkshire local authorities (or their nominated substitute); typically, the 
Chair of each local authority’s overarching Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.98 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meets on a quarterly basis.  The MCA is required to consider the 

conclusions of any review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at the next available meeting.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5447/D%20-%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgMemberIndexGroup.aspx?G=ExecutiveTeam&M=OurSCRExecutiveTeam&bcr=1


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 24 of 70 
 

Statutory Officers 
3.99 The MCA appoints three Statutory Officers to discharge duties and obligations on their behalf.  The 

Statutory Officers ensure that the MCA is acting in accordance with its legal duties and responsibilities, 
operating within the financial regulations and receiving appropriate advice on policy and governance.  

 
 
3.100 The Statutory Officer roles are defined in the MCA Constitution and comprise: 
 

▪ Head of Paid Service – The Chief Executive of the MCA fulfils the role of the Head of Paid Service.  
The Head of Paid Service discharges the functions in relation to the MCA as set out in section 4 of 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and acts as the principal advisor to the LEP. 

▪ Section 73 Officer – The Group Finance Director fulfils the role of Section 73 Officer in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1985.  The Section 73 Officer administers the financial affairs of the 
MCA and LEP.  The Section 73 Officer is equivalent to the Section 151 Officer that other LEPs have 
in place.  

▪ Monitoring Officer – The Monitoring Officer discharges the functions in relation to the MCA as set 
out in section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
 
 

Remuneration Panel 
 
3.101 An independent Remuneration Panel convenes to identify the salary and allowances that should be paid 

to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor for their term of office.  The MCA does not currently have a Deputy 
Mayor.    

 
3.102 The Remuneration Panel reports their recommendations in a report to the MCA Board who decide the 

salary and allowances that will be paid.  
 

 
 

The MCA Executive Team 
 
3.103 The MCA Board, LEP Board and Thematic Boards are supported by the MCA Executive Team.  The MCA 

Executive Team is a dedicated resource that provides impartial advice and works in collaboration with 
partners and stakeholders.  

 
3.104 The role of the MCA Executive Team is to advise and support the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards 

and to execute the decisions made.   
 
3.105 The MCA Executive Team of staff are employed by the MCA and the current functions are shown in 

Figure 6 below.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5439/Art%2011%20-%20Officers.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 25 of 70 
 

Figure 6: The MCA Executive Team Structure 
 

3.106 The MCA Executive Team supports the following activities: 
 

▪ Develop and Propose Policy - supporting the MCA, Mayor and LEP to draft key policies to inform 
decision-making on investment; 

▪ Initiate and Recommend Project Ideas – support project applicants in identifying and bringing 
forward viable project ideas that will deliver the MCA’s strategic objectives; 

▪ Develop and Commission Solutions – ensure projects in the funding pipeline are fully developed 
and that delivery options are fully explored; 

▪ Advise Funding Applicants – on how to develop a robust and comprehensive Business Case and 
advise on the assurance process; 

▪ Manage the Assurance Process – ensure that funding applications follow the correct process,  
manage the independent review and appraisal of business cases and funding applications including 
contracting specialists and subject experts to undertake technical reviews as required, and 
supporting the MCA’s Assurance Panel; 

▪ Advise the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards – on the value for money, risk and deliverability 
of funding applications; 

▪ Programme and Project Design and Development – design and develop investment programmes 
and projects to deliver the agreed policy objectives of the Mayor, MCA and LEP, in line with the 
agreed Investment Plan, including the preparation and submission of funding bids to Central 
Government or in response to specific calls and opportunities that may arise; 

▪ Programme and Project Monitoring – monitor and report on the delivery, performance and 
achievements of programmes and projects to the MCA and LEP Boards and DLUHC, DfT and DfE 
as per the Government’s requirements; 

▪ Manage the Evaluation Process - manage the monitoring and evaluation framework, ensure that 
all programmes and projects are appropriately evaluated and provide regular reports and updates 
to the Thematic, MCA and LEP Boards, individual Government departments and nationally 
appointed evaluators; 

▪ Administration and secretariat function for the Boards – ensuring MCA, LEP and Thematic Board 
meetings are planned and arranged in a timely fashion and communicated;  

▪ Compiling Papers and Reports - for the Mayor and Board members; 
▪ Enquiries – dealing with the media and handling general enquiries from the public;  
▪ Publishing Information – ensuring that minutes, agendas and papers of the meetings of the LEP, 

MCA Board, Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
published promptly on the MCA website and publishing information on MCA and LEP policies and 
procedures; and 

▪ Promoting South Yorkshire – to potential investors and the public as a place to invest, work and 
live. 

 
3.107 The functions of the MCA Executive Team are organised to maintain ‘ethical walls’ and ensure that there 

are no opportunities for conflicts of interest between project and programme commissioning and 
project appraisal. 

 

  

Page 149



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 26 of 70 
 

4. Accountability for Public Funds 

4.1 Several measures are in place to ensure that the Mayor, MCA and LEP are managing and administering 
public funds in a responsible, efficient, transparent and accountable manner.    

 
 

The Accountable Body 
4.2 The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for powers and funding devolved by Government.  The MCA 

is also the legal and accountable body for the LEP and is therefore responsible for all decisions and 
expenditure.    

 
4.3 The MCA holds all funding, enters into contractual arrangements and processes payments.  The MCA 

also provides programme management to account for the funding and ensures that the impact of 
investment is assessed.   

 
4.4 The MCA is accountable for: 
 

▪ Ensuring that its decisions and activities conform with legal requirements regarding equalities, 
environmental and European legislation (such as State Aid), and that records are maintained so that 
this is evidenced; 

▪ Retaining overall responsibility for the appropriate use of public funds by the MCA, LEP and 
Thematic Boards; 

▪ Ensuring that the approved Assurance Framework is being adhered to; 

▪ Ensuring that all contracts entered discharge their duties; and 

▪ Maintaining and publishing annual accounts (including devolved and other funding sources received 
from Government), in accordance with the relevant regulations, each year in draft form by 31 May 
and finalised in July. 

 
4.5 In accordance with section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, and The Openness of Local 

Government Bodies Regulations 2014, the MCA delegates certain decisions to the Statutory Officers.  
The Scheme of Delegation in Part 4. E of the Constitution specifies the delegations for funding and 
decision-making that are available to the Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive of the MCA), the 
Section 73 Officer (Group Finance Director), and the Monitoring Officer.     

 
 

Section 73 Officer 
4.6 The Section 73 Officer is fully engaged in the operation of the organisation, ensuring that devolved funds 

are managed responsibly and allocated through a robust application process.  
 
4.7 The Section 73 Officer is accountable for: 
 

▪ Ensuring that devolved funds, including the AEB, are used legally, appropriately and are subject to 
the usual local authority checks and balances, including discharging financial duties under the 
Financial Regulations; 

Page 150

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5448/E%20-%20Scheme%20of%20Delegation%20of%20Functions%20to%20Officers%20and%20Schedule%20of%20Proper%20Officers.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/documents/s5465/Appendix%202%20-%20Financial%20Regulations.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 27 of 70 
 

▪ Ensuring that the MCA acts in a manner that is lawful, transparent, evidence based, consistent and 
proportionate, including the publication of annual audited accounts; 

▪ Signing-off Value for Money Statements for all funding applications during the appraisal process as 
true and accurate;  

▪ Certifying that funding can be released under the appropriate conditions (in line with statutory 
duties);   

▪ Accepting grants for funding on behalf of the MCA, where the MCA has approved the submission 
of a funding bid to Government;  

▪ Accepting tenders or quotations for the supply of goods, materials or services provided that the 
spend is within the MCA approved budget or capital programme; 

▪ Signing-off quarterly reports to the DLUHC on programme performance and expenditure;    

▪ Ensuring that the established professional codes of practice are applied; and 

▪ Ensuring that strong governance arrangements and LEP policies are in place to ensure that the LEP 
is operating robustly and transparently (by providing an Annual Assurance Statement and letter to 
the DLUHC Accounting Officer). 

 

Internal and External Audit 
4.8 The MCA has an established process for internal and external audit.  Internal audit is a contracted service 

provided by Grant Thornton.  Ernst Young are the appointed external auditors.  As the MCA is the 
Accountable Body, the audit arrangements cover both the MCA and LEP’s funding and activities, 
including devolved monies, and transport operations. 

 
4.9 In conjunction with the internal audit team, the MCA Head of Paid Service, Section 73 Officer and 

Monitoring officer prepare an annual Internal Audit Plan at the start of each financial year, which is 
reviewed towards the end of the financial year.  The Internal Audit Plan includes all aspects of the 
appraisal, assurance, monitoring and evaluation processes and transport operations.  This provides 
independent and objective assurance to the MCA.  The Plan is approved by the MCA and is considered 
by the Audit, Risk and Standards Committee.  The current plan was approved by the Audit, Standards 
and Risk Committee in June 2021.  
 

 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk 
4.10 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee reviews in detail the opinions of the internal and external 

auditors on behalf of the MCA.  The Committee holds the Statutory Officers to account for any 
improvements identified and required and contribute to the audit opinion at the end of each financial 
year. 
 

4.11 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee has an annual Work Programme that they deliver against, 
which includes undertaking a detailed review of the strategic risk management and financial 
management processes that are in place, assessing the level of risk, reviewing elements of the MCA and 
LEP funded programmes in detail and contributing to the setting and approval of the Internal Audit Plan.  
The Audit and Risk Advisory Panel supports the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee in delivering the 
annual Work Programme and setting of the Internal Audit Plan.  

Page 151



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 28 of 70 
 

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
4.12 The independent Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds the MCA, Mayor, LEP and Thematic Boards 

to account on behalf of the public.  They have the authority to review and scrutinise any decisions made 
including the investment of devolved funds, or actions taken.  The Committee can at their discretion, 
make recommendations for change or improvement. 

 
4.13 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has an annual Work Programme of topics that they will 

scrutinise.  Committee members are encouraged to propose additional topics for scrutiny.   
 

 

Assurance Panel 
4.14 The Assurance Panel conducts a technical review of all business cases for projects that are seeking 

funding.  The Panel currently consists of a private sector LEP Board member who acts as a non-executive 
Chair, the MCA’s three Statutory Officers or their representatives (Monitoring Officer, Section 73 Officer 
and Head of Paid Service) and relevant officers from the MCA Executive Team.  The Panel makes 
recommendations to the appropriate decision-making Board on the value for money and level of risk of 
a project and whether to endorse, approve, defer or reject funding applications.  The Assurance Panel 
also advises on any conditions that should be placed on the funding and advises on the merits of 
potentially competing funding applications by considering the net impact of the overall investment 
programme. 

 
4.15 The Statutory Officers ensure that the Accountable Body duties are discharged through their 

representation on the Assurance Panel. This embeds the roles and functions of the Statutory Officers in 
the project appraisal process.  All projects seeking funding are reviewed by the Assurance Panel and are 
subject to independent technical scrutiny.   

 
4.16 The Assurance Panel meets every two weeks, or more frequently if necessary, to ensure the pipeline of 

project proposals continues at the required pace.   
 

4.17 A Programme Management Board consisting of senior officers from the MCA, oversees both the 
development and delivery of all MCA investment programmes.  The Programme Management Board 
also provides technical support and advice to the Assurance Panel, such as the identification and 
mitigation of risk and considerations of funding, for example the setting of an appropriate interest rate 
on loans to funding applicants. 
 

4.18 The appraisal process is detailed in Section 5. 
 
 

Ensuring Value for Money 
4.19 All projects and programmes that apply for funding are appraised and assessed for Value for Money 

(VfM) using the HM Treasury Green Book and appraisal guidance published by individual Government 
departments such as the Department for Education, Department for Transport and the Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. 
 

Page 152



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 29 of 70 
 

4.20 The VfM assessment considers the potential costs, benefits, risks, uncertainties and impacts of the 
project.  A Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) is calculated for the project wherever possible but this is just one of 
the basket of metrics considered in the VfM assessment.  All of the wider monetised and non-monetised 
impacts and benefits of a project are quantified wherever possible and non-quantifiable benefits are 
also assessed qualitatively.  Non-monetised costs and disbenefits are also qualitatively assessed.    
 

4.21 A VfM Statement is completed by the Assurance Panel at every stage of the appraisal process (Strategic 
Business Case, Business Justification Case, Outline Business Case and Full Business Case) and published 
on the MCA website with the business case to enable partners and members of the public to comment.  
The initial, adjusted and final BCR for transport projects is calculated in accordance with the DfT’s Value 
for Money Advice Note for Local Transport Decision Makers.      

 
4.22 The VfM statements are on a proportionate basis relative to the level of risk, complexity and funding 

sought. 
 

4.23 The Section 73 Officer is responsible for signing-off VfM Statements and this must be done before a 
project can progress to the next stage of the appraisal process.  The VfM Statement is also signed-off by 
the MCA at each stage of the appraisal process.   
 

4.24 The VfM Statement for each project, is presented to the appropriate Board or Thematic Board.  The 
Statement includes the Assurance Panel’s justification and recommendation on whether the project 
should be approved, deferred or rejected and any conditions that should be put in place. 
 

4.25 The ambition is always to support projects that demonstrate High VfM.  However, projects that are 
appraised as offering lower VfM, may still be funded if there is a strong strategic business case and the 
project will deliver the strategic and economic objectives in the SEP (for economic growth, inclusion and 
sustainability), or where the project is essential to unlock or enable other development to take place.  
However, the MCA and/or LEP can decide to remove a project from the programme if the appraisal 
identifies Poor or Low VfM. 

 
 

Managing Risk 
4.26 The approach to risk management is comprehensive and in accordance with HM Treasury’s Orange Book 

principles and other project management guidance.  The Deputy Chief Executive of the MCA is the 
named officer for managing risk on the MCA and LEP activity. 

 
4.27 Robust control measures and a Risk Management Framework are in place to provide accountability and 

support due diligence.  The Risk Management Framework guides the identification, assessment and 
management of risks for all activities.     

 
4.28 Risk management controls and mitigation action plans are agreed and added to the Risk Registers.  A 

plan is then constructed to reduce the likelihood of the risk occurring and/or decrease the impact of a 
risk, should it occur.   

 
4.29 Funding applicants are required to include risk and contingency plans as part of their application for 

funding.  Once a project has received funding approval, the MCA Executive Team works with project 
applicants to monitor delivery of the contract and risks.  Quarterly Monitoring reports are compiled for 
the Thematic Boards to identify any issues with delivery, perceived or actual risks to the project, any 

Page 153



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 30 of 70 
 

corrective action and any change requests (for example, a reduction in grant or an extension to the 
timescale for delivering key milestones).  Any risks to the delivery of the SEP Programme are reported 
to, and considered by, the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the MCA and LEP respectively. 

 
 

Annual Reviews by Government 
4.30 The MCA holds a review meeting with Government each year to discuss delivery of the Devolution Deal 

and investment of the Gainshare funding.  The meeting is an opportunity to identify achievements and 
successes and any areas for improvement. 
 

4.31 In addition, the MCA is required to submit annual reports to individual Government departments on 
specific devolved funding programmes including AEB and CRSTS to publicly state how the funding is 
being invested in South Yorkshire and to report on outputs and outcomes to date. 
 

4.32 The LEP is reviewed twice a year by Government; a Mid-Year Review and an Annual Performance 
Review.  The review considers the governance arrangements that are in place, strategic approach and 
performance against profiled expenditure and outputs on funding awarded to the LEP.  A representative 
of the MCA attends the Annual Performance Review meeting, along with the LEP Chair and/or LEP 
Deputy Chair.      

 

  

Page 154



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 31 of 70 
 

 

5. Robust and Transparent Decision-Making 

 

5.1 In accordance with the Transparency Code and Government guidance on best practice, the Mayor, MCA 
Board, LEP Board and Thematic Boards act in the interests of South Yorkshire when making investment 
decisions.  All decisions are made via an approved process, free from bias or perception of bias.   
 

5.2 To ensure that decision-making is robust and transparent, all meetings of the MCA Board, Audit, 
Standards and Risk Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee are held in public.  The MCA also 
publishes a monthly Forward Plan of Key Decisions to alert the public to decisions that will be taken, in 
advance of the decision being made.  The decision-making process is detailed below. 

 
 

Budget Setting and Allocation 
5.3 The annual Mayoral Budget is developed by the Mayor, alongside the MCA revenue and capital budget.  

The budgets are presented to the MCA Board in draft form in November and again for final approval 
each January.  The budgets must be agreed in accordance with the Combined Authorities (Finance) 
Order 2017 and the Constitution. 
 

5.4 The budget for the allocation and investment of Gainshare funding for the 2022/23 financial year was 
agreed by the MCA Board in 2021/22 and was set in accordance with the agreed investment priorities 
identified and agreed by members in the Covid Renewal Action Plan (RAP).  Activities funded with 
Gainshare are managed and accounted for alongside all funding devolved and awarded to the MCA and 
LEP.    
 

5.5 The MCA, in consultation with the LEP where appropriate, is responsible for setting the annual capital 
and revenue budgets for any funding allocated to the LEP prior to the start of the financial year.   
 

5.6 All approved capital and revenue budgets are published on the MCA website.  Budgets are monitored 
on a quarterly basis with reports submitted to the Boards.  Quarterly financial monitoring reports on 
individual programmes and projects are also submitted. 

 
5.7 The South Yorkshire Renewal Fund (SYRF), established in March 2021, brings all MCA funds under a 

single umbrella.  Deployment of the SYRF will be governed by an Investment Strategy which will be 
completed and approved in 2022.  This will set out the principles and conditions of the Fund and confirm 
the focus and process.  Detailed delivery plans identify how budgets will be spent in each of the thematic 
areas (for example, skills, business growth and housing).  The Investment Strategy and delivery plans are 
informed by information on the performance and health of the South Yorkshire economy, and analysis 
of economic, social and environmental needs.  This ensures that the development of new interventions 
will address weaknesses and opportunities in the economy. Individual Delivery Plans will identify how 
budgets will be spent in each of the thematic areas (for example, skills, business growth and housing).   

 
5.8 Investment decisions on the allocation and use of the Adult Education Budget (AEB) in South Yorkshire 

are made with full consideration to the statutory entitlements.  Approximately half of the AEB is 
allocated to the delivery of the following statutory entitlements: 

Page 155

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 32 of 70 
 

 
▪ English and Maths, up to and including Level 2, for individuals aged 19 and over, who have not 

previously attained a GCSE grade A* to C or grade 4, or higher, and/or; 
▪ First full qualification at Level 2 for individuals aged 19 to 23, and/or; 
▪ First full qualification at Level 3 for individuals aged 19-23. 

 
5.9 The remainder of the AEB is allocated to non-statutory training and is procured through an open, 

commissioning process.   
 

5.10 The MCA Board is the final decision-making body for AEB funding awards.   
 

 
 

Commissioning and Open Calls 
5.11 In accordance with the agreed policy, programme and project applications for funding usually originate 

from three sources: 
 
▪ A Thematic Board – the Thematic Boards will proactively identify potential projects which satisfy 

the policy objectives of the SEP and thematic Delivery Plan.  These are subject to funding being 
available.   

▪ MCA Executive Team – the MCA Executive Team, in discussion with partners and stakeholders, may 
identify a need for a programme or project that either meets the policy objectives and strategic 
outcomes of the SEP or other strategies which will respond to an economic shock. These details 
may be held within an agreed Commissioning Framework or Delivery Plan.  

▪ Via a targeted Open Call for Project Applications – open calls inviting applicants to bid for funding 
or propose a project are published on the MCA website.  Calls have a specific focus, such as 
delivering an investment priority or targets in the SEP.  Project applicants will then submit a 
response or bid.  

 
5.12 Commissioning for AEB delivery first took place between December 2020 and June 2021.  The MCA 

took a dual approach to commissioning, including funding for South Yorkshire based providers who had 
received grants prior to devolution, and targeted procured provision.  Commissioning for the 2022-23 
academic year is expected to start in January 2022.  All AEB training providers are required to submit a 
Delivery Plan for approval as part of the commissioning process.   
 

5.13 The procurement process for AEB delivery follows established rules and best practice for procurement 
including the latest HM Treasury Green Book and AEB funding and appraisal guidance and will seek best 
value for money. 

 
 

The Appraisal Process 

5.14 All schemes seeking investment undergo a proportionate process and appraisal to assess the merits of 
the application, its strategic fit and value for money. 
 

5.15 Each project and application for funding is assessed on its own merit, including where there are 
potentially competing applications for funding.   

Page 156



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 33 of 70 
 

 
5.16 For transport schemes, central case assessments must be based on forecasts which are consistent with 

the definitive version of NTEM (DfT’s planning dataset). This requirement does not stop MCAs and LEPs 
considering alternative planning assumptions as sensitivity tests and considering the results of these in 
coming to a decision about whether to approve a scheme. 
 

5.17 The steps involved in the appraisal process are detailed and illustrated in Figure 7. The MCA can 
occasionally agree a bespoke process for project development and assurance which may omit some of 
the stages shown below if circumstances demand this.  This will be in situations where for example, a 
national funding allocation demands such changes to meet the eligibility criteria or where urgency is 
needed to address strategic issues.  The MCA may also enable urgent investment propositions that 
present exceptional opportunities to be developed, progressed and expedited through the assurance 
process.  In such circumstances, the MCA will agree a revised process and will ensure that it complies 
with the requirement on publishing key decisions at least 28 days before the decision is made. 
 

5.18 In any cases where there is a departure from the full process, the MCA will agree a revised process based 
on the existing stages laid out in this document and MCA Statutory Officers will confirm the assurance 
route based on an assessment of risk, complexity, value for money, uniqueness and funding availability.  
This will always be in line with HM Treasury advice and best practice. 

 

Page 157



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 34 of 70 
 

Figure 7: Business Case Development, Appraisal and Approval Process 

P
age 158



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 35 of 70 
 

Stage 1 Submission: Mandate For Pipeline Entry 
5.19 A Mandate Form is used to capture the essence of prospects to allow for suitable consideration before 

an investment idea or concept to enter the MCA programme investment pipeline.  It sets out the 
rationale for the programme or project, its alignment and contribution to the MCA’s policy objectives 
and the SEP, its outcomes and the estimated cost.  This acts as a filter and an early check on the 
expectations of all parties. 
 

5.20 The Mandate Form is assessed by the relevant Director at the MCA, and, provided that alignment with 
the MCA’s strategic objectives and investment priorities can be proven, it will be presented to the MCA’s 
Management Board.  If endorsed, the relevant Thematic Board will consider the recommendation to 
accept the proposal onto the programme pipeline.  The MCA will then have the opportunity to make a 
formal and binding decision to accept, defer or reject it. 
 

5.21 The MCA Assurance Panel will recommend the most appropriate next steps for all projects and 
programmes once they enter the pipeline.  The recommendation will depend on the nature, scale, risk 
and complexity of the proposal.  Ordinarily, if the project/programme is seeking up to £1m finance from 
the MCA, the next step will be for a Business Justification Case to be prepared.  For all other prospects 
seeking more than £1m from the MCA, the next step will be to prepare a Strategic Business Case, as 
detailed in figure 8 below. 
 
Figure 8: Assurance Route 

 
  

5.22 Furthermore, once in the Pipeline, projects may be supported with their development costs to reduce 
risk and improve quality and timeliness.  A proportion of total project costs may be released at key 
gateways. 
 

Page 159



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 36 of 70 
 

a. Gateway Zero – at Mandate Approval – up to 2% of estimated total project costs can be released 
if required, to assess the feasibility of the project or to develop the Strategic Business Case.  
Projects/programmes seeking up to £1m finance from the MCA which meet key tests and 
tolerances may receive up to 14% of total project costs at Mandate Approval. 

b. Gateway One – at Strategic Business Case Approval – up to 2% of estimated total project costs 
can be released if required, to develop the Outline Business Case or to support any statutory 
processes or impact assessments.  Projects/programmes seeking between £1m and £5m finance 
from the MCA which meet key tests and tolerances may receive up to 12% of total project costs 
at Strategic Business Case Approval. 

c. Gateway Two – at Outline Business Case Approval – up to 10% of estimated total project costs 
can be released if required to develop the Full Business Case or to complete any statutory 
processes.  

 
The MCA may consider releasing more than 14% of the total estimated project costs to fund project 
development or feasibility studies, or impact assessments, however this will be by exception on a case-
by-case basis and project applicants would be required to justify why additional development funding 
is required. 
 

5.23 Full Business Case approval is Gateway Three, and no development funding should be required at this 
stage.  Development funding awarded is entirely subject to clawback at the discretion of the MCA Board 
if the conditions agreed at the time of approval are not met. 

 
 

Stage 2 Submission: Strategic Business Case 
 
5.24 The purpose of the Strategic Business Case (SBC) is to establish the case for change and should provide 

a first detailed (albeit high level) view of the ‘how, what and when’ the project will deliver.  It is important 
that an SBC can demonstrate its alignment with the SEP and other strategies.  The SBC requests the 
following information from the applicant: 

 
▪ Project objectives and the rationale for investment; 

▪ Project outputs and outcomes against the SEP; 

▪ High level timescales; 

▪ High level cost estimate of project (a range will suffice at this stage); 

▪ Initial estimate of funding required; 

▪ Project sponsor; and 

▪ Identifying risks, initial options analysis and the preferred way forward.     

 
 

Stage 2 Appraisal: Strategic Business Case 
5.25 The SBC is assessed in line with the five-dimension model in the HM Treasury Green Book and appraisal 

guidance published by individual Government departments, and is therefore appraised against the 
following criteria: 
 
▪ Strategic Dimension – contribution to strategic objectives and national policy objectives; 

Page 160



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 37 of 70 
 

▪ Economic Dimension – impact on local and national growth, likely BCR category, the social, 
distributional and environmental impacts, and an assessment of the value the project adds; 

▪ Financial Dimension – cost estimate and sources of funding e.g. identified scheme promoter, 
private sector and other contributions; 

▪ Commercial Dimension – proven marketplace for the project, certainty in outcomes, procurement 
processes and commercial viability, consideration of social value; and 

▪ Management Dimension – demonstration that the project is capable of being delivered 
successfully, including Delivery Plans, statutory processes, programme, risk management (with 
appropriate mitigation plans), State Aid and benefit realisation. 

 
5.26 The biggest emphasis at this stage is on the Strategic Dimension and to an extent the Economic 

Dimension. It is at this stage that a decision is made regarding the strategic fit of the proposed 
intervention’s objectives, outcomes, impact and benefits relative to the SEP. This needs to be proven 
and agreed at this stage. An early assessment of the potential value for money offered by the preferred 
way forward, relative to the current situation and the do minimum option, is also made at this stage. 
  

5.27 To assess complex, transport or land related schemes, a series of approved and bespoke testing tools 
and models may be used (such as FLUTE 18, SCRTM1) to better understand the potential outcomes and 
value for money of an application.  A proportionate TAG assessment may be undertaken, relative to the 
size of the project, to consider aspects such as the quality of the built environment.     

 
5.28 The MCA Executive Team assesses the SBC and presents draft conclusions to the Assurance Panel.   
 
 

Stage 2 Assurance Panel Recommendation: Strategic Business Case 

5.29 The Assurance Panel reviews the conclusions presented by the MCA Executive Team and then agrees 
what recommendations will be made to the appropriate Board; to either progress to Outline Business 
Case or Business Justification Case, based on the total project value and the assessment of risk, or to 
defer the SBC for further work.   

 
5.30 Depending on the nature, risk and complexity of the project, and if the project is seeking between £1m 

and £5m finance from the MCA, the next step may be for a Full Business Case to be prepared.  Certain 
key conditions will also need to be met before this recommendation can be made.  These include 
confirmation of value for money position, completion of any ground investigation and detailed design, 
satisfying statutory requirements, cost certainty and confirmation of other financial and management 
arrangements.  For all other prospects seeking more than £5m from the MCA, the next step will be to 
prepare an Outline Business Case. 

 
 

Stage 3 Submission: Outline Business Case and/or Business Justification 
Case 
5.31 The aim of an Outline Business Case (OBC) or Business Justification Case (BJC) is to: 
 

▪ Identify the investment option which optimises value for money; 
▪ Prepare a scheme for procurement 
▪ Ensure that statutory processes are undertaken; and 

Page 161



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 38 of 70 
 

▪ Put in place the necessary finance and management arrangements for the successful delivery of 
the scheme. 

 
For BJC’s the following also applies: 
 
▪ Identify the procurement opportunity which offers optimum value for money; 

▪ Agree the commercial and contractual arrangements for the successful delivery; and 

▪ Put in place the detailed management arrangements for successful delivery 
 

Once an OBC or BJC has been developed, there will be a clear understanding of the project plan, project 
management and governance arrangements, benefits realisation and risk management arrangements. 
Project assurance and post-project evaluation details will be fully worked-up.  In regards to the BJC, there 
will also be 95% cost certainty and any statutory processes will have been completed. 

 
5.32 The OBC and FBC build on the foundations of the Strategic Business Case in that they provide 

considerably more detail on each of the five dimensions outlined in the latest HM Treasury Green Book 
guidance.  The MCA Executive Team will provide guidance to project applicants and scheme promoters 
to assist them in developing an OBC and FBC, including DfT business case guidance for transport 
projects. 

 

5.33 The five dimensions help to ensure that all impacts of a project (monetised and non-monetised) are 
presented in the OBC and FBC for consideration.  The OBC and FBC templates and guidance set out the 
basis for capturing impacts, including Optimism Bias.  The Optimism Bias for transport projects is 
calculated in accordance with the DfT’s Value for Money Advice Note for Local Transport Decision 
Makers.      

 
5.34 It is essential that project applicants and scheme promoters agree the scope of costs and benefits before 

any substantive business case development is undertaken.   
 
5.35 Project applicants and scheme promoters must also ensure that the commercial, financial and 

management arrangements are appropriate for effective delivery. 
 

5.36 For all transport projects a summary of the OBC is published on the MCA’s and applicant’s websites to 
allow members of the public to comment.  All comments received must be considered and reflected in 
the next stage of the application process.  For all other projects, a summary of the BJC or OBC (whichever 
is applicable) must be published prior to submission to the MCA, and all comments received must be 
considered and reflected in the final submission.  
 

5.37 A fully developed OBC will have determined the preferred option, potential value for money, 
ascertained affordability and funding requirements and be preparing the potential deal which enables 
successful delivery. 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 162



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 39 of 70 
 

Stage 3 Appraisal: Outline Business Case and/or Business Justification Case 
5.38 An independent assessment is undertaken of all OBCs and BJCs to quality assure and scrutinise the 

project as well as undertaking all necessary due diligence checks.  Any comments received via the MCA 
website on the published business case are considered. 
 

5.39 When technical expertise or specialist advice is required to appraise the project, the MCA Executive 
Team uses experts – the Central Independent Appraisal Team (CIAT) - to assist in appraising the 
Business Case.  The MCA Executive Team ensures there is always a clear distinction and adequate 
separation between the scheme promoters and the decision makers.  

 
5.40 Transport projects undergo a proportionate TAG compliant appraisal.  An Appraisal Scoping Report 

template is used to assess such schemes, comprising the: 
 

▪ Level of analytical detail to be applied to approve a scheme against overarching Government 
transport objectives and the rationale for this; 

▪ Modelling tools to be applied; 

▪ Alternative interventions to be considered; and 

▪ Timescales for business case development. 
 
5.41 The MCA Executive Team completes a Value for Money (VfM) Statement and submits the appraisal 

report and VfM Statement to the Assurance Panel for their assessment.  For BJC’s the VfM Statement is 
finalised at this stage. 

 
 
 

Stage 3 Assurance Panel Recommendation: Outline Business Case and/or 
Business Justification Case 
5.42 The Assurance Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the MCA Executive Team and CIAT 

(where applicable), including the VfM Statement.  The Assurance Panel then agrees what 
recommendation they will make to the Thematic Board; either to approve the project or defer the 
project for further work.  At this stage it is still possible that an application could be recommended for 
rejection on the grounds of Poor VfM (determined as having a BCR rating of below 1, along with other 
indicators also showing poor levels accounting for significant non-monetised impacts and key 
uncertainties) or presenting significant uncertainty or risk.   

 
5.43 The Thematic Board can fully approve the BJC and/or the OBC if it is within their delegated limit, and 

grant authority to enter into a Funding Agreement.  Projects which exceed the delegation are endorsed 
by the relevant Thematic Board and then submitted to the MCA Board for approval. 
 

5.44 Meeting papers for the MCA or relevant Thematic Board are published on the MCA website a week 
before the meeting, including the project summaries and VfM assessments of applications seeking OBC 
approval. 

 
5.45 At OBC stage, the funding decision of the MCA (or Thematic Board with delegated authority) will be 

notionally allocated, subject to appropriate conditions being met within an agreed timeframe.  All 
funding decisions are communicated in writing to project applicants. 

 

Page 163



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 40 of 70 
 

5.46 Following approval of an OBC or BJC, it is necessary that any statutory processes are underway (OBC) 
or are completed (BJC), to ensure that the project is ready to start following full approval.  This could 
include for example, obtaining planning permission, initiating a Compulsory Purchase Order, or 
satisfying a number of conditions agreed as part of the OBC.  Compliance checks on any conditions of 
funding specified by the MCA, LEP or Thematic Board are then carried out by the MCA Executive Team, 
and updated documents on the project including the VfM Statement is published on the MCA website.  
 

5.47 For all projects seeking £5m and above from the MCA, the MCA Board can at its discretion provide an 
in-principle decision at OBC stage, providing that the eventual FBC is within agreed tolerances and 
thresholds.  These tolerances and thresholds will be determined by the MCA Board as part of the in-
principle approval on a project by project basis.  Ordinarily, the final costs will be expected to be within 
1% of the cost estimate given by the applicant at OBC submission.  In the event of an in-principle 
approval, delegation will be given to the MCA’s Statutory Officers to enter into a funding agreement 
providing that the FBC complies with the conditions set. 
 

 

Stage 4 Submission and Appraisal: Full Business Case 
5.48 Much of the work involved in producing the FBC focuses on revisiting and updating the conclusions of 

the OBC and documenting the outcomes of the procurement.  The purpose of the FBC is to: 
 

▪ Identify the procurement opportunity which offers optimum value for money; 

▪ Agree the commercial and contractual arrangements for the successful delivery; and 

▪ Put in place the detailed management arrangements for successful delivery. 

Any pre-contract conditions which were put in place as part of the OBC approval should be cleared 
during the development of an FBC. 
 

5.49 The Assurance Panel reviews the technical analysis undertaken by the MCA Executive Team and CIAT 
(where applicable), including the VfM Statement.  The Assurance Panel then agrees what 
recommendation they will make to the Thematic Board; either to approve the project or defer the 
project for further work.   

 

Stage 4 Agreement: Full Business Case 
5.50 Meeting papers for the MCA or relevant Thematic Board are published on the MCA website a week 

before the meeting, including the project summaries and VfM assessments of applications seeking FBC 
approval. 
 

5.51 The Thematic Board can approve the Full Business Case if it is within their delegated limit.  Projects 
which exceed the delegation are endorsed by the relevant Thematic Board and then submitted to the 
MCA Board for approval. 
 

5.52 At this point, the MCA, or Thematic Board if it is within their delegation limits, will be asked to grant 
authority to enter into a Funding Agreement once funding approval is given.  Updated documents on 
the project including the VfM Statement are published on the MCA website. 

 
 

Page 164



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 41 of 70 
 

Complaints and Appeals 
5.53 All applicants for funding are made aware of the recommendations made by the Assurance Panel and 

the decision of the relevant approving Board, along with the rationale for the recommendations.  
Complaints can be made if the applicant deems that due process has not been followed. 

 
5.54 Decisions made by the Mayor, MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards can be scrutinised by the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.  All decisions on funding must follow the appraisal process outlined above to be 
valid.   
 

5.55 If a complaint is made, the MCA Chair and Monitoring Officer will convene an independent committee 
to review the issue and make a recommendation to the MCA/LEP Board as appropriate.   

 
5.56 In any case where it is alleged that the MCA, LEP or Thematic Board is (a) acting in breach of the law, (b) 

failing to adhere to the process outlined in this Assurance Framework, or (c) failing to safeguard public 
funds, complaints are directed to the MCA’s Monitoring Officer or their deputy.  This includes complaints 
from stakeholders, members of the public or internal whistleblowers.  

 
5.57 As the MCA is the accountable body for all funding decisions, the Monitoring Officer will address the 

allegation following the protocols set out in the MCA Constitution. 
 
5.58 If the MCA or LEP cannot resolve the issue to the complainant’s satisfaction, and the complaint relates 

to funding allocated to South Yorkshire, the issue may be passed to the relevant Government 
department (such as the DLUHC, or the Department for Transport (DfT). 

 
 

Conflicts of Interest and Decision-Making 
5.59 At all stages of decision-making, the national guidance on registering conflicts of interest is adhered to. 

This includes any interests declared by members of the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards, the Assurance 
Panel, and Statutory Officers.  This is detailed in the LEP Declarations of Interest Policy.    

 
5.60 Each member of the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards is required to declare their pecuniary and non-

pecuniary interests (whether they are a member in their individual capacity or representing an 
organisation).  Members are also responsible for reviewing and updating their register.  This includes 
declaring any gifts or hospitality received.  Declarations of interest are also sought and recorded in the 
minutes of each MCA, LEP and Thematic Board meeting. The Individual Register of Interest forms and 
the Register of Declarations Made at Meetings are regularly updated and published on the MCA website.   

 
5.61 Senior members of staff within the MCA Executive Team and Statutory Officers also complete and 

maintain an Individual Register of Interest and update it when circumstances change.  These are also 
published on the MCA website.  

  

Page 165

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181&info=1&bcr=1
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Declaration-of-Interests-Policy21-22.pdf
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgMemberIndexGroup.aspx?G=Cmembers&M=SCRCommitteeMembers&bcr=1
https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListDeclarationsOfInterest.aspx?XXR=0&DR=01%2f01%2f2019-12%2f11%2f2019&ACT=Find


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 42 of 70 
 

6. Contract Management 

 

6.1 Once funding is approved for a project, either for project development costs or full award,  contracts are 
issued and regular communication with the project applicant or scheme promoter is maintained 
throughout the project’s lifetime. 

 
 

Contracting  
6.2 A Grant Letter (for project development costs) or Funding Agreement (for full award) between the MCA 

and project applicant/scheme promoter sets out the conditions relating to the MCA’s agreement to fund 
the project and the responsibilities of the MCA and applicant/scheme promoter in managing, delivering 
and monitoring the project.  A Grant Letter will only be required where projects are drawing down 
development cost funding ahead of full approval and full award.   

 
6.3 The Funding Agreement specifies that grants and loans are capped, and applicants/scheme promoters 

bear the risk for all overspend on the project beyond the approved amount. 
 

6.4 The Funding Agreement also stipulates the expected outputs and outcomes that the project will deliver.    
 
 

Payment Against Claims 
6.5 Payment milestones are agreed with the project applicant/scheme promoter at the point of contract.  

The milestones depend on the complexity, cost and timescales of the project.  This forms part of the 
programme management role of the MCA, which is subject to external audit. 

 
6.6 Each grant claim is crosschecked against the approved project baseline information as part of the 

reporting processes.  Prior to payment of grant, evidence checks are conducted on approximately 10% 
of the claim value.  The value of the required checks is determined by the level of risk and project 
performance to date.  

 
 

Managing Contract Performance 
6.7 The MCA Executive Team manages the delivery of the contract and works with the applicant/scheme 

promoter to monitor the project’s progress and risks. Monitoring conditions are set out initially in a grant 
determination letter from Government for each funding source, so the MCA Executive Team is required 
to adopt a flexible approach to managing contract performance. This may be dependent on the funding 
source, value or risk of a particular programme or project.  
 

6.8 The MCA Executive Team monitors the delivery of the project, and the progress made in achieving the 
outputs and outcomes, in line with the Monitoring and Evaluation Framework.  

 
6.9 The MCA Executive Team is responsible for immediately addressing any slippages or concerns regarding 

project delivery and taking corrective action, including updating the Risk Register as necessary.   
 

Page 166



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 43 of 70 
 

6.10 A change control process is in place to ensure that variations to an approved project are discussed with 
the project applicant and agreed with the MCA Executive Team.  Variations to a project are logged on 
the project’s file and reported to the LEP, MCA and Thematic Boards when appropriate.  Minor changes 
can be agreed between the project applicant and MCA Executive Team where the change does not 
affect the principles of the project and does not exceed the MCA funding allocated for the year.  The 
relevant Board is however, notified of any changes that are significant or contrary to the terms of the 
Funding Agreement.    

 
6.11 Where there is significant underperformance or cause for concern, a project will be referred to the MCA, 

LEP or Thematic Boards for a decision.  
 
 

Clawback 
6.12 The Grant Letter and Funding Agreement include a mechanism for clawback based on an assessment 

of risk.  This ensures that funding is only spent on the specified eligible activity and is linked to the 
delivery of outputs and outcomes.  It also gives the MCA the option of clawing back funds for poor 
performance or misuse of funds.   

  

Page 167



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 44 of 70 
 

7. Measuring Performance and Success 

7.1 Monitoring and measuring the performance of projects and programmes provides important lessons 
which are used to improve future decision-making.  This increases the likelihood of successful delivery 
of future projects.   

 
 

Monitoring and Evaluation Framework 
7.2 A comprehensive monitoring and evaluation framework is in place which has been designed in 

accordance with the most recent HM Treasury’s Magenta and Green Book principles and other 
monitoring and evaluation guidance, such as that published by the What Works Centre. 

 
7.3 The Monitoring and Evaluation Framework sets out how projects and programmes including devolved 

funds such as AEB and TCF will be assessed both during their delivery and post-delivery phases, to 
understand the inputs, outputs and impacts of investment made in South Yorkshire.  The framework 
outlines in detail the processes in place to enable the MCA Executive Team to gather robust feedback 
on delivery performance and identify the lessons learnt from projects and programmes and any best 
practice that can be applied to future activity, programmes and policy.  The Framework supports the 
Government’s five-yearly Gateway Review process for evaluating investment funds.   

 
7.4 The framework sets out several logic models, and identifies the performance metrics and indicators that 

are used to assess the impact of a project or programme and its contribution to delivering the Devolution 
Deal, and SEP and RAP objectives and output and outcome targets for economic growth.  This includes 
the specific objectives and targets for devolved funding such as AEB and TCF. 

 
7.5 The SEP includes a broad range of economic, social and environmental indicators that new MCA and 

LEP funded schemes and projects will be measured against.  The SEP indicators are also used to regularly 
track the overall performance and health of the South Yorkshire economy.  This quantitative data helps 
to inform the development of new schemes and interventions to address weaknesses and challenges 
in the local economy.    

 
7.6 The process for monitoring and evaluating project and programme performance is summarised in the 

sections below.  
 
 

Monitoring 
7.7 All project applicants/scheme promoters and AEB delivery partners are required to provide regular 

financial and delivery information, including progress made in achieving the expected outputs and 
outcomes, to the MCA Executive Team.    Performance Reports are expected quarterly as a minimum, 
however, reporting frequency is based on the assessment of risk.  Where a project or programme is 
considered high risk, the frequency of formal monitoring increases to monthly.  The frequency of 
reporting on the delivery of outputs and outcomes can reduce to every six months following the 
completion of works or activity.  Again, the frequency is determined by the level of risk.         

 

Page 168



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 45 of 70 
 

7.8 The applicant/scheme promoter and AEB delivery partner submits quarterly reports to MCA Executive 
Team.  All quarterly reports are signed-off by the Section 73 Officer and LEP Board.  This enables the 
MCA and LEP to fulfil their duties on reporting and accounting for public monies.  

 
7.9 Site visits to project applicant/scheme promoters and delivery partners are conducted once per year as 

a minimum.  Site visits may by exception, be conducted more or less frequently based on an assessment 
of risk. 

 
7.10 Project Applicants/scheme promoters and delivery partners are responsible for informing the MCA 

Executive Team of any changes to the scope, costs and implementation timescales for their project.  The 
MCA Executive Team assesses the impact of any changes on the overall programme, budget and 
expenditure.  Cost increases, financial slippage and significant changes to outputs and outcomes are 
reported to the appropriate Board where necessary.  The MCA does not guarantee that it will meet any 
cost increases either in full or in part. 

 
7.11 The MCA Executive Team presents Performance Reports on project and programme delivery, including 

AEB, to the MCA, LEP and relevant Thematic Board.  This ensures that LEP members are informed of 
progress on projects and are sighted on any issues that will result in financial slippage or 
underperformance. 

 
7.12 Performance Reports are also submitted to the relevant Government department, specifically DLUHC, 

the Department for Education and the Department for Transport.  The frequency of reporting is 
determined by the relevant Government department although it usually consists of the submission of 
quarterly updates to the department and a formal annual report.  

 
7.13 Following devolution of the AEB in 2021/22 academic year, the MCA will submit an annual report to 

Government each January on the delivery of AEB functions from the previous academic year to date 
including: 

 
▪ South Yorkshire policies for adult education 
▪ Expenditure against AEB 
▪ Data analysis of AEB delivery in South Yorkshire 

 
 

Evaluation 
7.14 The frequency and type of evaluation conducted, depends on the contract value, duration and 

complexity of the project.  The level of evaluation required is determined at Outline Business Case stage 
so that adequate resource can be allocated to fund the cost of evaluation prior to the project’s approval.  
This enables evaluation to be factored into a project and programme’s design from the outset. 

 
7.15 Pilot projects and major schemes such as AEB, TCF and CRSTS, are subject to more extensive and 

frequent evaluation; typically, annual interim evaluation and a final evaluation after the project has 
ended. 
 

7.16 As a minimum, all projects are evaluated post-delivery on the project’s impact on the South Yorkshire 
economy, to ascertain whether the project’s objectives, outputs and outcomes were achieved, the 
reasons and results of any under or over performance, and to identify any lessons or recommendations 
that should be applied to future projects.  The evaluation assesses the economic, social and 

Page 169



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 46 of 70 
 

environmental impact against the core and supplementary key performance indicators listed in the SEP, 
RAP and the individual Monitoring and Evaluation Plans developed for specific programmes such as TCF, 
as well as the national key performance indicators for Gainshare, AEB and CRSTS.  The MCA’s core and 
supplementary Key Performance Indicators are listed in Appendix C.    

 
7.17 The MCA Executive Team procures external and independent evaluation of all MCA and LEP funded 

programmes and projects, including AEB and TCF through an open and competitive process to evaluate 
the impact of specific funding streams, significant investments and pilot projects. 

 
7.18 Research and evaluation consultants are invited to apply to be part of an Evaluation Panel and deliver 

independent evaluation of projects, schemes and programmes.  Experts are contracted based on their 
subject and thematic expertise and evaluation experience.   

 
7.19 The use of external evaluation experts to provide technical expertise and specialist advice on conducting 

project and programme evaluation, ensures that all evaluation conducted on projects and programmes 
funded by the MCA and LEP is as objective and impartial as possible. 

 
7.20 Project evaluation provides accountability for the investment made.  It also provides local evidence on 

which to base future projects and programmes.  The MCA Executive Team reviews the results of the 
evaluation against the objectives of the project as set out in the business case and Funding Agreement 
and the most appropriate counterfactual.  Evaluation results for all projects are published on the MCA 
website. 

 
7.21 Where there is a variation between a project’s objectives and its outcomes, the MCA Executive Team 

works with the promoter to agree corrective action.  If the corrective action is unsuccessful, clawback 
clauses in the Funding Agreement can be invoked as a final resort and to secure the desired outcomes 
via alternative measures. 

 
7.22 The MCA Executive Team compiles a summary report for the MCA of all projects that have completed 

during the previous quarter.  This report confirms whether the project has delivered against its spending 
profile and achieved the outputs and objectives in the Funding Agreement.  The report also recommends 
whether each project can be closed.   

 
7.23 As part of the annual report to Government on the delivery of AEB functions from the previous academic 

year to date, the MCA will also provide an update on interim evaluation findings on the impact that AEB 
has had in South Yorkshire.  These findings will be derived from qualitative data such as employer and 
learner survey responses and quantitative data on the take-up of AEB funded provision in South 
Yorkshire and improvements in participation, progression and attainment in statutory and non-statutory 
training.  

 
7.24 In addition, other devolved investment funds to Mayoral Combined Authorities are subject to the 

Government’s Gateway Review process to evaluate how Gainshare money has been invested.  An 
independent panel assesses and evaluates the impact of investments on the economy and economic 
growth every five years.  The first Gateway Review for the MCA is expected to take place in 2025.  
  

Page 170



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 47 of 70 
 

8. Inclusive and Collaborative Working 

8.1 The strength and success of the MCA and LEP in South Yorkshire is founded on good governance and 
partner collaboration.  Collaboration and a true partnership approach have been a cornerstone of the 
MCA and LEP achieving what they have to date.  This collaboration is resulting in a focused programme 
of engagement; designed to accelerate the delivery of the SEP and harness South Yorkshire’s latent 
potential. 

 
 

The LEP Network 
8.2 The LEP is an active member of the national LEP Network and is committed to developing and sharing 

best practice with the LEP Network and its members.  The LEP is also committed to learning and 
embedding the best practice of other LEPs within South Yorkshire.  

 
 
 

Collaboration with Other LEPs, Metro Mayors and the Northern 
Powerhouse 
8.3 The Mayor, MCA and LEP are committed to working in collaboration with other LEPs, Mayoral Combined 

Authorities and the Northern Powerhouse to pool knowledge and resource and enhance the 
effectiveness, transparency, decision-making and leadership in local economic development. 

 
8.4 The Mayor, MCA and LEP have achieved the following by working across geographical borders:  

 
▪ A series of joint lobbying by the Northern Mayors on transport funding including Northern 

Powerhouse Rail (NPR), the National Rail Plan and Levelling-Up; 
▪ Led work to support the Metro Mayors (M10) network; 
▪ Collaborated with Public Health England and the integrated care system on health issues 

throughout the Covid-19 pandemic; 
▪ Explored a pilot project on innovation with peer MCAs including the West Midlands; 
▪ Collaborated with Transport for the North (TfN) and LEPs across the North of England to inform the 

development of TfN’s Strategic Transport Plan.  TfN also contributed to the development of the 
South Yorkshire Transport Strategy and Integrated Rail Action Plan; 

▪ Worked in partnership with the Metro Mayors on an Air Quality Summit and joint lobbying to 
Government for increased powers and funding;  

▪ Collaborated on Working Win, the health-led employment trial;  
▪ Led a trade delegation to India in conjunction with NP11 members (the 11 LEP areas in the Northern 

Powerhouse) and led the NP11’s presence and programme at MIPIM 2020; and 
▪ Shared intelligence on AEB procurement. 

 

Engaging with Other Partners  
8.5 Regular meetings are held with partners to ensure an open and two-way dialogue on activity being 

undertaken across South Yorkshire, and to discuss the development of strategies and progress in 
delivering the SEP priorities and objectives.  These meetings take place with business representative 

Page 171



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 48 of 70 
 

organisations, including the Chambers of Commerce, Federation of Small Business, CBI, Institute of 
Directors and Make UK, as well as local authority partners and the universities, such as the Business 
Advisory Group meetings. 

 
8.6 A programme of engagement events is also held with partners across South Yorkshire.  Typically, these 

events are thematic based, and are used to obtain input and feedback from partners to inform South 
Yorkshire’s policies, strategies and project formulation.  These engagement events are advertised on the 
MCA website and social media channels and through partners such as the business representative 
organisations. 

 
8.7 Examples of collaboration with partners and agencies have included: 

 
▪ Establishing a series of boards with key stakeholders and partners from the public, private and 

voluntary and community sectors to inform policy direction in South Yorkshire, including the Music 
Board, Innovation Board, Art and Culture and Public Health; 

▪ Establishing a Policy Advisory Group to share and pool economic evidence and data to inform the 
development of the new SEP;    

▪ Establishing a Local Resilience Forum to collaborate on the response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
▪ Development of a Renewal Action Plan to direct investment towards economic recovery and 

growth;  
▪ Having representation on the Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund Board;  
▪ Playing an active role in the north of England Growth Hub network, which is designed to share best 

practice; 
▪ Playing an active part of the national network established for the devolution of the Adult Education 

Budget (AEB).  The LEP has led the work around data analysis/labour market intelligence and the 
contractual arrangements for the operation of the AEB in a devolved model; and 

▪ Developing a strong working relationship with Department for International Trade (DIT) on the 
Northern Powerhouse agenda, including trade missions and having three exciting investment 
propositions showcased through the Northern Powerhouse Investment portfolio/pitchbook. 

 
8.8 Local and national partners have been, and will continue to be, fully engaged throughout the 

development phase of AEB devolution.  A Skills Advisory Network brings together employers 
representatives, local authority and further education providers with other partners from South 
Yorkshire.  The Network assists in the identification of skills priorities across South Yorkshire and feeds 
into the processes of setting the priorities for AEB commissioning, and the development of a Regional 
Skills Strategy.  

 
 

 
Engaging with the Public 
8.9 The MCA publishes a plan on key decisions that will be taken at least 28 days before the decision is due 

to be made.  The Forward Plan of Key Decisions includes decisions that have a financial implication (such 
as projects that are seeking investment from the MCA and LEP, new programmes or schemes that would 
be delivered across South Yorkshire, or new strategies) and non-financial decisions which impact on two 
or more local authority areas.  The plan is refreshed and published on the MCA website every month and 
it enables members of the public to view information on decisions before they are made so that they 
can comment on them. 

 

Page 172

https://governance.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 49 of 70 
 

8.10 The plan provides brief information on the project, programme or strategy, the date the decision will be 
taken, the lead officer’s contact details and information on how to access any relevant reports (subject 
to restrictions on their disclosure). 

 
8.11 In addition to publishing information on potential investment decisions in the Forward Plan of Key 

Decisions, the VfM Statement and business case for each project is published and publicised on the MCA 
website at every stage of the appraisal process.  This enables members of the public and stakeholders 
to comment on proposed projects before funding decisions are made.  All comments received are 
considered by the Assurance Panel in deciding whether to recommend a project for approval, deferment 
or rejection, and are made available to the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards.  

 
8.12 The MCA website also explains how members of the public can request information as well as providing 

feedback and submitting questions for MCA meetings.   
 

8.13 The LEP holds an Annual General Meeting (AGM) each year which is open to the public and publicised 
through the MCA’s website and social media networks and press.  

 
8.14 The MCA holds its AGM in June each year. 

 
 
 

Formal and Public Consultation  
8.15 In accordance with the MCA’s statutory obligations, the MCA Executive Team undertakes a public 

consultation exercise when revising or developing a new strategic document.  The consultation period 
runs for between 6 and 12 weeks.  Information on the consultation is posted on the homepage of the 
MCA website with a draft document and details of how to submit views, comments and supporting 
evidence electronically and by post.  Information on any scheduled consultation events are also 
displayed. 

 
8.16 Comments and evidence submitted by partners and individuals during the public consultation period 

are logged, analysed and categorised, with records kept on how the final draft of the strategy has been 
amended to reflect the comments and evidence received. 

 
8.17 In 2020 the public were consulted on the draft Strategic Economic Plan.  In 2022 the MCA will publicly 

consult on Enhanced Partnerships, an agreement between the MCA as the Local Transport Authority 
and bus operators in South Yorkshire on delivering bus service improvements.  

 
 
  

Page 173



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 50 of 70 
 

9. Publishing Information 

9.1 The MCA is subject to the same Transparency Code that applies to local authorities.  To deliver the 
responsibilities under the code, the MCA and LEP has developed a robust, but proportionate, approach 
to sharing and publishing information so that it is accessible to the public.   

 
 

Access to Information 
9.2 The MCA Constitution includes a publication scheme which sets out how and when agendas, minutes, 

papers and other documents produced by the MCA, LEP and MCA Executive Team will be made 
available to the public.  It also sets out any exceptions to publishing information, such as not disclosing 
information that is prohibited by law or which is exempt under the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 
12A or Freedom of Information Act 2000.   

 
9.3 The Publication Scheme, which applies to both the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and MCA, is 

published on the MCA website.  MCA, LEP and Thematic Board papers clearly state whether the paper 
will be published under the Publication Scheme and whether any exemptions apply. 

 
9.4 The MCA is subject to the Local Government Act 1972, Freedom of Information Act 2000, Data 

Protection Acts of 1998 and 2018, the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) and the 
Environmental Impact Regulations 2004.  As Accountable Body, the MCA fulfils these functions on 
behalf of the LEP.   
 

9.5 The public are made aware of their right to access information through the MCA website.  Requests for 
information are dealt with in accordance with the relevant legislation and information is not 
unreasonably withheld.  The MCA Executive Team elects to publish more information on activities and 
decisions than is stipulated in Government guidance, so that Freedom of Information requests are less 
necessary.   

 
9.6 All data supplied to the MCA, LEP and MCA Executive Team, including personal, financial, confidential 

and sensitive information is processed and handled in line with data protection legislation.  Personal 
information is stored securely to maintain privacy.  This process is detailed in the Privacy Policy. 
 
 

MCA Website 
9.7 Core information regarding activity being undertaken by the MCA, LEP and Mayor is available on the 

MCA website.   
 
9.8 The MCA website is structured into the following sections: 
 

▪ Investors – this section is targeted at potential inward investors and contains information on the 
portfolio of land available for investment in South Yorkshire;   

▪ Business – this section is aimed primarily at indigenous businesses and explains the schemes and 
initiatives available to support businesses to start-up, thrive and grow, including the Growth Hub;  

Page 174

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/requests-for-information/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/terms-and-privacy/


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 51 of 70 
 

▪ Governance – this is a dedicated section on how the MCA and LEP function, including sub-sections 
on the Board structure and Board membership (Who We Are), LEP and MCA policies, procedures, 
processes, decision-making and expenditure (How We Make Decisions), agendas and papers for 
meetings of the different Boards (Meetings), statutory notices on the Mayoral Election (Democracy 
and Elections) and the LEP Board Recruitment process and vacancies;   

▪ What We Do – this section provides information on the SEP, thematic priorities, public 
consultations on draft strategies, mini-portfolios on LEP funded projects and initiatives and a 
resources library of key documents and policies; and 

▪ Mayor – this section contains information on the elected Mayor including the Mayor’s role, powers, 
priorities and plans. 

 
 

Meeting Papers 
9.9 The schedule of MCA Board, LEP Board, Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee meetings for the year ahead are published on the MCA website. 
 
9.10 The notice of the meeting, the agenda and accompanying papers are published five clear working days 

in advance of the meeting.  Where papers contain commercially sensitive information or are subject to 
one of the exemptions under the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A or Freedom of Information 
Act 2000, they are not published and are categorised as a private item.  Decisions on whether individual 
agenda items are private items are made by the LEP Chair in consultation with the Head of Paid Service 
and Monitoring Officer using existing local authority regulations. 

 
9.11 Draft minutes of meetings are published no more than ten working days after the meetings on the MCA 

website.  All MCA minutes are signed at the same or next suitable meeting of the Authority and published 
within ten clear working days.   

 
 

Notice of Decisions 

9.12 As stated in previous sections, the MCA publishes a Forward Plan of Key Decisions that will be taken by 
the MCA, LEP or Thematic Boards at least 28 days before the decision is made to enable members of 
the public to view and comment on them.   

 
9.13 Details of all project approvals made by the MCA, LEP and Thematic Boards are recorded in the Minutes 

of the meetings.  In addition, the MCA Executive Team maintains and publishes a Grants and Contracts 
Register on the MCA website which provides details of all contracts and agreements signed, a brief 
summary of the project, and the value of the contract. 

 
9.14 A Delegated Authority Report for decisions taken by each Thematic Board is produced for the MCA 

which documents all decisions that the Board has taken, including any approval they have given to 
projects within their delegated authority limit (up to £2 million) and any endorsement, deferment or 
rejection of projects that exceed their delegation.  Delegated Authority Reports is a standing agenda 
item for discussion at each MCA meeting and they are published in the meeting paper pack on the MCA 
website.    

 
 

Page 175

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 52 of 70 
 

Information on Board Members 
9.15 The following information on LEP and MCA Board Members is published on the MCA website: 
 

▪ Biography – including name, job title, organisation represented, membership of Committees and 
any lead roles; 

▪ Individual Register of Interests; 
▪ Declarations at Meetings; 
▪ Attendance Record; 
▪ Gifts and Hospitalities Record; and 
▪ Term of Office 
 

9.16 LEP Board members are not remunerated.  Members are entitled to claim back travel and subsistence 
costs incurred whilst undertaking duties and responsibilities on behalf of the LEP.  The MCA Executive 
Team publishes details of all expenses and subsistence claimed by LEP Board Members and authorised 
by the Head of Paid Service in Quarterly Expenses Reports.   

 
9.17 The MCA Executive Team also publishes any gifts or hospitality accepted and received by LEP Board 

members with a notional or actual value that exceeds £50.  Gifts and hospitality are recorded in each 
LEP Board Members’ Individual Register of Interest.   

 
 

Financial Information 
9.18 A range of budgetary and financial information is published on the MCA website so that it is transparent 

and accessible to the public. 
 
9.19 MCA, Mayoral and LEP budgets are set prior to the start of the financial year within the Budget and Policy 

Framework.  As the Accountable Body, the MCA is responsible for setting and approving the annual 
budgets for the organisations within the MCA governance structure.  This includes approving the 
transport revenue budget for transport operations in South Yorkshire and setting the transport levy.   

 
9.20 The MCA is also responsible for agreeing an annual programme of capital expenditure, together with 

proposals for the financing of that programme.  This includes projects promoted and projects directly 
managed by the MCA. 

 
9.21 Quarterly updates on the performance of the LEP capital and revenue programmes are provided to the 

MCA and LEP Boards and these are published in meeting papers. 
 
9.22 As stated previously in this section, funding decisions are also published on the MCA website in the 

Grants and Contracts Register.  Payments to general suppliers that have a value of more than £250 are 
published every month in the Payments Made to Suppliers register.  

 
9.23 The LEP’s finalised capital and revenue income and expenditure is published every year as part of the  

Group Accounts.  The draft accounts are considered by the MCA and LEP Boards in June/July each year.  
The finalised accounts which include the Annual Governance Statement, are published alongside the 
Independent Audit Certificate for the financial year.  

 
9.24 The roles and salary bands of all staff employed in the MCA Executive Team which exceed £50,000 

per annum are also published on the MCA website. 

Page 176

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/expenses/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/items-of-combined-authority-expenditure-over-250/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/09ii-AGS-Annex-A-v3-clean.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/monitoring/


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 53 of 70 
 

 

Procurement and Funding Opportunities  
9.25 The MCA Executive Team publishes calls for projects on a regular basis on the MCA website and social 

media feeds.  The application templates and guidance documents for each commissioning call are 
available via the MCA website. Calls for ESIF funded activity are also advertised on the www.gov.uk 
website. 

 
9.26 An open and competitive procurement process is in operation.  When undertaking any procurement, all 

Boards, officers and staff must comply with the Contract Procurement Rules.  Opportunities to supply 
goods and services are advertised on the YORtender website with a link from the MCA website.  

 
9.27 Information on how businesses can access advice and support services, including applying for grant-

funded programmes, is advertised in the Business section of the MCA website. 
 

 

Branding 
9.28 In accordance with branding guidance on awarded and devolved funding, the MCA Executive Team 

ensures that the correct logos and wording are displayed in all promotional materials for MCA and LEP 
funded projects and programmes.  Promotional materials include the MCA website, websites of project 
applicants/scheme promoters, signage, social media posts, press notices and marketing literature. 

 
 

LEP Delivery Plan 
9.29 The LEP publishes an Annual Delivery Plan and End of Year report in May each year.   
 
9.30 The Annual Delivery Plan outlines the LEP’s priorities and planned activities for the coming year 

including developmental work and any public consultation that is expected to take place.   
 
9.31 The End of Year report provides an assessment of the LEP’s activity and achievements against the 

Annual Delivery Plan and an assessment of how the South Yorkshire economy has changed over the 
course of the year.  This sets the baseline economic position to measure future performance against. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 177

http://www.gov.uk/
https://www.yortender.co.uk/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/business
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/our-decisions-expenditure/


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 54 of 70 
 

Glossary of Terms 
 

AEB Adult Education Budget 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

BCR Benefit Cost Ratio 

BEIS Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 

BF Brownfield Fund 

BJC Business Justification Case 

BMBC Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

CIAT Central Independent Appraisal Team 

CRF Community Renewal Fund 

CRSTS City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement 

D2N2 Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

DfE Department for Education 

DfT Department for Transport 

DLUHC Department for Levelling Up, Housing and, Communities 

DIT Department for International Trade 

DMBC Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council 

FBC Full Business Case 

FLUTE Forecasting the interactions of Land-Use, Transport and Economy 

GBF Getting Building Fund 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

LGF Local Growth Fund 

LTA Local Transport Authority 

MCA Mayoral Combined Authority 

OBC Outline Business Case 

R&D Research and Development 

RMBC Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

SBC Strategic Business Case 

SCC Sheffield City Council 

SCR Sheffield City Region 

SCRTM1 Sheffield City Region Transport Model 1 

Section 73 Equivalent to a Section 151 Officer 

SEP Strategic Economic Plan 

SYMCA South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 

SYPTE South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive 

TAG Transport Appraisal Guide (formerly known as WebTAG) 

TCF Transforming Cities Fund 

UKSPF UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
  

Page 178



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 55 of 70 
 

Appendix A: Summary of LEP Policies 

The South Yorkshire MCA and LEP are strongly committed to putting in place robust decision-making and 
financial management policies and procedures to ensure that public money is being spent responsibly and is 
accounted for.   
 
Each year, the suite of LEP policies are reviewed and refined in an effort to continually improve governance 
and accountability.  The LEP’s policies are listed below and published on the MCA website at 
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/about-us-governance-policy/how-we-make-decisions-2/. 
 
 

LEP Terms of Reference 
The LEP Terms of Reference outlines the role and aims of the LEP Board and the duties of LEP Board members.  
It also details the LEP’s Board member recruitment and appointment process, the roles of the Chair and Deputy 
Chair, and the decision-making process.    
 
 

LEP Board Recruitment 
The LEP Board Appointment Process explains how vacancies on the LEP Board will be openly advertised, and 
how Board appointments will be made by a LEP Appointments Panel in a transparent, competitive and non-
discriminatory way.   
 
 

Equality and Diversity 
The LEP’s commitment and approach to ensuring equality and diversity is detailed in the LEP Diversity Policy.  
The policy covers recruitment and selection and all engagement with individuals and organisations.  The policy 
also outlines the LEP Board’s commitment to nominating a LEP Board member to act as Diversity Champion. 
The policy applies to LEP Board members, the MCA Executive Team and any Thematic Board members. 
 
 

Code of Conduct 
All LEP Board members proactively sign-up to the LEP Code of Conduct when they are appointed to the Board, 
as a condition of their appointment.  The Code of Conduct explicitly requires LEP Board members to conform 
with the Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan principles) – selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, 
openness, honesty and leadership.  MCA Executive Team staff are required to sign the employee’s Code of 
Conduct as a condition of their employment which requires them to carry out their duties in accordance with 
the Nolan principles. 
 
 

Remuneration and Expenses 
LEP Board members are not remunerated.  Members are entitled to claim back travel and subsistence costs 
incurred whilst undertaking duties and responsibilities on behalf of the LEP.  The LEP Expenses Policy explains 
the requirement for travel and subsistence to be pre-approved by the Head of Paid Service prior to being 
incurred and the process for claiming expenses.  

Page 179

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/about-us-governance-policy/how-we-make-decisions-2/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Terms-of-Reference-21-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/lep-board-recruitment-process/
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Diversity-Policy-2021-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Code-of-Conduct-21-22v1.0.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Expenses-Policy-2021-22.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 56 of 70 
 

 
 

Gifts and Hospitality 
LEP Board members are required to notify the Head of Paid Service in writing of all offers of hospitality and gifts 
received with a value of more than £50.  The LEP Gifts and Hospitality Policy aligns with Local Authority systems 
and standards on accepting and declaring gifts.  The policy also applies to the MCA Executive Team and any 
Sub-groups involved in advising on or making decisions. 
 
 

Conflicts of Interest 
The LEP Declarations of Interest Policy requires all LEP Board members and senior officers to complete and 
maintain an up to date Register of Declarations to avoid any conflicts of interest when advising on, or making 
decisions.   
 
 

Whistleblowing 
The LEP Whistleblowing Policy provides information on how concerns about the LEP, LEP Board members and 
the MCA Executive Team should be raised, how the concerns will be handled and how concerns will be dealt 
with sensitively and in confidence. 
 
 

Complaints 

The LEP Confidential Complaints Policy explains how complaints about the LEP, LEP Board members and the 
MCA Executive Team should be submitted and how complaints will be dealt with and responded to. 
 
 

Data Management 
The Privacy Policy explains how and why information provided by service users and members of the public is 
collected and used.  This includes data that is provided to the MCA Executive Team via the MCA website, 
information provided to funded services and projects (e.g. Growth Hub, Skills Bank, Working Win) and data 
provided over the telephone.  The policy ensures that the LEP and MCA Executive Team will only process data 
in a legally compliant way, and that personal information will be handled in confidence and stored securely to 
maintain privacy. 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 180

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Gifts-and-Hospitality-Policy-21-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Declaration-of-Interests-Policy21-22.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Whistleblowing-Policy-21-22-1.pdf
https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/LEP-Confidential-Complaints-Policy-21-22.pdf


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 57 of 70 
 

Appendix B: Joint Statement from LEP and MCA 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) sets out the respective roles and responsibilities of the South 
Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) and the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  It has been produced 
to provide clarity on how decisions on public funds are made within South Yorkshire. 
 
 

Roles 
The MCA is the legal and Accountable Body for funding devolved by Government to the MCA and LEP, including 
the Growth Deal.  The MCA is also the Local Transport Authority for South Yorkshire. 
 
The LEP is a voluntary business-led partnership which drives economic growth and advises how LEP funding 
should be invested in developing and growing the South Yorkshire economy.    
 
The Mayor is directly elected by the electorate in South Yorkshire to lead the region and to promote it as a place 
to live, work and invest in.  The Mayor is Chair of the MCA and is a member of the LEP Board.  
 
 

Responsibilities 
The Mayoral Combined Authority is required to: 
 

▪ Approve all annual capital and revenue budgets prior to the start of the financial year;   

▪ Accept proposed projects onto the programme pipeline;  

▪ Ensure that decisions on proposed projects are aligned with the objectives of the SEP and RAP; 

▪ Test the value for money of proposed projects;  

▪ Ensure that the legal duties of the MCA as the LEP’s Accountable Body, operate in a responsible and 
transparent manner; and 

▪ Inform the LEP of any operational decisions made.  
 
 
The Local Enterprise Partnership is required to: 
 

▪ Produce and publish the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP); 

▪ Support the Mayor in producing the Local Industrial Strategy; 

▪ Advise the MCA on decisions of how any capital and revenue budgets allocated to the LEP are prioritised 
and spent; and 

▪ Oversee the delivery of any LEP funded programmes and projects. 

 
 

Operating Practices and Policies 
The MCA and LEP will be served by a central team of impartial staff (the MCA Executive Team) who will provide 
advice and report on financial information and programme delivery to both the MCA and LEP Boards.   

Page 181



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 58 of 70 
 

 
The MCA and LEP agree to conform with the Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan principles) – selflessness, 
integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 
 
The MCA and LEP are opposed to all forms of unlawful, unfair and inappropriate discrimination, and commit to 
provide equality and fairness to all those who wish to work with them and to not act less favourably on the 
grounds of any protected characteristic. 
 
 

Amendments 
This MoU can be amended at any time with agreement of both the MCA and LEP. 
 
 
 
 
The Mayoral Combined Authority and Local Enterprise Partnership affirm to know, understand and agree to this 
Memorandum of Understanding as negotiated together. 
 

Signed on Behalf of the South Yorkshire Mayoral 
Combined Authority: 

Signed on Behalf of the South Yorkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership: 

 
 

Signature:  Signature:  
 
Name: 

 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MP MBE 

 
Name: 

 
Lucy Nickson 

 
Position: 

 
South Yorkshire Mayor and Chair of 
the Mayoral Combined Authority 

 
Position: 

 
Interim LEP Chair 

 
Date: 

 
 

 
Date: 

 
 

 

Page 182



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 59 of 70 
 

Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators 

The core and supplementary key performance 
indicators that the MCA assesses funding applications and monitors programme, project and economic performance against are detailed below: 

Stronger 

Performance Management Reporting 

Core Indicator Outcome Data Source 2027 Target 2040 Target Gap Approach Reviewer Frequency Director 
Responsible 

Productivity 
per hour 
worked 

A higher 
productivity 
workforce 

Labour productivity 
measured in GVA 
per employee. 
Annual Population 
Survey 

 Increase 
productivity 
rate in South 
Yorkshire by 
£6.80 per hour 
(24%) to match 
the UK average  

South Yorkshire: 
£28.3  
UK: £35.2 
 
GAP: £6.8 per hour  
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

High growth 
businesses 

A larger proportion 
of high growth 
businesses. 
 

Business 
Demography Table 
7.1 
 

 Increase 
proportion of 
high growth 
businesses in 
South Yorkshire 
by 25 (0.5%)  

South Yorkshire: 
3.9% 
Range: Barnsley 
(3.3%) – S/R (4.0%) 
UK: 4.3% 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Business 
density 

A higher density is 
economically 
beneficial in terms 
of GDP 

Nomis UK Business 
Counts 'Business 
density (businesses 
per 10,000 people 

 Increase the 
number of 
businesses in 
South Yorkshire 
by 20,600 
(42%) 

Barnsley (312), 
Doncaster (363), 
Rotherham (346), 
Sheffield (335), 
England (648) 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Higher-level 
occupations 

Higher proportion 
of employees in 
managerial, 
technical & 
professional 
occupations (SOC 
1 – 3)  

Nomis  Additional 
42,000 (6.3%) 
16-64 year olds 
working in 
higher level 
occupations 

South Yorkshire: 
43.7% 
GB: 50.0% 
 
Gap: 6.3 p.p 
(equivalent to 
40,500)  

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Supporting Indicator 

P
age 183

https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 60 of 70 
 

Economic 
output per 
worker 

The size of our 
economy relative 
to our workforce 
(and population) 
will increase. 

Labour productivity 
measured in GVA 
per worker. Annual 
Population Survey. 

 Parity with UK 
average 
 

South Yorkshire: 
range £42,620-
45,434 
UK: £56,670 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Employment More working-age 
people are in 
employment.  
 

Annual Population 
Survey 
 

 Parity with GB 
average 
 

South Yorkshire: 
70.8% 
GB: 74.4% Gap: 3.6 
p.p. (equivalent to 
33,000 people) 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Enterprise 
birth rate 

Higher density and 
growing business 
base 

Business birth rate. 
ONS Business 
Demography data. 
 

 Exceed UK 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
14% (range 12.6 
[Sheffield]-17.1% 
[Doncaster])  
UK: 13% 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Enterprise 
survival rate 

Higher density and 
growing business 
base 
 

New business 1-year 
survival rate. ONS 
Business 
Demography data. 
 

 Exceed UK 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
89.5% 
SY range: Sheffield 
(88.3%) – B/R 
(91.1%), UK (88.3%) 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

R&D 
expenditure 

A greater 
investment in R&D 
indicates an 
innovative 
economy 

R&D expenditure as 
a % of the economy 
using ONS and 
Eurostat data 

 2.4% of GDP 
by 2027 
 

South Yorkshire: 
£440m 
UK: £69,600m 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Digital 
connectivity 

A higher 
proportion of SY is 
covered by full 
fibre. 

Gigabit capable 
 

 Parity with 
England 
average 
 

South Yorkshire: 
range (9-38%) 
England: 36% 
 

Board 
Report 

LEP / MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Urban centres Consistent or 
improving levels 
of footfall in town 
and city centres. 

(Potentially 
‘Locomizer’ 
commercial data – 
currently exploring 
possibilities)  

 TBC TBC 

Board 
Report 

LEP / MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

 

P
age 184

https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/datasets/businessdemographyreferencetable


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 61 of 70 
 

 

 

 

  

P
age 185



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 62 of 70 
 

Greener 

Performance Management Reporting 

Core Indicator Outcome Data Source 2027 Target 2040 Target Gap Approach Reviewer Frequency Director 
Responsible 

Flooding Flood risk 
demonstrably 
reduced overall 
by xx% 
compared to 
2020 baseline 

TBC  17,000 
additional 
homes and 
businesses 
protected from 
flooding 

TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Carbon Reduce carbon 
emissions. 
 

UK local authority 
and regional carbon 
dioxide emissions 
national statistics 
 

 Reduction of 
carbon dioxide 
emissions in 
each local 
authority to be 
equal to or 
lower than the 
England 
average of 
4.9/capita 

South Yorkshire 
(range): 3.8 to 
6.4/capita 
England: 4.9/capita 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Modal shift Car usage and 
motor traffic falls, 
indicating mode 
share and lower 
pollution due to 
transport. 

Either using DfT 
source for miles 
driven, or more local 
(SYPTE) data 
 

 Additional 
29,000 
workers using 
public transport 
to commute 
and 14,000 
using active 
travel modes to 
commute 

TBC - net reduction 
in line with strategy  
  

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Supporting Indicator 

Bus patronage Increase bus 
patronage  

BUS0110 passenger 
journeys on local 

bus services per 
head 

  South Yorkshire: 
20.9 journeys per 
head 
England: 27.8 
journeys per head  

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

TEB Quarterly 

Corporate 
Director of 

Public 
Transport 

 

P
age 186



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 63 of 70 
 

Bus time More buses on 
time 

Increase in 
cumulative journey 
times for an agreed 
set of frequent 
services compared 
to 2017 baseline 

-4.0% 
(BSIP 2025 
target) 

-4.0% +0.3% compared to 
2017 levels (current) 

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

TEB Quarterly 

Corporate 
Director of 

Public 
Transport 

Reliability More reliable 
transport 
infrastructure 

Bus operator data 99.5% 
(BSIP 2025 
target) 

99.5% 98.8% (current) Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

TEB Quarterly 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Bus 
satisfaction 

More satisfied 
users 

Transport Focus 
annual survey 

92% (BSIP 
2025 target) 

92% 89%(current) Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

TEB Quarterly 

Corporate 
Director of 

Public 
Transport 

Ecosystem 
services 

The value of total 
ecosystem 
service flows 
increases 

Natural Capital 
Solutions report for 
South Yorkshire 
(2021) 

 Increasing 
value of 
ecosystem 
service 
provision 
relative to 2021 
benchmark 

Barnsley (£117m), 
Doncaster (£131m), 
Rotherham (£100m) 
Sheffield (£171m) 

Board 
Report 

 
MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Commuting 
mode of travel 

More people use 
public transport 
and active travel 

Census (QS701EW)  TBC Bicycle (9,395), on 
foot (63,724) 

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Renewable 
energy 
generation 

Increase Annual generation 
(MWh), BEIS 

 TBC South Yorkshire 
(1,174 GWh) 

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

MCA / LEP 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Net Zero 
Carbon 
Emissions 
(Scope 1 and 
2) for the 
region 

Reduction CO2e – ONS  Net Zero TBC Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

MCA / LEP 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

P
age 187



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 64 of 70 
 

Air quality Reduction Air emissions Nitrous 
Oxide (N2O) CO2e – 
ONS  

 TBC TBC 

Board 
Report 

MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Carbon 
intensity 

Reduction per capita and per 
km2 

 TBC TBC 

Board 
Report MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Woodland 
coverage 

Increase % coverage – 
Natural Capital 
Mapping 

 TBC South Yorkshire 
(10.6%) 

Board 
Report 

MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Housing stock 
energy 
efficiency 

All new homes in 
South Yorkshire 
are built to 
Energy 
Performance 
Certificate Grade 
C standard and 
above 

TBC  TBC TBC 

Board 
Report 

MCA / LEP 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Active travel Increase % using ‘active’ 
modes of travel 
Walking and Cycling 
Statistics, England – 
ONS  

 TBC TBC Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

MCA Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

 

 

 

  

P
age 188



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 65 of 70 
 

Fairer 

Performance Management Reporting 

Core Indicator Outcome Data Source 2027 Target 2040 Target Gap Approach Reviewer Frequency Director 
Responsible 

Economic 
inactivity 

Fewer people 
are economically 
inactive 

% who are 
economically 
inactive - aged 16-
64   
Annual Population 
Survey 
 

 Reduction of 
31,600 (2.2%) 
16-64 year olds 
classified as 
economically 
inactive 
 

South Yorkshire 
(24.0%) 
UK (21.8%) 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Qualifications & 
skills 

Delivering a local 
workforce for 
future growth. A 
higher 
proportion of 
working-age 
population (16-
64) possess 
higher 
qualifications, 
indicating 
progression in 
education and 
employment 

NVQ 3 and above. 
Nomis. 
 

 Additional 
12,000 (2.8%) 
16-64 year olds 
in South 
Yorkshire 
obtaining a 
higher level 
qualification 
(NVQ 3+)  
 

South Yorkshire: 
58.1% 
GB: 61.3% 
Gap: 2.8 p.p 
(equivalent to 
12,000 people) 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

Wage levels A lower 
proportion of 
employees on 
low earnings 
(further work to 
assess lowest 
pay gap within 
20th percentile 
of earnings 
distribution). 
 
 

Annual Survey of 
Hours and Earnings. 
Hourly pay (gross) all 
workers 
 

 Gap of £1.38 
per hour 
between South 
Yorkshire and 
UK average is 
reduced by all 
workers 
receiving a 14% 
pay increase  

South Yorkshire: 
£14.28  
UK: £15.71 
Gap: £1.48 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

P
age 189



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 66 of 70 
 

Personal 
wellbeing 

Estimated levels 
of worthwhile, 
life satisfaction, 
happiness and 
anxiety are 
indicators of 
personal well-
being. 
 

Self-reported 
wellbeing – people 
with high anxiety 
score (NHS 
Fingertips) 
 

 Reduction in 
South Yorkshire 
residents self-
reporting high 
anxiety to 
below 2020 

level or to 

England 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
range (20.1-24.1%) 
England 21.9% 
 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Supporting Indicator 

NVQ – all levels Increasing 
 

Nomis  Parity with GB 
average 

TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

Health Our population 
live increasingly 
long, healthy 
lives. 

Healthy life 
expectancy at birth - 
PHE/ONS 

 Parity with 
England 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
range 77.8-79.3, 
(male) 81.8-82.5 
(female) 
England: 79.8 (male) 
83.4 (female) 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Housing costs The housing 
system and 
wider economy 
means that 
earning power is 
not being 
eroded by 
inflating house 
prices. 

MHCLG House Price 
(existing dwellings) 
to residence-based 
earnings ratio. 

 Net decrease in 
relative housing 
costs 

South Yorkshire: 
range (4.66-5.92)  
England: 7.84 Board 

Report 
 

LEP / MCA 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 
 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

  

P
age 190



 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 67 of 70 
 

Education & 
schools 

More children 
leave secondary 
school with 
better 
attainment to 
boost their 
prospects in FE 
and 
employment. 

Attainment 8 scores 
average. DfE data. 

 Parity with 
England 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
Attainment 8 range 
(44.0-44.9) 
England: 46.8  
Gap to average: 649 
students 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

Higher-level 
occupations 

Higher 
proportion of 
employees in 
managerial, 
technical & 
professional 
occupations 
(SOC 1-3). 

Nomis  Parity with GB 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
43.7% 
GB: 50.0% 
Gap: 6.3 p.p 
(equivalent to 
40,500 people) 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

Fuel poverty Fewer 
households 
living in fuel 
poverty. 

BEIS Fuel Poverty 
Statistics use Low 
Income Low Energy 
Efficiency (LILEE) 
indicator. 

 Parity with 
England 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
17.7% 
England: 13.4% 
Gap: 4.3 p.p 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Child poverty Lower 
proportion of 
children living in 
poverty. 

End Child Poverty 
derived data 

 Parity with UK 
average 

Barnsley (33.3%), 
Doncaster (34.7%0, 
Rotherham (34.3%), 
Sheffield (35.5%), 
UK (31%) 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Cultural 
participation 

Gap for overall 
participation in 
cultural activity 
between SCR 
and national 
average closes. 

DCMS 
 
Active Lives Survey 
Variable 'Spent time 
doing a creative, 
artistic, theatrical or 
music activity or a 
craft' 

 Parity with 
England 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
69.7% 
England: 76.1% 
Gap of 6.4 p.p 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

P
age 191

http://www.endchildpoverty.org.uk/local-child-poverty-data-2014-15-2019-20/


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 68 of 70 
 

Deprivation Lower share of 
local areas in 
deprivation. 

MHCLG Index of 
Multiple Deprivation 
(2019) - Proportion 
of LSOAs in most 
deprived 10% 
nationally 
(converted to %) 

 Parity with 
England 
average 

South Yorkshire has 
18.59% areas in 
‘bottom 10% index’. 
By definition this is 
8.59% higher than 
average. 

 
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Out-of-work 
benefit 
claimant rate 

Lower 
percentage of 
people claiming 
out-of-work 
benefits 

CCO1 Regional 
Labour Market 

 Parity with UK 
average 

South Yorkshire: 
5.6% 
Range: Barnsley 
(5.1%) – Doncaster 
(6.2%) 
UK: 5.0% 

Board 
Report 

MCA / LEP Annual 
Director 

Business and 
Skills 

Connect to jobs (a) Increasing 
the number of 
economically 
active people 
living within 30 
minutes of key 
employment 
locations and 
universities by 
public transport. 
 
Improving 
journey times to 
employment 
centres. 

Talk to transport 
team about data 
sources. 
 
Note: if these come 
from Census, better 
using sources that 
refresh much more 
regularly. 

 Decrease in 
journey times 
relative to 
2020 level. 

Baseline year to be 
established. 

Board 
Report MCA / LEP Annual 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Affordable 
housing 
delivery 

Increasing 
number of 
affordable 
housing 
completions 

Live Table 1008C  Increase on 
2020 level 

Barnsley (228), 
Doncaster (74), 
Rotherham (240), 
Sheffield (207) 

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

LEP / MCA 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 
 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Net additional 
dwellings 

Increasing 
number of net 
new dwellings 

Live Table 122  Increase on 
2020 level 

Barnsley (590), 
Doncaster (761), 
Rotherham (566), 
Sheffield (1,850) 

Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

LEP / MCA 
 

Thematic 
Boards 

Annual 
 

Director of 
Transport, 
Housing, 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

P
age 192

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peoplenotinwork/unemployment/datasets/claimantcountbyunitaryandlocalauthorityexperimental/current
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peoplenotinwork/unemployment/datasets/claimantcountbyunitaryandlocalauthorityexperimental/current
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-affordable-housing-supply
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-net-supply-of-housing


 

SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022                                                                                                      Page 69 of 70 
 

Avoidable 
mortality 

Decreasing Premature 
preventable deaths 
– ONS  

 TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Common 
mental health 
disorders 

Decreasing Fingertips – ONS    TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Gross 
disposable 
household 
income 

Increasing ONS    TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 
Deputy CEX 

Key stage 4 
destination 
measures 

Increasing  Higher % sustained 
education, 
apprenticeship or 
employment 
destination – ONS  

 TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

Apprenticeships 
and trainees  

Increasing  DfE apprenticeships 
and trainees data 

 TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

NEET Decreasing  DfE ‘NEET and 
participation’ 

 TBC TBC  
Board 
Report 

 
Programme 
Dashboard 

 
LEP / MCA 

 
Thematic 

Boards 

 
Annual 

 

Director 
Business and 

Skills 

 

 

P
age 193



 

 

 

Page 194



Appendix A 

Date Agenda items 

21 October 2021 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Annual review of Risk Management arrangements 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports – Fraud 
Integration Update 
Breach Report 

27 January 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Mid-year Treasury Management Strategy report 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
21/22 AGR Process 
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
Integration Update 
NEW - Breach of Controls Report 

24 March 2022 
(A morning and  
afternoon session have 
been scheduled)  

Advisory Panel Update 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan/Internal audit strategy 
Committee Effectiveness 
Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Annual Review of Code of Corporate Governance 
Integration Update 
Updated Assurance and Accountability Framework 

9 June 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
External Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 
Findings of the Annual Governance Review 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 
AMP Technology Centre Performance Update 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
MOVED FROM MARCH - External Audit Annual Plan 
NEW - Breach of Controls Report 
NEW – MCA/SYPTE integration 
NEW – Climate Change Risk Paper 

14 July 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
AGR Findings and Draft AGS and GIP 
Draft Accounts 
IA Annual Report/Head of Audit Opinion  
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 
Internal Audit Reports  
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Work plan for 2022/23 

 

Page 195

Agenda Item 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 27 January 2022
	07  Matters Arising_Action Log v2

	9 Strategic Risk Monitoring
	Appendix A - Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix B - Risk Management Framework

	10 Internal Audit Reports
	10iAppendix A - Internal Audit Progress Report March 2022_ v1
	Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report March 2022

	11 Integration Update
	13 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan
	13i - Appendix A - SYMCA 2022-23 Draft Internal Audit Plan March 2022

	14 Committee Effectiveness
	Appendix A - Annual Effectiveness Survey Questions

	15 Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review
	16 Annual Review of Code of Corporate Governance
	Appendix A - Code of Corporate Governance 2022-23

	17 Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action
	Appendix A - Governance Improvement Plan 2021 March 22 update

	18 Assurance Framework
	Appendix 1 - Draft SYMCA Assurance Framework 2022

	19 Committee Work Plan

